JALTCALL 2024 Conference

Friday 17 May 2024 - Sunday 19 May 2024 Meijo University Nagoya Dome Campus



Book of Abstracts

ii

Contents

'What did you learn today?': Analysing teacher-led questions in Asian Chinese-speaking secondary CLIL classrooms	1
Building Virtual Bridges though an Online International Exchange	1
What ChatGPT Threatens and Enables: A Pragmatic Analysis	2
Online-assisted Student Video Production	2
Immersive VR Campus for Novice Chinese Learners: Blending Technology and Language Learning	3
AI-Driven Curriculum Design: A Practical Toolkit for Educators	4
Exploring foreign language interaction and neural alignment through simultaneous dual- brain imaging	4
Enhancing group discussions in college English courses with Chatbots \ldots	5
Teaching robotics in English by engineering- and English-major pre-service teachers $\ . \ .$	5
The Future of Education utilizing an AI-powered Job Interviews for English as Special Pur- pose (ESP) Learning: Students'Perceptions of the AI Analytics Video Interview for Tal- ent Recruitment	6
Virtual Exchange length: Do short exchanges have an impact?	6
Using GPT-3 as a More Knowledgeable Other to Provide Feedback on English Language Learners'Spoken Transcripts	7
Eigo.AI - The World's First Fully AI-Powered 4-Skills Platform for English Language Learn- ers	7
A Longitudinal Look at Japanese Students' Experience with Technology \ldots \ldots \ldots	8
Student Perceptions of AI-Assisted Writing Feedback in CLIL Courses	9
Making ChatGPT your best friend? A study on a business writing course for Taiwanese college English majors	9
Written languaging for computer-mediated collaborative L2 writing	10
The Possibility of English Practice with Peers in VR $\stackrel{\scriptstyle .}{\scriptstyle \cdot}$ A Case Study of the iTL VR Café $~$.	10
Can ChatGPT help with Chinese grammar error correction and explanations?	11

Enhancing Students' English Debate Proficiency through Virtual Reality: A Quasi-experiment Study	
Teachers should let learners examine the output of AI translation	13
Using computer-mediated communication in the EFL classrooms: Focusing on authenticity and meaningfulness	13
Prompt Engineering for English Language Teachers	14
Integrating Virtual Reality Tour Tasks into EFL Telecollaboration	15
Exploring the Potential of ChatGPT in Developing English Learning Materials	15
Understanding Individual Learners' Use of AI in English academic writing: Social and Con- textual Influences	
Quo Vadis Language Teaching for STEM and Management Students in Times of AI: Expe- riences, Strategies, and Future Perspectives	
Designing an AI-Based Programme for Emerging Bi- and Multilinguals	17
Digital Games in the Language Classroom: Designing Better Curricula Through Exploratory Factor Analysis	
Developing reading fluency using a device or paper: is there a difference?	19
ChatGPT as a Tool for Authentic Dialogue Evaluation and Creation in EFL Video Produc- tion	
Exploring the Efficacy of ChatGPT's Audio Features in Language Learning	20
Enhancing Cross-Cultural Exchange with AI: ChatGPT's Role in an International Online Student Conference	20
Integrating Virtual Reality into Task-Based Language Learning	21
THE SUCCESSFUL USE OF AI FOR ENGLISH TEACHERS'PROFESSIONAL DEVELOP- MENT	
Applying Error Analysis Results of Sarcasm Detection: Humans vs NLP Models	22
Creating an Innovative Partnership: Insights from a Hybrid CLIL Course in Engineering and Science	23
Implementation of PL-TaRL to improve vocational students' writing learning outcomes .	24
An Introduction to Corpus Technology in the Artificial Age	24
Developing a Chatbot for EFL Learners: Process and Insights	25
Beyond Basics: A Five-Week Deep-Dive into AI for University Language Students	26
Exploring AI-Assisted Post-Editing Processes and Implications for Pedagogical Post-Editing Training	26
Japanese university EFL students' practices and perceptions towards ChatGPT \ldots .	27

Exploring the Integration of GenAI Chatbots in an EFL Learning Environment: An Exploratory Study	
A systematic review on the use of Grammarly in L2 writing contexts	28
Creating Interactive Digital Materials in the Paperless Era	29
Students' Insights on AI as a Writing Feedback Companion	30
Empowering English Composition through ChatGPT	30
GenAI Usage and Perceptions –A Comparative Analysis of Two Surveys	31
Foreign Language Anxiety During Synchronous-Online and Face-to-Face Classes	32
The NGSL Project: 10 Years of Helping EFL Learners to Succeed	32
Using machine translation tools for academic writing in language courses –perspectives of students and language teachers	
Examining the Efficacy of an Adaptive Reading Platform for Emergent Bilinguals in a Fifth-Grade CLIL Science Course	
Creating and utilizing an extensive reading library using Chat GPT	34
Adapting Teaching Practices in the Era of Artificial Intelligence	35
Technology Literacy & Language Learning: Undergraduate Attitudes	36
AI Use in the Japanese University EFL Writing Classroom	36
Toward Pedagogically-Informed Automated Writing Feedback for Language Learners	36
Synchronous vs. Asynchronous Learning for English Reading Skills in an EFL Context $\ .$	37
AI: Empowering Speaking Skills through Dialog Composition and Practice	38
Integrating Quizizz for Enhancing Student Engagement	38
Exploring the Effects of Mobile Annotated Vlogs on Learners'Language Performance, Self- efficacy, and Learning Perceptions	
Tertiary Education Artificial Intelligence Policies Across Japan in 2024 and the New User Experience	40
Students'responses towards the use of screen recording technology (Loom) in the teacher' s feedback for students'writing assignments at a university in Vietnam	40
Automated Writing Evaluation Systems: A Comparative Study of Grammarly and AI-Writing Assistant in EFL Writing	-
A Corpus-based Study on the Linguistic Features of Fake News Headlines	42
Exploring the potential of VR vs. video conferencing on learning outcomes	42
Dynamic Online Assessor: Scientific Genre-Specific Automated Feedback	43
Language teachers'and learners' perceptions of the use of ChatGPT as a self-learning tool	44

Developing Intercultural Competence in English Language Learners through AI: A Case Study in Vietnamese Higher Education	44
Pros and Cons of Themed-Related Discussions in English via Padlet	45
Leveraging AI to Quantify Comprehensibility and Intelligibility in Speaking	45
Integrating AI in Language Learning: Balancing Innovation with Integrity	46
Technological Support as a Foundation to AI-integrated Teaching Practice	47
Affordances and Limitations of AI tools for oral proficiency development	47
Using Microsoft 365 for Education as a Learning Management System in the Classroom .	48
Voice recognition applications in university English Reading classes	48
Authoring system for online speech drills customizable to learners' needs	49
GPT-based simulation of oral Q&A to aid students attending first conference	50
Evaluating a LLM's Ability to Analyze Politeness Strategies for Instructed Pragmatics	50
Enhancing Teaching with ChatGPT API, Google Sheets, and Moodle	51
Addressing Machine Translation and AI Tool Use in the English Language Learning Class- room	
Integrating AI in assessment and evaluation in higher education	52
Video feedback as multimodal tool for transformative action in learning and teaching $\ . \ .$	53
An N-gram Approach to Identifying Lexical Features in Fake Financial News	53
Generating discussion: Using ChatGPT to foster critical thinking skills	54
Developing and revising an academic literacy course in response to AI	54
Teacher approaches towards using chatgpt to analyze a corpus of student writing samples	55
Impact of AI-Based Educational Practices on Student Motivation in English Language Learn- ing	
AI Natives' Perspectives on ChatGPT Pedagogy	56
Student perspectives on AI use in language learning	57
Using ChatGPT in Lesson Planning: Opportunities and Limitations	58
Integration of Artificial Intelligence Elements in the Discipline Specific Chinese Curriculum of Hong Kong Polytechnic University	
Improving Students' Speaking Skills with Replika	59
The Effectiveness of Using Adaptive Learning Platform to Improve English Reading Proficiency in Elementary School Students	
What's Wrong With This Picture? Exploring Gender and Racial Bias in AI Art	60

Utilizing ChatGPT for spoken task-based practices	61
The ethical and pedagogical implications of 'AI-proof' writing assignments	61
Showcasing ChatGPT, DeepL/Google Translate, and Google Docs for Speech Practice: In- sights from the U.S. University Pilot Study	
Enhancing Language Learning Through VR Photo-Based Tours: Cases in Japan, France, and the Philippines	
Virtual Exchange + Extensive Reading: A combination for success	63
Learners' Perceptions of Corrective Feedback in Digital Language Learning Environments	
Human-AI hybrid authorship in the development of crime stories	65
Does AI Help Presentation Preparation?	65
Telecollaboration project improves college students'intercultural communication skills .	66
Implicit grammar instruction in VR: Evaluation of an immersive experience for English conditionals	
Flavoring the Vanilla: Finetuning Large Language Models for Automated Evaluation of Argumentative Writing	
Enhancing fluency and autonomy: A three-step DeepL quick-writes activity	68
Project-based learning in collaboration with a local business	68
Rhizomatic Recoding: Rethinking Learning with CMCT in Disrupted Spaces	69
Pragmatics, Generative AI, and the Language Classroom	69
Ohtani's Playbook in Modern English Language Teaching: The Synergy of Minds and Ma- chines to Advance the 21st Century Language Competencies	
Voiced Character Language Chatbots for Japanese Learning	71
Leveraging ChatGPT for English Language Teaching: Insights from Korean EFL Instructors	
Teachers' Perspectives on the Integration of AI in the Classroom: A Global Survey	72
Using technology to increase English usage opportunities and feedback	73
Utilizing an AI-CEFR Checker: What is the Efficacy for Utilizing CEFR Results for first year University Students?	
Teacher Becomes Student: User Experience of an LMS During an Online Degree	74
Using AI to Automate Corrective Written Feedback in the Learner's L1	75
Efficiency and Effectiveness in Online Learning: The DripRelease Plugin	76
Creating Your Own Ollama AI Server: Empowering Language Teachers with Open Source	76
	/0

Creating Your Own Ollama AI Server and other self-hosted open-source AI solutions work- shop	77
Chatting with Generative AI Replika: Effects on Writing	77
Indico for Vetting Management of EFL Events: Set Your Team Up for Success	78
Creating a GenAI Literacy module for university students in Hong Kong	78
Using Gaze and AI Technology to Assess Online Presence	79
Meeting Eye-to-Eye on Online Video Conferencing Platforms	80
Toward Better Evaluation Criteria For Student Participation Grades	80
Using an AI-based dubbing application to train English-speaking skills	81
Do generative Artificial Intelligence tools assist or prevent learners' development in English as a second learning environment?	81
Exploring Teachers' Perceptions towards Computer-Assisted Language Learning in Rural Nepal	82
Exploring the Intersection of AI and Language Learning: A Study of Japanese and Interna- tional Students' Perspectives	
H5P Activities Speaking Practice for Moodle and WordPress	83
Unveiling Gender Bias in AI Translation: A Corpus-assisted Analysis of Marriage-related Text in The Second Sex	84
LD SIG Forum AI: Benefits, Challenges, and Issues for Learner Development.	85
Revolutionizing Language Learning: The Impact and Evolution of Large Language Models	85
(Saturday Keynote) AI-Enhanced Language Learning: Cultivating New Perspectives	86
ICLE SIG - (Can) (Will) AI be used for teaching Intercultural Communicative Skills in For- eign Language Education?	
ER SIG - Extensive reading and AI: this could be great	87
MAVR SIG - Immersive Learning Showcase	87
AI-Enhanced Language Learning: Cultivating New Perspectives	89
Workshop A1: A Technical Primer on AI and Intelligent Language Models	89
Workshop A2: Voices of the Future: Enhancing Language Learning with Advanced Text to Speech Technology	89
AI-Enhanced self-oriented English learning for diverse skill development in Japan	90
Iconicity in Virtual Reality for Language Learning Survey	91
Pose detection using an AI-based web application offers a novel approach to observing gesture use in second language learning.	91

KOTESOL - Enhancing Academic Writing with AI: Student Experiences with ChatGPT Integration tegration	92
English Central - Using GenAI Tutors to Improve Speaking Outcomes for Students (MiMi Demo)	92
Critical Thinking in the Digital Age: CT through LMS-based classes	93
Fantastic world of research and where to publish (and not get rejected) \ldots	93
US Embassy - Leveraging AI: Empowering Educators in Creating Presentations & Images	94
English Central - Introducing a Free, Computer Adaptive, CEFR-based, Vocabulary Level Test	94
Kinseido - In Focus: A 4-Skills Vocabulary & Critical Thinking Course	94
Deciphering Task-Specific Language in TBLT: A Register Analysis Approach to Enhancing Task Design and Assessment	95
Will AI Replace You? Insights From the Engineers Building AI Tutors	95
AI in the Streets, Devil in the Sheets	96

x

DN 407: Professional Development and Teacher Training / 17

'What did you learn today?': Analysing teacher-led questions in Asian Chinese-speaking secondary CLIL classrooms

Author: Wen-hsien Yang¹

¹ National Kaohsiung University of Hospitality and Tourism

Using teacher-led questions is of utmost importance in the educational setting, as it allows teachers to convey knowledge and ascertain students' comprehension levels effectively. Educational professionals utilise these tools to facilitate purposeful engagements, foster increased student engagement, and shape cognitive processes, logical reasoning, and active involvement among their pupils. Remarkably, the scholarly investigation of the influence of student inquiry in Content and Language Integrated Learning (CLIL) classrooms within Asian English as a Foreign Language (EFL) secondary education remains limited. Consequently, our research examined the frequency and kind of questions CLIL practitioners employ in Taiwanese educational settings. We believed such an investigation would enhance our comprehension of the dynamics between teachers and students, inform our instructional strategies, facilitate student learning, and promote content acquisition. A dataset including 1,405 minutes of recorded material from 39 CLIL classes was analysed. The findings indicate that practitioners employ display, referential, and confirmation checks inside CLIL classes. These practices raise concerns regarding attaining desired pedagogical objectives and hinder learners' cognitive advancement. The questions employed in the classroom are strongly influenced by factors such as the gender of the teacher, the level of the learners, and the duration of the course. The research has significant pedagogical implications, highlighting the need for CLIL teachers to recognise the value of utilising generative AI (artificial intelligence) tools in promoting effective interactive discourse within CLIL classrooms. Generative AI, like ChatGPT, can be very beneficial in helping teachers select relevant prompts, create diverse questions to encourage students to think deeply and encourage response variation to develop various language skills. We argue the necessity of offering appropriate professional development opportunities for CLIL practitioners to enhance their questioning skills to facilitate interaction, participation, and learning through deploying generative AI tools.

Keywords:

teacher-led questions, CLIL, bilingual education, professional development (PD), Taiwan secondary level

Posters Session / 18

Building Virtual Bridges though an Online International Exchange

Author: Brian Birdsell^{None}

Co-authors: Barry Kavanagh¹; Brent Kelsen²

¹ Tohoku University

² National Taipei University

In the past two decades, virtual exchanges driven by technological advancement and a desire to promote engagement among students in different countries and advance intercultural understanding have become widespread globally. A mounting number of studies points to potential benefits of virtual exchanges such as increased autonomy, improved motivation, a sense of learner agency, enhanced intercultural awareness and understanding for students with different language abilities. Moreover, a growing body of literature reports on synchronous and asynchronous exchanges connecting different levels of students, mostly lasting several weeks or a whole semester or more. In this presentation, we report on a short-term synchronous virtual exchange undertaken between university students in Japan and Taiwan. First, we describe the process of implementing this exchange at the respective universities, the students who participated in this exchange, the activities they completed, and the technology used. Then, using reflective narratives from the three organizers, we consider the cognitive, emotional, and motivational benefits this exchange had on our students, the difficulties encountered as organizers of the exchange, and possible ways to improve and continue this exchange in the future. Finally, we present a general outline and tentative roadmap for other educators wishing to offer meaningful experiences through international intercultural exchanges for their students.

Keywords:

International Exchange, Online, Intercultural Awareness, Motivation

DN 403: AI for Teaching / 19

What ChatGPT Threatens and Enables: A Pragmatic Analysis

Author: Tosh Tachino^{None}

ChatGPT and other generative AI likely constitute the most significant technology in recent years to affect writing studies, and their impact has been widely discussed in public (Rudolph, Tan, & Tan, 2023). The technology is still too new and still too fast evolving to have any consensus on how to use it, how to manage it, how to regulate it, or how to guide its future development, but the proponents tout AI's potential to ease the tedium of writing, enhance the student's learning experience, and ease the teacher workload, while the critics fear its effect on plagiarism, human relationships, and unemployment, among others. These hopes and fears are both legitimate, and we need to continue public conversations about what to do with this technology because it will affect all of us, and each of us should have a say in forming a public consensus. This presentation seeks to clarify some of the issues in this debate by conducting a theoretical analysis of AI-generated text from a pragmatic perspective. "Writing" is not just about generating texts, and "writer" is not always the person who generated the text. Conceptual tools, such as speech act theory (Austin, 1975), performance theory (Goffman, 1959), and writer identity theory (Ivanič, 1998) can show us what specific aspects of writing are affected by AI, how AI tools change the nature of social action that results from it, how our understanding of "writing" must change as a result, and what it may mean to study and teach writing in the near future.

References

Austin, J. L. (1975). How to do things with words. Oxford University Press.

Goffman, E. (1959). The presentation of self in everyday life. Anchor.

Ivanič, R. (1998). Writing and identity: The discoursal construction of identity in academic writing. John Benjamins.

Rudolph, J., Tan, S., & Tan, S. (2023). War of the chatbots: Bard, Bing Chat, ChatGPT, Ernie and beyond. The new AI gold rush and its impact on higher education. Journal of Applied Learning and Teaching, 6(1), 364-389. https://doi.org/10.37074/jalt.2023.6.1.23

Keywords:

pragmatics, writing, ethics, ChatGPT, policy

DN 404: Innovative Teaching Using Technology / 21

Online-assisted Student Video Production

Author: David Wood¹

¹ Chikushijogakuen

College English classes in Japan often devolve into grammar translation and passive content. This does not improve students' ability to communicate better in English. Developing active skills is more important and meaningful. As communication is essentially spoken, textbooks and excessive teacher talk can be major obstacles. They worked together to produce video recordings of live conversations to motivate students to be communicative, develop cooperation, and meet spontaneous and meaningful performance goals. A year-long course of approximately 20 classes, 50 hours in total, is outlined. In sets of two classes per topic, students talked freely about familiar and interesting themes in group sessions. They asked and answered questions, with the teacher only correcting major communication breakdowns to develop their independent interaction. In the next class, students chose related locations around the school to experience live, unscripted interactions, using a two-way interview style, where they could use both ideas from their previous practice and any new ideas that occurred to them. Topics covered a wide range, from nearby tourist spots and aspects of college life to talking about places they recommended in Japan and abroad. The teacher intervened only minimally when students froze up to scaffold continuous interactions. These recordings were edited into a single movie of the topic, captioned, and sent to students with their permission to review, enjoy, and keep both as memories of speaking English and to prepare for the oral course-end exam. Students thus learned to enjoy English communication and prepare themselves to talk to other speakers of English, whether native or not. Attendees will learn about the technology I use, how I build rapport with students, when I intervene, as well as my informal observations of student perceptions.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

Video, Technology, Communication

DN 409: Virtual Reality / 26

Immersive VR Campus for Novice Chinese Learners: Blending Technology and Language Learning

Author: Yi-chen Chen¹

¹ Dept of Foreign Languages and Applied Linguistics/Yuan Ze University

This study aims to develop, employ, and evaluate an immersive virtual-reality (VR) campus tailored for novice students learning Chinese as a Foreign Language (CFL) at a Taiwanese university. The primary goal is to equip incoming international students with essential Chinese language skills critical for successfully adapting to the academic environment. Incorporating an inventive blend of Content and Language Integrated Learning (CLIL) and Task-based Language Teaching (TBLT), the curriculum emphasizes immersive exposure to the Chinese language within task-oriented scenarios, complemented by instructional guidance in English. Utilizing VR technology, this platform, crafted using Gather Town, seamlessly merges physical and digital elements to augment comprehension and motivation among early-stage language learners. The active tracking feature allows for personalized learning paces, aligning with the principles of Education 4.0.

The study documents the development, implementation, and evaluation of the VR campus, founded on a detailed needs analysis involving 18 CFL students. This comprehensive curriculum integrates survival skills, language proficiency, cultural insights, and communication competencies across eight units. Each unit encompasses introductions to school buildings, essential vocabulary, daily conversation and sentence structures, practical tasks, and conclusive assessments. Furthermore, user feedback from a trial involving six CFL students highlights the interactive nature of the learning environment while addressing concerns about task complexity, platform guidance, and future improvements. Feedback derived from six CFL students, exhibiting varying levels of Mandarin proficiency, underscores the interactive and enjoyable nature of the learning environment. While acknowledging the platform's ease of use for self-study, students expressed concerns about task difficulty, platform instructions, and future updates. By integrating user and expert feedback, this study aims to present a comprehensive review of the VR application, potentially revolutionizing CFL teaching methods while adhering to Education 4.0 principles.

Keywords:

Virtual reality (VR), Chinese as Foreign Language (CFL), Immersive technology, Education 4.0

DN 410: Mixed Sessions / 29

AI-Driven Curriculum Design: A Practical Toolkit for Educators

Author: Lucas Dickerson¹

¹ Kwansei Gakuin University

In the era of AI tools like LLMs and Text-to-Image generators, creating personalized curricula has become easier than ever. This presentation is your guide to blending expertise in course development, curriculum design, and graphic design principles with practical strategies using ChatGPT and Adobe Firefly. Concepts covered are applicable to other LLMs or Text-to-Image generators as well. Explore how to tailor curricula to suit students' language learning needs using a powerful AI toolset. Experience a thoughtful exploration of the practical side of integrating AI in education for refined curriculum customization.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

Artificial Intelligence in Language Education, Curriculum Design

DN 406: Research and Development / 30

Exploring foreign language interaction and neural alignment through simultaneous dual-brain imaging

Author: Brent Kelsen¹

¹ National Taipei University

Spoken interactions, including turn-taking activities, discussions, task-based learning, and computersupported collaborative learning, are common in foreign language learning classrooms. However, the neural mechanisms underpinning such foreign language exchanges remain insufficiently explored. Consequently, questions arise regarding the emergence of neural alignment between activity partners and its potential contribution to mutual understanding and the quality of communication. Advances in technology allow researchers to assess these interactions from a two-person perspective as opposed to the single person studies of the past. This presentation will begin by explaining the use of simultaneous dual-brain imaging –hyperscanning –to investigate the dynamic neural activity of two or more interacting individuals and briefly outline some of the recent research in this emerging field. Next, I will outline my own ongoing research using dual electroencephalography (EEG) recordings in an English as a foreign language context and share preliminary findings, including how machine and deep learning models show promise for analyzing dual-imaging data. Following this, I will look at what can be learned from functional brain connectivity patterns. Finally, I will address the implications and limitations of using this technology, along with ethical considerations as researchers investigate one of the last preserves of human privacy.

Keywords:

English as a foreign language, brain imaging, neural activity, brain connectivity, EEG

DN 405 / 31

Enhancing group discussions in college English courses with Chatbots

Author: Yi-ju Chen¹

¹ National Kaohsiung University of science and technology

This study investigates the integration of AI chatbots, specifically ChatGPT and Bard/Gemini, in advanced-level "Practical English" courses for college freshmen. It examines their impact on student engagement and motivation, aiming to assess the effectiveness of AI-driven chatbots in Task-Based Learning (TBL) activities. Tasks include conversation generation, debates, and problem-solving, tailored to individual student interests and learning styles. Prior to each activity, students are instructed on how to use chatbots effectively. The web presentation tool "Menti" is utilized for instruction and idea solicitation. Objectives include understanding the advantages and challenges of AI in language education and exploring innovative language learning methods. The study evaluates the influence of ChatGPT or Bard/Gemini on student participation and motivation, as well as the blended approach combining AI interaction with human-guided instruction.

Keywords: AI chatbots, Task-Based Learning, student engagement, language education.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

AI chatbots, Task-Based Learning, student engagement, language education.

DW 306: Mixed Sessions / 32

Teaching robotics in English by engineering- and English-major pre-service teachers

Authors: Yu-Liang Ting¹; Yaming Tai²; Lin Chu³; Hui-Ting Chang⁴; Wan-Xin Chen¹

- ¹ Department of Technology Application and Human Resource Development, National Taiwan Normal University, Taipei, Taiwan
- ² Department of Children English Education National Taipei University of Education Taipei, Taiwan
- ³ Department of Instructional Systems Technology Indiana University Bloomington Bloomington, Indiana
- ⁴ Department of Mathematics and Information Education National Taipei University of Education Taipei, Taiwan

Collaborating with professionals with different expertise is important to accomplish cross-disciplinary tasks. In the context of school, it means setting up a collaborative mission to enhance students'

cross-disciplinary knowledge and build up a positive attitude toward such collaboration. Such issue is explored in this study by proposing a mission for pre-service teachers of engineering and English to teach high school students through English about the build and use of robotic arms. Participating pre-service teachers need not only to collaboratively learn the related knowledge and skills from each other but also co-design and carry out the teaching. This study investigates the collaborative work among these pre-service teachers by observations and interviews. The results reveal that the participants' autonomy has been evidenced during the process of Learning by Teaching, in which meta-cognition and meta-curriculum about cross-disciplinary pre-service teacher training seemed to emerge. The results and discussions should cast a new aspect in addressing the cross-disciplinary work for pre-service teacher training.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

CALL, collaboration, cross-disciplinary, Learning by Teaching, Meta-curriculum

DN 402: AI in Learning / 33

The Future of Education utilizing an AI-powered Job Interviews for English as Special Purpose (ESP) Learning: Students'Perceptions of the AI Analytics Video Interview for Talent Recruitment

Author: Frankie Har¹

¹ The Hong Kong Polytechnic University

This study investigates the application of Neufast, an AI-mediated job interview platform, in the realm of English for Special Purposes (ESP) learning. The research specifically examines students' perceptions of the AI analytics video interview for talent recruitment. Neufast, an AI-driven tool, offers a simulated environment for students to rehearse job interviews, receive immediate feedback, and enhance their performance. The AI capabilities of the platform enable the analysis of both verbal and non-verbal cues, delivering comprehensive feedback on language proficiency, communication skills, and body language. The objective of this study is to comprehend students' perceptions of this cutting-edge tool and its potential to augment ESP learning. The results indicate that the integration of AI in education, particularly in ESP learning, can offer an interactive and personalized learning experience. The study also underscores the potential of AI-powered job interview practice in equipping students for the competitive job market, thereby bridging the gap between education and employment. This research contributes to the growing body of literature on the use of AI in education and its implications for future learning. The findings have significant implications for educators, policy makers, and stakeholders in the education and recruitment sectors.

Keywords:

AI-mediated job interview platform, Neufast, AI analytics, ESP Learning

DN 408: Mixed Topics / 36

Virtual Exchange length: Do short exchanges have an impact?

Author: Robert Remmerswaal¹

¹ Prefectural University of Kumamoto

Virtual Exchanges (VEs) promote language acquisition and increase communication confidence, selfperceived communication competence (SPCC), digital literacy, cross-cultural understanding, collaboration skills, and intercultural competence. Current literature has yet to explore the effect of time spent on VE tasks and the complexity of those tasks as they relate to students' SPCC, communication anxiety, or self-efficacy. This presentation compares a long and short VE held a year apart with similar students. The first VE was an eight-week collaborative online international learning (COIL) project with students from Japan, Spain, and Türkiye. The second VE was less than three weeks with students from Japan and Korea. The COIL required English as a lingua franca to complete reports and a video on implementing SDGs at school. The shorter VE also used English as a lingua franca but required students to create two Flip videos and hold a short synchronous conversation. Students completed a pre- and post-VE survey containing Likert-type statements and open-ended questions. In both cases, students saw an increased self-efficacy and SPCC and a decrease in communication anxiety. However, the changes were more pronounced in the COIL project. These results highlight the value of VEs, even if they are short. VEs allow students to engage with student peers from other cultures and can change perceptions of language learning to one that is communicative rather than academic. Not all students benefitted equally from the VEs. This presentation will suggest task types and VE length based on student profiles.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

COIL, Virtual Exchange, self-efficacy, communication competence, communication anxiety

DN 403: AI for Teaching / 37

Using GPT-3 as a More Knowledgeable Other to Provide Feedback on English Language Learners'Spoken Transcripts

Author: Paul Raine¹

¹ Ritsumeikan University

Recent advancements in Generative Pre-trained Transformers (GPT) have opened up new possibilities for language teaching and learning. Leveraging the Vygotskian concepts of the More Knowledgeable Other (MKO) and the Zone of Proximal Development (ZPD), this report presents an investigation of the viability of GPT-3 as an MKO for English Language Learners (ELLs). The study introduces the SpeechCoach web application (www.speechcoach.io), which integrates GPT-3 through its Application Programming Interface (API). The participants in this study (n=680) overwhelmingly rated the feedback given by SpeechCoach on their spoken transcripts as "very helpful", indicating its effectiveness. Follow-up interviews with six participants further confirm that the feedback is particularly beneficial for intermediate-level adult English learners, assisting them in advancing within their ZPD. Although this research shows promise for the GPT-based SpeechCoach system, it requires further refinement, and it is important to acknowledge the limitations inherent in such systems.

Keywords:

Vygotsky, More Knowledgeable Other, Zone of Proximal Development, Automatic Speech Recognition

Eigo.AI - The World's First Fully AI-Powered 4-Skills Platform for English Language Learners

Author: Paul Raine¹

¹ Ritsumeikan University

The age of AI is finally with us, and brings with it far-reaching implications for language teachers and learners around the world. But how do we utilize the affordances of Large Language Models (LLMs) and other AI-powered technologies for the best learning outcomes?

While the technology may have changed, in many respects the pedagogy remains the same. Students still need exposure to comprehensible written and spoken forms of the target language, and they still need to be given the chance to produce written and spoken forms of the language and receive feedback on their language use. It's still a challenge for students to find the opportunity to use the language productively, and it's still a challenge for teachers to give personalized feedback to every student in large speaking and writing classes. In the context of English language learning in Japan, many students still fall way below the recommended 2500+ hours of engagement with English by the time they graduate from college.

Eigo.AI is the world's first fully AI-powered 4-skills platform for English language learners (that we know of!). It offers a library of lessons on a wide range of topics, from historical events and figures, to important scientific discoveries, and much more. GPT4 is leveraged to provide quality materials in a range of levels, from beginner to advanced. All materials are, of course, also proof-read and checked by humans. Students can benefit from AI-powered feedback on both their speaking and writing skills, and everything can be easily tracked and monitored by teachers. For teachers looking to give their students that all-important extra exposure to English, and solve some of those age-old pedagogical problems with the latest advances in AI, why not try out Eigo.AI in some of your classes next semester? Act quickly before Universal Translation devices make language learning obsolete!

Keywords:

4-skills, comprehensible input, meaningful output, corrective feedback

DN 409 / 40

A Longitudinal Look at Japanese Students'Experience with Technology

Author: Edo Forsythe¹

¹ Hirosaki Gakuin University

As we consider how to introduce Japanese students to the world of AI, it is important to understand their experience with educational technology in general. This session presents 9 years of survey data into Japanese university students'experiences with using technology in learning. The surveys were conducted among over 1,000 first-year university students at both private and public universities between 2011 and 2019. The surveys asked about their experience with using technology to learn. The survey results will be presented in this session with both quantitative and qualitative details about what types of things were learned using technology. Knowing what experiences the students come to the classroom with will allow teachers to better plan for the integration of new AI and other technologies into their lessons and advise students on how to effectively use technology in their learning pursuits. Attendees to this session will learn about the experiences students have had with using technology in learning and then will discuss how to leverage those into productive use of technology in the classroom today as we move into the AI era. Attendees will also discuss the challenges they have experienced in integrating technology into language learning and share lessons learned.

Keywords:

edtech experience, student experience

DN 410: Mixed Sessions / 41

Student Perceptions of AI-Assisted Writing Feedback in CLIL Courses

Author: Miguel Campos¹

¹ Toyo University

The integration of Artificial Intelligence (AI) in educational settings has opened new avenues for enhancing learning experiences. This study focuses on understanding students' perceptions of using AI, specifically ChatGPT (3.5 version), to provide feedback on writing performance in a Content and Language Integrated Learning (CLIL) course. The course, centered on Data Description and Analysis, required students to write weekly paragraphs on business-related data topics. Our methodology involved students maintaining a Writing Journal. Each week, they were given a prompt with specific criteria to assess. Students used ChatGPT to insert these prompts and their draft paragraphs, receiving feedback on adherence to the criteria and corrections for any grammatical or spelling errors. Based on the AI's feedback, students revised their drafts for their final weekly submissions. After 14 weeks of this process, students completed a survey evaluating their experience, particularly in terms of writing skill improvement and task completion efficiency. The results revealed that students generally perceived the AI-assisted method as beneficial for enhancing their writing skills and improving their performance in completing assignment tasks. They appreciated the immediacy and specificity of the feedback. However, there were notable concerns regarding the complexity and relevance of the feedback provided. Some students found the AI-generated advice to be convoluted, challenging to comprehend, or occasionally off-topic. Despite these issues, the overall response was positive, with students valuing the innovative approach to learning and its impact on their writing proficiency. This study underscores the potential of AI tools like ChatGPT in educational contexts, particularly in enhancing writing skills. It also highlights the need for improvements in AI feedback mechanisms to ensure clarity and relevance, ensuring that such tools are more effectively integrated into learning environments.

Keywords:

AI, ChatGPT, CLIL education, writing feedback, writing skills development

DN 410: Mixed Sessions / 42

Making ChatGPT your best friend? A study on a business writing course for Taiwanese college English majors

Author: Jeng-yih Tim Hsu¹

¹ National Kaohsiung University of Science and Technology, Kaohsiung, Taiwan

The study explores the potential benefits and drawbacks for EFL business writing teachers planning to adopt ChatGPT, a popular chatbot built on a transformer-based language model known as a generative pre-trained transformer (GPT). It reports an 18-week business writing course of 20 EFL writers in the Fall 2023 semester at an English department at a public technological university in Taiwan. This study examines what ChatGPT can and cannot help in preparing students to perform for workplace communications, and how they value ChatGPT, and potential growth and challenges observed from this ChatGPT-enhanced course. Altogether 9 business genres, i.e., resume, short-bio, cover letter, inquiry, reply, order, complaint, recommendation, business report, were taught. Two business writing professionals were invited to evaluate business documents produced by the students with the help of ChatGPT.

The data include the evaluation from the 2 writing professionals, interviews with the students and the class instructor, focusing on their feedbacks in adopting ChatGPT. The findings suggest that Chat-GPT tended to function relatively efficient when producing documents of pre-fabricated business genres, such as cover letter, inquiry, reply, order, and complaint but it failed to provide innovation and uniqueness anticipated in resume, short-bio, and business report. ChatGPT may seem to have saved drafting time for business writers as it automates routine documents. Nevertheless, before deploying ChatGPT, business writing teachers and students must carefully analyze its strengths and restrictions. ChatGPT requires training particular geared toward business domain and might produce naive and erroneous judgements, needing in-depth post-draft revision.

Keywords:

ChatGPT, business writing, college EFL learners

DN 406: Research and Development / 43

Written languaging for computer-mediated collaborative L2 writing

Author: Hsiu-Chen Hsu¹

¹ Chung Yuan Christian University

Research indicates that peer feedback accelerates L2 development in the same way as feedback provided by teachers by triggering noticing of gap in learners'interlanguage (Sippel & Jackson, 2015). Computer-mediated L2 collaborative writing (CW) provides learners the chances to engage in collaborative dialogue where they give and receive peer feedback. Peer feedback thus serves as a mediational tool for learners to co-construct knowledge (Storch, 2017) and develop their writing skills (Storch, 2005). However, studies (e.g., Hsu, 2019; Rouhshad & Storch, 2016) have shown that learners may not always heed peer feedback in computer-mediated contexts. This may affect their learning. Therefore, it is necessary to identify a technique to encourage L2 learners to process peer feedback so that they can benefit from the knowledge co-construction process afforded in computer-mediated CW. This study explores how written languaging influences computer-mediated L2 CW, focusing particularly on the extent to which it engages learners in processing peer feedback and its effect on the improvement of individual L2 writing.

Participants were 52 EFL learners in two writing classes in a Taiwanese university. The two classes were randomly assigned to the written languaging (WL) and no written languaging (NWL) groups. Both groups completed an individual pretest and posttest expository writing, along with two computer-mediated expository CW tasks using Google Docs across seven weeks. The WL group engaged in written languaging after the CW tasks, whereas the NWL did not engage in such a languaging activity. Learners' written production on the pretest and posttest was analyzed for the quality of content and organization, and linguistic complexity and accuracy. Learner's written languaging was coded for written languaging episodes and analyzed for levels of feedback processing. The findings aimed to shed light on how written languaging affects peer feedback processing and individual L2 writing development in computer-mediated CW contexts.

Keywords:

Computer-mediated collaborative second language writing, written languaging, peer feedback, second language writing development

DN 404: Innovative Teaching Using Technology / 44

The Possibility of English Practice with Peers in VR $\stackrel{:}{_{\sim}}$ A Case Study of the iTL VR Café

Author: Yukie Saito¹

Co-authors: Reia Nishida ¹; Shiori Tsuda ¹

¹ Chuo University

The benefits of VR for English education such as increasing engagement (Hu-Au & Lee, 2017), reducing affective filter (Schwienhorst, 2020), and public speaking anxiety (Godefridi et al., 2021), and raising students' motivation (Tai, Chen, & Todd, 2020) have been reported. This presentation details a pilot study on the iTL VR café, focusing on the utilization of Virtual Reality (VR) for English practice. iTL means Information Technology and Law, which is a nickname for our department. Although the students at iTL hope to improve their speaking skills, the number of English classes offered at the department is limited. To find a solution, we decided to create a space in a VR platform, Spatial, where students can practice English with other students in a relaxed manner. Adopting the concept of Vygotsky's Zone of Proximal Development (ZPD), proficient English-speaking university students led VR sessions to support their peers'English-speaking practice. Eight students participated in six sessions in English practice in the VR platform. A speaking test was conducted before and after the six sessions. Also, pre and post questionnaires were collected. The results showed that the students were able to enjoy the English practice, be motivated in learning English, and lower their foreign language anxiety though no improvement was observed in the post speaking test. Referring to the potential of creating avatar-based learning spaces among students for autonomous learning and engagement (MEXT, 2020), we will explore the feasibility of implementing a VR café for English practice. This discussion will include its benefits, challenges, and potential, as reflected in the pilot study. Additionally, the presentation will touch upon future directions, such as expanding the study to include more participants and sessions, and the possibility of integrating telecollaboration with students at international universities into the iTL VR café.

Keywords:

Virtual Reality, Socio Cultural Theory, Foreign Language Anxiety

DW 304: AI for Learning / 45

Can ChatGPT help with Chinese grammar error correction and explanations?

Author: Hao-Jan Howard Chen¹

¹ National Taiwan Normal University, Taiwan

With the development of new technologies, the performance of English grammar checkers has improved significantly in recent years. However, the performance of Chinese grammar checkers is still not satisfactory. Although there are some new Chinese grammar checkers, their performance is still not widely accepted. Although OpenAI ChatGPT includes Chinese language data, few studies have investigated whether Chinese data available via ChatGPT can be used for Chinese grammar checking.

This study thus used the Chinese data from ChatGPT 3.5 and ChatGPT 4.0 to serve as Chinese grammar checkers. To test if the ChatGPT-based Chinese checker can help detect and correct Chinese L2 errors, we used the data provided by a book called "Speed Up Your Chinese" by Routledge. This book is an innovative resource that identifies and explains the 150 common errors that Englishspeaking learners of Chinese repeatedly make. We then used ChatGPT 3.5 and ChatGPT 4.0 to check and correct this set of 150 common learner errors. After we collected the correction and feedback/explanations from ChatGPT, we further invited three highly experienced Chinese teachers to help check these corrections and explanations. The survey results show that three teachers agree that both ChatGPT 3.5 and ChatGPT 4.0 can help detect learners' errors and produce correct and fluent Chinese sentences. Additionally, ChatGPT can also offer useful and clear explanations. However, teachers found that ChatGPT 4.0 consistently outperformed ChatGPT 3.5 in providing error corrections and explanations.

Even though the Chinese data in the current version of ChatGPT is much smaller compared to the English data in ChatGPT, the outcomes are still very impressive. If Chinese data continues to grow in the future, it can be expected that ChatGPT-based Chinese grammar will become an indispensable tool for most Chinese teachers and learners.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

Chinese, grammar checkers, errors, ChatGPT, AI, feedback

DN 409: Virtual Reality / 46

Enhancing Students' English Debate Proficiency through Virtual Reality: A Quasi-experimental Study

Author: Xin Guo¹

Co-authors: Rong Yang¹; Hui Pang¹; Feiya Wang¹; Yilu Nie¹

¹ The Chinese University of Hong Kong, Shenzhen

The present study aims to explore the influence of Virtual Reality (VR) coupled with Artificial Intelligence (AI) feedback on the enhancement of English debate performances among English as a Foreign Language (EFL) students. Scheduled between January and May 2024, the research initiative seeks to address the prevalent issue of performance anxiety during English debates, a significant hurdle for many EFL learners. The integration of VR technology with AI-driven feedback promises an authentic and immersive debate practice environment, potentially reducing anxiety and bolstering debate capabilities.

The investigation will adopt a quasi-experimental design and engage approximately 300 first-year university students over a 12-week period. Participants will be divided equally into two cohorts: one receiving state-of-the-art VR and AI-assisted debate training, and the other subjected to traditional debate training methodologies. The study's multifaceted data collection strategy will comprise preand post-intervention assessments to measure improvements in debate performance and changes in anxiety levels, supplemented by classroom observations and focus group interviews for qualitative insight.

Anticipated results from this study include a comprehensive evaluation of VR and AI's efficacy in improving English debate proficiency and in the reduction of anxiety among EFL students. These insights are expected to significantly inform the development of debate curricula, the enhancement of teacher training programs, and the establishment of an advanced online debate course that incorporates VR and AI technologies. The study's implications extend beyond immediate pedagogical applications, contributing to the burgeoning research on educational technology in language education. By providing empirical data on the effectiveness of VR and AI in debate training, the study aims to revolutionize EFL debate instruction and establish a new benchmark for interactive, technology-driven language learning environments.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

English debate proficiency, anxiety levels, VR technology, AI-driven feedback, quasi-experimental design DN 412: AI for Teaching / 48

Teachers should let learners examine the output of AI translation

Author: Toshiko Oda¹

¹ Tokyo Keizai University

Issue: It is now relatively easy to produce speech drafts in English by using AI translation(machine translation & translation by generative AI). Nevertheless, such speech drafts would not make much sense if students do not understand them well. Students may be able to ask questions to generative AI if there is anything unclear about the drafts. However, generative AI is useless unless they raise questions, and it remains silent if they don't. Also, most learners need encouragement from their teachers to actively raise questions. This is where the presenter suggests that the division of labor between AI and teachers is effective.

Activity: The presenter let college students whose English proficiency levels are CEFR A1-A2 prepare speech drafts for their short presentations in English by using DeepL (free version). They were required to raise questions about the English produced by DeepL to enhance their comprehension, and the presenter answered those questions. The students gave presentations in class without looking at their speech drafts.

Research: The presenter categorized the students' questions. The presenter also checked if the questions could have been appropriately answered by ChatGPT(3.5).

Results: The presentations were successful overall despite the limited English proficiency of the students. It was found that they had relatively basic questions, many of which could be solved by Chat-GPT. It was also found that some questions were not appropriately answered by ChatGPT.

Implications: An important role of English teachers in the era of AI is to provide opportunities for learners to actively examine and digest the output of AI translation. It will help them be independent learners of English. Teachers can also take questions that are not solved by generative AI.

Keywords:

AI translation, teachers'role

DN 404: Innovative Teaching Using Technology / 49

Using computer-mediated communication in the EFL classrooms: Focusing on authenticity and meaningfulness

Author: Chiung-Chiuen Chen¹

¹ National Penghu University of Science and Technology

Over the past decade, research has given the substantial evidence of the efficacy of technologymediated language learning. Computer-mediated communication (CMC) featured with the concept of authenticity –uses of communicative tools and platforms, has become a key issue to be explored in various second language (L2) learning contexts. The main objective of this paper is to present an English course design via CMC for supporting communicative approaches to language teaching (e.g. task-based instruction) and learning, and facilitating EFL spoken and written performances. Participants were 103 non-English-major students, consisting of students from 11 departments from 3 intact classes at a public offshore university in Taiwan. Their English proficiency level ranged from A1 to B1 in CEFR (female= 29%, male = 71%). These students took a required English course in fall semester of 2022 (freshmen) till fall semester of 2023 (sophomores). Each semester lasted 18 weeks with 2 periods per week (50 minutes/ per period). The course was aimed at developing students'four language skills as well as TOEIC-related skills. In this course, CMC tools and platforms used included e-campus (the university's digital learning platform), ZUVIO (an online instant response system), e-mail, communication apps (e.g. Line), and other audio-visual tools. Students took pre- and post-listening and reading TOEIC-simulated tests in October 2022/2023 respectively. The results showed that there were no significantly differences between pre- and post-tests; however, the mean scores increased. In English performance, it was found that students improved in their speaking ability, including role-playing and presentation skills in English. Also, EFL students'attitudes and interests toward English learning were enhanced. This study had theoretical contributions and made some implications for pedagogical applications to communicative approaches of computer-assisted and technology-mediated language learning.

Key words: computer-mediated communication, EFL classroom, authenticity and meaningfulness, communicative approach

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

computer-mediated communication, EFL classroom, authenticity and meaningfulness, communicative approach

DW 305: AI for Teaching / 50

Prompt Engineering for English Language Teachers

Author: Brent Warner¹

¹ JALT CALL

This session is designed to equip educators with the skills to effectively use and understand prompting in AI platforms such as ChatGPT, Bard, and Bing. This interactive workshop will demystify the art and science of prompt engineering, focusing on how carefully constructed prompts can significantly enhance the quality of AI-generated content in an English Language Teaching setting. We'll dive into the mechanics of various AI platforms, demonstrating how nuanced prompting leads to more accurate, relevant, and engaging responses, especially when tailored to the needs of English language learners.

Participants will engage in hands-on activities (bring your devices!) to practice crafting prompts that yield desired outcomes, learning to navigate common challenges and optimize AI interactions. We'll explore strategies for using AI as a teaching aid, from generating customized content to reshaping grammar exercises and beyond. The workshop will also address ethical considerations, ensuring that educators are prepared to use these powerful tools responsibly.

By the end of this session, attendees will have a solid foundation in prompt engineering, empowering them to harness AI's potential to enrich their teaching and offer students a more personalized and effective learning experience. Whether you're brand new to AI or looking to refine your skills, this workshop will provide valuable insights and practical techniques to elevate your educational practice.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

AI, Promp Engineering, EdTech, Pedagogy

DN 408: Mixed Topics / 51

Integrating Virtual Reality Tour Tasks into EFL Telecollaboration

Author: Hsin-chou Josephine Huang¹

¹ National Taiwan Ocean University

This study brings together ELF learners from Taiwan and Poland, tasking them with co-creating virtual reality tours, to determine the effects of this type of engagement on intercultural learning, motivation, and multimodal literacies. Eight graduate students drawn from a TEFL methodology seminar at a national university in northern Taiwan were paired with an equal number of MA preservice teachers from a public university in Poland. During the 12-week interaction, participants communicated weekly through Zoom to complete three-stage telecollaborative tasks: information exchange on scenic spots with cultural significance of potential interest to international partners; comparison and contrast of one selected tour site from Taiwan and one from Poland; and co-creation of virtual reality tours of the sites using VR software. Results showed that participants learned about the target culture, increased interest in it, and gained appreciation for cultural differences. They also became more confident in expressing themselves through authentic interaction. The co-construction process enhanced their motivation for learning, improved intercultural competence, and cultivated digital literacies. The study serves as a blueprint for integrating virtual reality technology into intercultural exchange projects.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

virtual reality; telecollaboration; intercultural competence; EFL

DN 402: AI in Learning / 52

Exploring the Potential of ChatGPT in Developing English Learning Materials

Author: Shudong Wang¹

Co-author: Jun Iwata 1

¹ Shimane University

This research investigates the feasibility of using ChatGPT to create authentic English learning materials. Our hypothesis posits that if neither teachers nor students can distinguish between ChatGPTgenerated and human-made materials, ChatGPT could be a viable tool for future language learning material development.

We first compared the time required to develop similar materials using ChatGPT versus traditional human methods. To assess the quality of the ChatGPT-created content, we invited six teachers (three native and three non-native English speakers) to evaluate and identify ChatGPT-generated versus human-made materials. Additionally, 83 students participated in judging the quality of the same materials. Results indicated that native English-speaking teachers (with 80% accuracy) were better at distinguishing ChatGPT content from human-made materials, compared to non-native English teachers (40%) and Japanese students (45%). Comments from five teachers and 72 students were analyzed using the qualitative data analysis software NVivo. The findings from the data led to three key conclusions: ChatGPT is a quicker and more effective tool for developing English learning materials;

the quality of ChatGPT-developed materials is comparable to that of human-made resources, with learners often unable to tell the difference; both teachers and students raised concerns about the potential lack of personal feelings and monotony in ChatGPT-generated content, suggesting that such materials should be reviewed by human teachers.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

ChatGPT, potential, English learning materials development, quality, teacher and students' perception

DN 406: Research and Development / 55

Understanding Individual Learners' Use of AI in English academic writing: Social and Contextual Influences

Author: Wendy Li^{None}

The increasing prevalence of Artificial Intelligence (AI) technology has constituted a new reality in language learners'lives, presenting unprecedented opportunities and challenges in language education (Kohnke et al., 2023). In the field of L2 writing, while more studies (Barrot, 2023) have begun to examine the use of AI tools among second-language writers and its impact on learners'writing competencies, little is still known about individual learners'decision-making processes regarding the use of AI technology in completing writing assignments.

Conducted at a Sino-foreign cooperative university in China, this study investigates the social and contextual conditions that influence individual learners'use of AI in EAP (English for Academic Purposes) courses. Drawing from Darvin and Norton's (2015, 2023) investment model, the study documents three first-year Chinese students'English academic writing practices over two academic terms. Data from semi-structured interviews, writing process recordings, assignments, reflective writing journals, course materials, and university policies on AI usage were analyzed using thematic analysis.

The findings reveal that learners'engagement with AI tools in academic writing is socially mediated, and influenced by their identities, perceived resources, and ideologies about AI use. In particular, despite the course policy prohibiting AI use in all assignments, three participants selectively used AI tools at different stages of their academic writing. Their use of AI tools was affected by how they positioned themselves (e.g., being the owner of one's own work), identified accessible and useful resources (e.g., the writing center, peer reviewers), and navigated ideologies (e.g., competing ideologies from different course instructors) about AI use in their learning environment.

This research underscores the complexities surrounding AI use in academic writing and emphasizes the need for language instructors to recognize learners'identity needs, access to resources, and existing competing ideologies about this contentious technology when developing policies and regulations for AI use in courses.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

identity, investment model, AI use in academic writing assignments, affordances of AI,

Quo Vadis Language Teaching for STEM and Management Students in Times of AI: Experiences, Strategies, and Future Perspectives

Author: Denise Lichtig¹

¹ Technical University of Munich

This presentation offers a comprehensive view of our experiences with AI integration in university language teaching, our strategic approach, and envisioned developments in competency-based language education, primarily focusing on STEM and Management students at the Language Center of the Technical University of Munich, Germany.

Our AI integration approach prioritizes preparing students for their professional journey by actively utilizing electronic text optimization tools in assessments. These challenges aim to encourage students to identify and address AI-generated weaknesses, fostering critical thinking and adaptability to evolving AI technologies.

Central to our strategy is the understanding and effective use of AI-based technologies, particularly ChatGPT. Since autumn 2022, we have been continuously collaborating with colleagues and AI-savvy teaching experts, actively refining our competencies through experimental implementation of ChatGPT in teaching. By integrating ChatGPT into Moodle, we aim to provide automated support, making language learning accessible and personalized for our students.

While embracing AI, we are committed to updating curricula to equip students with the competence to use these tools thoughtfully. Our focus lies in nurturing critical thinking and collaboration during language and knowledge engagement.

In conclusion, this abstract illuminates our experiences with AI integration, proactive strategies, and commitment to harnessing AI's potential. We aim to empower STEM and Management students to confidently navigate AI-driven language learning, envisioning a future where AI enhances education while preserving the human touch in teaching and learning. As we forge ahead, our vision for language education involves leveraging AI to enrich the learning experience and enable students to thrive in both academic and professional endeavors. By striking a balance between technology and human guidance, we aim to equip our students with the necessary skills to become proficient and reflective users of AI tools.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

AI, Higher Education Institutions, Teaching, Learning, Management

DN 406: Research and Development / 58

Designing an AI-Based Programme for Emerging Bi- and Multilinguals

Author: Gulnara Sadykova¹

Co-author: Albina Kayumova¹

¹ Kazan Federal University

While artificial intelligence (AI) technologies have started being integrated into language education programmes offered at universities, secondary and elementary schools, little do we know if and how they could be introduced for language learners on the pre-school level. Just as with other types of information technologies, application of AI in early childhood education programmes raises many

questions among doctors, educators and parents. This presentation will focus on early stages of designing an AI-based project aimed at early bilinguals and multilinguals aged 4 to 7.

For this research and development project, a small group of experts in language learning, early childhood education and AI technologies conducted a pilot study in which they surveyed and interviewed educators working on speech development of emerging bi- and multilinguals in state-funded and private preschools. Participants of the study were asked to assess their attitude and skills related to AI, as well as to reflect on a newly designed AI-based programme for speech development in a multilingual and multicultural context.

The presentation will discuss preliminary results that speak for the necessity 1) to carefully align speech development curriculum of the native language with the curriculum for developing a second (third) language, 2) to apply CLIL technologies by integrating the study of the world (i.e. topics related to geography, history, and science) with speech development classes, 3) to design AI-based language activities that would develop children's intercultural competences, creativity and critical thinking skills, and 4) to counteract negative attitudes towards AI among educators and parents. The discussion of factors that support or hinder designing the content and form of the AI-based programme for bi- and multilinguals will be of interest to early childhood educators, language teachers working with young learners and those involved in developing technology-based educational applications for children.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

artificial intelligence, early childhood education, language acquisition, bilingualism, multilingualism

DN 407: Professional Development and Teacher Training / 59

Digital Games in the Language Classroom: Designing Better Curricula Through Exploratory Factor Analysis

Author: Kevin Wrobetz¹

¹ Kobe Gakuin University

Digital game-based language learning is a growing field of study which has begun to highlight the potential of digital games as language learning tools. Much of the literature in the field has addressed the potential benefit of engagement outside the classroom with digital games for second language acquisition. However, when digital games are used in the controlled environment of a foreign language classroom, the enormous variety of commercially produced digital games makes designing objectively effective digital gaming curricula more challenging. Furthermore, what has failed to be addressed in much of the relevant literature in the field is whether variables such as a player's target language ability, perception of digital gaming, and personal gaming habits influence student performance in courses using digital games as a method of instruction. One way of approaching how to effectively use digital games as a language learning tool in the classroom is through multivariate data analysis such as exploratory factor analysis (EFA) to identify latent factors correlated with variables such as performance on tests, gaming habits, and attitudes towards a digital gaming curriculum. This study attempts to address this issue by showing how EFA can help educators interested in using digital games to not only better understand classroom data but also to design better curricula. The study itself was conducted over a three-year period in university-level EFL courses and the curriculum was based on the smartphone edition of the single-player role-playing game Life Is Strange (Dontnod Entertainment, 2015). The study identified three latent factors correlated with the variables of vocabulary acquisition from the game, comprehension of the in-game narrative content, gaming habits, and the perceptions of smartphone games as language learning tools. This presentation will demonstrate how these results may help to design more effective lessons which use digital games as an instructional tool.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

Digital game-based language learning, curriculum design, multivariate analysis, exploratory factor analysis, smartphone gaming

DN 402 / 60

Developing reading fluency using a device or paper: is there a difference?

Author: TJ Boutorwick¹

Co-author: Gavin Brooks²

¹ Sanyo Gakuen University

² Kyoto Sangyo University

Fluency development is an important aspect of second language vocabulary acquisition. Spending time developing fluency helps to increase the speed that words can be accessed. In the context of reading, it is important to develop this fast access to vocabulary to avoid the vicious cycle of reading discussed in Nuttall (1982) and Coady (1997). One way to develop reading fluency is through speed reading. In this type of reading, learners read simplified material, ideally without the presences of new language features. Previous research has found that learners can increase their reading speed in as few as 20 speed-reading sessions, with each session lasting no more than 10 minutes (Chang, 2010; Chung & Nation, 2006; Tran 2012). Traditionally, speed reading has been implemented using printed copies of readings. However, it is now possible to supplement, or even replace, paper readings with stories that can be read on electronic devices. Nonetheless, little research has been conducted which compares these two different modes of reading in terms of their facilitative effects on L2 reading fluency development. This presentation presents the results from a study which examined the extent that medium of speed reading (paper versus mobile device) facilitates L2 reading speed development. Sixty-eight university students enrolled in a private university in Japan volunteered for the study. Half of the students read short stories using ESL Speed Readings, a free mobile app, while the other half practiced speed reading using paper copies. After six weeks, the two groups switched mediums and read for six more weeks. The presenter will discuss the results and implications of the study.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

Fluency, Reading, Mobile Assisted Language Learning, Free Software

DN 402: AI in Learning / 63

ChatGPT as a Tool for Authentic Dialogue Evaluation and Creation in EFL Video Production

Author: Bethany Lacy¹

This study explores the integration of generative AI, specifically ChatGPT, into the scriptwriting process for English as a Foreign Language (EFL) learners engaged in video production. Previous research indicates that video production in a second language (L2) enhances language learning (Lam

¹ Juntendo University

& Yunus, 2023) and digital literacy (Lacy, 2018). Additionally, generative AI technologies have been shown to improve L2 learning capabilities (Ruan et al., 2021). This study combines these areas by investigating how ChatGPT can assist EFL learners in writing authentic dialogues. The participants were university students enrolled in a Content and Language Integrated Learning (CLIL) curriculum. They had diverse levels of experience in video production—mostly regarding social media. However, none had prior experience in scriptwriting or video production in English. The students had also never been trained in English on how to write prompts to ChatGPT. During the study, the participants were required to write their own dialogue for the video without the assistance of AI. Once they wrote the dialogue, the students were instructed on how to input commands to ChatGPT to provide feedback on their dialogue and more natural alternatives, contributing to more effective language learning and digital literacy development in the context of video production.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

digital literacy, video production, script writing, ChatGPT commands

DW 304: AI for Learning / 64

Exploring the Efficacy of ChatGPT's Audio Features in Language Learning

Author: Steven MacWhinnie¹

¹ Hirosaki Gakuin University

With the increased interest in integrating artificial intelligence (AI) into language education, this practice-based research project explored the use of ChatGPT's audio functionality to enhance Japanese students' oral communication skills. Japanese university students often complain that they have little chance to practice their English skills. To address this issue, the following research question was devised: Can ChatGPT effectively serve as a conversation partner for Japanese students aiming to improve their oral communication skills?

Students participated in interactive sessions with ChatGPT, where they were required to interact through the speech-to-text function of the ChatGPT smartphone app. Following this, the students were given a reflective survey. This reflective process aimed to draw out students'opinions on and feelings about their interactions. This presentation is based on that data and will shed light on the students' perceptions of communication with an AI interface. The presentation will begin by explaining how students were taught to use the chatbot, followed by an analysis of their reflections on that experience. Next, the viability of employing AI chatbots as language learning tools will be discussed. As AI technology progresses, there are broad implications for implementation in educational settings, this presentation will present an example of one way to use an AI chatbots for oral communication and propose some recommendations for the integration of AI technology in language learning classrooms.

Keywords:

Artificial Intelligence, Language Learning, ChatGPT, Conversation Partners, Pedagogical Implementation.

DN 406: Research and Development / 65

Enhancing Cross-Cultural Exchange with AI: ChatGPT's Role in an International Online Student Conference

Author: Brent Jones¹

¹ Konan University, Hirao School of Management

This presentation explores the innovative use of ChatGPT in a research project that brought together Japanese, Indonesian, and Filipino university students for a one-day online conference focused on global issues. Faculty advisors worked with ChatGPT in preparing students for this event, providing language support and cultural insights, and assisting in the development of discussion topics and materials. The conference began with a 30-minute ice-breaking session centered on culture and interests, and then moved to two 40-minute student-led discussion sessions on global challenges. Postconference, ChatGPT was instrumental in analyzing both quantitative and qualitative data from a follow-up questionnaire. This survey focused on participants' experiences and perceptions of each stage of the conference. ChatGPT's advanced language processing capabilities were utilized to interpret open-ended responses, providing deeper insights into students' cultural understandings and engagement levels. This interactive talk will highlight how ChatGPT enhanced the overall preparation and analysis processes, contributing to a richer, more effective cross-cultural exchange. We will share findings on the impact of this AI-assisted approach on students' communication skills, cultural awareness, and comprehension of global issues. The session aims to showcase the potential of AI tools like ChatGPT in enriching international educational experiences and facilitating in-depth analysis of educational research data. Attendees will gain valuable insights into leveraging AI for enhancing global citizenship and intercultural collaboration in academic settings.

Keywords:

International Online Student Conference, ChatGPT, Intercultural Communication

Posters Session / 67

Integrating Virtual Reality into Task-Based Language Learning

Author: Nami Takase¹

¹ Shizuoka University

Utilizing virtual reality (VR) yields reported benefits in foreign language acquisition, offering a detailed content presentation unavailable through traditional methods and enabling experiences previously deemed dangerous, time-consuming, or cost-prohibitive (Feng et al., 2018; van Ginkel et al., 2019). Conversely, authentic task-based learning is recognized as advantageous in foreign language acquisition, with recent emphasis on authenticity for task activities, grounded in the belief that a disconnect between learning situations and real-life language use hinders effective communication.

This practice-based presentation will illustrate the seamless integration of VR into task-based language activities, aligning with language learning objectives. The VR task involves taking learners on a virtual tour of their favorite places, requiring them to introduce and describe these locations to their peers using a map application. The task, set at the A2 level of the Common European Framework of Reference for Languages (CEFR) to match learners' proficiency, employs the "Oculus Quest 2" VR headset and a map app incorporating Google Street View into VR, chosen for its user-friendly interface, even for VR beginners. Practical tips, including head-mount display (HMD) setup and management with multiple students, will be shared, along with detailed directions for instructors initiating their first HMD-based activity.

Survey results from learners will be presented, introducing the impact of the authentic VR environment on independent engagement and its role in facilitating output activities. Additionally, the survey outcomes will elucidate shifts in motivation toward foreign language tasks induced by the immersive VR experience.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

Task-based Language Learning, Virtual Reality, Speaking

DN 404 / 68

THE SUCCESSFUL USE OF AI FOR ENGLISH TEACHERS'PRO-FESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Author: Lailatul Nurjanah¹

Co-authors: Bambang Yudi Cahyono¹; Nunung Suryati¹

¹ Universitas Negeri Malang

Teachers are required to continuously develop their professional duties. However, in practice, many problems affect the traditional way of teachers' professional development (TPD) such as the inability to reduce the high levels of stress due to overflowing administrative tasks, the lack of competence to integrate technology in learning, limited digital literacy skills to increase knowledge, and time construct to have continuous professional development (CPD). Nowadays, the use of Artificial Intelligence (AI) is considered a way to solve these problems. This research aims to investigate how AI is used in the TPD. This research employed a mobile-based training certification framework by Dahri. This qualitative case study design involved six in-service teachers who had graduated from the Teacher Professional Education (Pendidikan Profesi Guru/PPG) program at a reputable university in Indonesia. The subjects were chosen based on the result of a preliminary study about inservice teachers who use AI for their TPD practice. Interviews were conducted to gather data for the study. Data from the interview were analyzed thematically. The findings indicate that AI provides an inclusive basis for transforming the TPD for several reasons. First, AI supports teachers' personality competence by helping teachers lighten their administrative tasks so they can perform more enthusiastically, freshly, and friendly to provide comfortable learning for students. Second, AI also assists teachers' pedagogical competence by offering easy integration of technology in teaching and learning activities. Third, AI upgrades teachers' professional competence by providing unlimited resources that are easy to access by teachers. Lastly, AI intensifies teachers' social competence since it provides opportunities for teachers in various regions to connect with each other. This study implies that AI is important to be used in today's TPD programs since its adaptability and flexibility can help teachers keep updated with technological and educational advancements. Since this study has a limitation by not stating a particular AI type being investigated for TPD, it is recommended that further studies investigate a specific AI type in the TPD practice.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

Artificial intelligence (AI); teachers'professional development (TPD); Teachers Professional Education (PPG) program

Posters Session / 69

Applying Error Analysis Results of Sarcasm Detection: Humans vs NLP Models

Author: Oliver Cakebread-Andrews¹

¹ Kwansei Gakuin University

Figurative language in general, and sarcasm in particular, is a difficult concept for learners of English to fully grasp and successfully use (Wallace, 2014; Kim and Lantolf, 2016). While correct understanding of sarcasm may not have significant application in day-to-day business, for example, it is nonetheless a regular part of many native speaker's language usage (Angraini, 2017). Some of the many reasons that people use sarcasm include criticising, in a less-threatening manner (Claridge, 2011, Tracy, 2002), for stress-relief (Ducharme, 1994), in order to persuade others (Sopory and Dillary, 2002) and to improve relationships with others (Haiman, 1993). For non-native speakers (NNS) who intend to ingratiate themselves in the culture, as well as the language, of first-language-English communities, there are many benefits to understanding it (Genc and Bada, 2005; Kuo and Lai 2006). Despite maybe being consider the gold standard, native speakers also can struggle with accurate sarcasm detection (Abercrombie, 2016.

As it turns out, natural language processing (NLP) models also struggle to always detect whether utterances are sarcastic or not (Wallace, 2014). This study aimed to answer the following research questions:

What patterns can be found through error analysis of sarcasm detection between NLP models and native and non-native speakers of English?

What applications of these patterns are there for language education?

Three models (RoBERTa, DeBERTa and a logistic regression model) were used to analyse 300 comments from the FigLang 2020 Reddit Dataset, with and without context. The same 300 comments were also given to 39 NNS and 30 native speakers, and the results were compared. The key findings will be shown in this poster presentation.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

Natural Language Processing, Error Analysis, Sentiment Analysis, Data-Driven Learning

DN 411: Mixed Sessions / 71

Creating an Innovative Partnership: Insights from a Hybrid CLIL Course in Engineering and Science

Author: Barry Kavanagh¹

Co-author: Maria Vassileva²

¹ Tohoku University

² Nagoya University

In Europe, Content and Language Integrated Learning (CLIL) is conducted by non-native Englishspeaking content specialists who teach their academic discipline in English. This 'hard'version of CLIL has been considered difficult to implement at Japanese universities as many content specialists lack the pedagogical skills and teacher training. One way to bridge these difficulties, and a notion that is underrepresented within the Japanese university context, is to create a collaboration between the content teacher and language specialist, which includes team teaching, course planning and materials creation.

This presentation aims to give an overview of a collaboration between a language and science professor who formulated a partnership to teach a CLIL course for Engineering and Science majors at a Japanese national university.

The course was delivered in a hybrid format, with the language teacher physically present in the classroom and the content teacher participating via Zoom and integrating web-based content into the course design. In creating the course syllabus, the language teacher collaborated closely with the engineering professors from Tohoku University who provided a list of lesson topics along with

suggested videos for instructional use. These videos were then used as the starting point to create lessons by the language teacher with advice and input from a science professor at Nagoya University who was also invited to team teach the course.

The classes incorporated authentic tutorial videos, online simulations, and original materials, including whiteboard explainer videos and AI-generated imagery for online handouts. This talk aims to provide insights into the process of material creation and delivery within a Computer-Assisted Language Learning environment and how the collaborative efforts of the language and content specialists, each with predefined roles, contributed to the successful teaching of the CLIL course.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

CLIL, Hybrid delivery, Collaboration, Team teaching

DN 404 / 72

Implementation of PL-TaRL to improve vocational students' writing learning outcomes

Author: Muhammad Idris Effendi¹

Co-authors: Widiyanti Widiyanti¹; Nunung Nurjanah¹; Lismi Animatul Chisbiyah; Lailatul Nurjanah¹

¹ Universitas Negeri Malang

This research aimed to improve the English writing skills of students using a Personalized Learning strategy integrated with Teaching at the Right Level (PL-TaRL). Personal Learning (PL) tailors writing instruction to students' unique needs, emphasizing engagement. Teaching at the Right Level (TaRL) evaluates students' current level and provides gradual complexity to promote improvement in writing ability.

The researchers implemented PL-TaRL through an English writing LMS on a Google site to create personalized learning plans, accommodating diverse needs and levels in a unified platform. The LMS provided choices of materials and exercises adapted from an English textbook supplied by the Indonesian Minister of Education and combined with materials created by the researchers using generative AI such as ChatGPT.

To determine the students' levels, researchers conducted diagnostic tests, and the results were used to guide students in choosing materials and exercises. The researchers also kept adjusting the content and difficulty of the LMS content based on individual performance and progress. They provided students with personalized feedback, ensuring effective and dynamic learning for great writing improvements. The students were from a vocational high school in Indonesia. Data obtained from pre and post-tests and formative portfolio assessments indicated improvements in students' written English. Before the strategy's implementation, most students had writing skill levels equal to the A2 level of CEFR, which then increased to the B2 level after the strategy implementation. This implies that the PL-TaRL learning strategy has positive impacts on students' writing abilities since it provides students with level-based materials and personalized feedback.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

PL-TaRL, English Writing Course LMS, Google Site, Vocational high school

DN 411: Mixed Sessions / 73

An Introduction to Corpus Technology in the Artificial Age

Author: Sadie Nitta^{None}

Corpus technology has been noted as a facilitative tool in data-driven learning (DDL) due to its advanced search capabilities and access to vast linguistic databases. Despite its potential, many teachers shy away from direct corpus use, which involves teacher- and learner-corpus interaction. Based on teacher and learner feedback, this is due to the overwhelming amount of corpus data and unfamiliarity with corpus query functions and techniques. This 30-minute practice-based presentation aims to bridge the gap between teachers and the evolving landscape of corpus technology in the artificial age. First, I will provide a brief introduction to the different types of corpora available for teachers as an open resource. Next, I will discuss some corpus basics using the Corpus of Contemporary American English (COCA) and Laurence Anthony's AntConc software. Then, I will demonstrate three simple ways to incorporate its technology in the classroom. Finally, this presentation concludes with a set of materials for a corpus-informed lesson following the Illustration-Induction-Interaction (I-I-I) model.

Keywords:

corpus, data-driven learning, open resources

DN 402: AI in Learning / 74

Developing a Chatbot for EFL Learners: Process and Insights

Author: Shu-Li Lai¹

Co-authors: Hao-Jan Howard Chen²; Jer-Hong Suen²; Yi-Ru Huang²

¹ National Taipei University of Business, Taiwan

² National Taiwan Normal University, Taiwan

In an EFL environment, opportunities to interact with native speakers in English are often limited. However, the rise of generative AI has opened up new possibilities for EFL learners. Chatbots can now interact with learners in a more human-like manner. In this presentation, we will introduce a chatbot we developed: CoolE Bot. This English chatbot, powered by ChatGPT, integrates Text-to-Speech (TTS) and automatic speech recognition (ASR) functions, featuring design elements specifically tailored for EFL learners. CoolE Bot includes themes and tasks that provide guidance and context for student interactions. An example is the "Invited Talk"feature, where students select chatbots representing various professions. This allows them to engage in domain-specific conversations and to explore their career interests, enriching their learning experience.

CoolE Bot was developed over three phases. Phase 1 involved developing text and voice chatting, sentence translation, TTS playback, and AI-assisted responses. In Phase 2, we conducted a study where students used CoolE Bot, and we improved it based on feedback. Phrase 3 added new features such as adjustable TTS speed, response correction, and chat log downloads.

About the study in Phrase 2, five college students were invited to use CoolE Bot's Invited Talk section through text and voice communication. They then completed evaluation questionnaires and received interviews to provide feedback. The initial results showed that CoolE Bot's responses were clear, and the interface was intuitive. They also identified areas for further improvements such as adding more chatbot roles, topics, and tasks, and refining the ASR mechanism to improve the overall user experience.

Keywords:

AI; ChatGPT; theme-based English chatbot; EFL learning; TTS; ASR

DN 412: AI for Teaching / 75

Beyond Basics: A Five-Week Deep-Dive into AI for University Language Students

Authors: Euan Bonner¹; Erin Frazier²; Ryan Lege¹

¹ Kanda University of International Studies

² Meiji University

How do we handle Large Language Model (LLM) AI in the classroom? Many approach it by creating policies that either restrict, ban, or limit its use to specific AI-focused activities. This can be effective in the short term, however, many underestimate the effect this technology will have on language learners'futures as global digital citizens. Additionally, if AI is approached through limited implementations, like single activities, this can lead to an inflated sense of what the technology can do while underselling its limitations. There is a need to dedicate extended class time to covering AI so that students understand the real affordances and pitfalls of the technology to make informed decisions about when and how to use it. Accordingly, this presentation will discuss the creation and implementation of a 10-lesson unit that has since been integrated into 1st and 2nd-year courses at multiple universities.

The unit introduces students to the AI landscape, starting with an overview of AI's history and explaining how LLMs work, highlighting their differences from traditional AI. It teaches students prompt engineering, then tasks them with creating a range of AI-generated media, including art, videos, audio, HTML pages, and web games. The lessons are structured following Highland's (2009) teaching-learning cycle. The unit features a final project where students design a local newspaper using AI. The evaluation focuses on their reflection and the effectiveness of their prompts rather than the product itself. Additionally, the unit delves into ethical considerations like fake news, job displacement, and academic integrity.

Additionally, the researchers developed a bespoke AI teaching assistant web-based chat application that was trained on the lesson plans and materials. The application allows students to converse with the AI assistant to review materials, get help with lesson vocabulary, and ask questions both in English and their native languages.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

AI, Large Language Models (LLMs), Curriculum Design, AI Tutors

DW 304: AI for Learning / 76

Exploring AI-Assisted Post-Editing Processes and Implications for Pedagogical Post-Editing Training

Author: Shuoyu Charlotte Wu¹

¹ Applied Linguistics and Language Studies, Chung Yuan Christian University

The recent development of neural machine translation has raised new questions regarding humanmachine tandem translation, with machine translation post-editing (MTPE) being one of the key issues. To address the gap created by the lack of process-oriented post-editing (PE) observations via neural machine translation systems, the current project explored post-editing processes undertaken by translation trainees using the cloud-based computer-assisted translation platform Termsoup. Employing a mixed quantitative and qualitative approach, the project examined post-editing processes through Shih's (2021) three-tier model where PE changes result from both text and communicative functions.

Ten translation trainees were assigned 12 post-editing tasks spanning three distinct text types (informative, expressive, operative) in two language directions (Ch-En & En-Ch) in an undergraduate translation course in Taiwan. The analysis focused on the trainees' post-editing changes and errors, particularly in relation to the dominant communicative elements/functions in different text types. The PE changes and errors are further interpreted in conjunction with the trainees' PE logs, interviews, and data derived from the average PE time and number for each translation segment.

Preliminary findings indicate that trainees demonstrated the ability to identify varied communicative functions across different text types, employing diverse strategies to tackle the tasks. However, not all PE changes were deemed appropriate or accurate. An examination of PE errors, efforts, and student self-reports reveals that trainees tended to rely more on machine translation when tasks were perceived as 'difficult to translate.' This is also the context where errors in machine translations might persist. Meanwhile, trainees displayed mixed attitudes towards machine-assisted translation. Some praised how MT-assisted translation reduced cognitive demands in deciphering source texts and provided lexical or grammatical support. Conversely, some argued that post-editing could be more cognitively taxing than translating from scratch.

Keywords:

Pedagogical post-editing, post-editing processes, a communicative model of post-editing

DN 413: AI for Learning / 78

Japanese university EFL students' practices and perceptions towards ChatGPT

Author: Gilbert Dizon¹

Co-authors: Jason Gold²; Ryan Barnes³

¹ *Himeji Dokkyo University*

² Kobe University

³ Nagoya University

While initial second language (L2) literature on ChatGPT was limited to descriptive articles that outlined the potential impact that the AI chatbot might have on the field, empirical research on the AI chatbot has begun to appear. For instance, researchers have examined the tool's effectiveness for L2 writing assessment (Mizumoto & Eguchi, 2023; Pfau et al., 2023) and L2 teachers' and students' perceptions of the generative AI chatbot (Jeon & Lee, 2023; Yan, 2023). Nonetheless, empirical L2 research on ChatGPT is still needed, particularly in the context of self-regulated language learning. Moreover, it is unknown how prevalent generative AI use is among L2 learners. This presentation reports on a survey-based study that fills these gaps in the literature by addressing the following two research questions:

1) What are Japanese university English as a foreign language (EFL) students' practices of ChatGPT for self-regulated L2 English learning?

2) What are Japanese university EFL students' perceptions of ChatGPT for self-regulated L2 English learning?

A mixed-method research design was utilized to answer these two research questions, with survey data being collected from two private universities and one national university in Japan. At the start of the fall 2023 semester, the survey was administered and a total of 521 respondents fully completed it. While qualitative analysis concerning the EFL students' perceptions of ChatGPT is still ongoing, quantitative analysis related to the students' practices has revealed some interesting findings. For

example, less than 25% of the participants (n =130) had used ChatGPT in their English studies. Summarizing information written in the English language and translation were the top reported uses of ChatGPT for L2 English learning. Full results of the research and the study's implications will be discussed during the presentation.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

artificial intelligence (AI), chatbot, self-regulated language learning, informal language learning

DN 408: Mixed Topics / 79

Exploring the Integration of GenAI Chatbots in an EFL Learning Environment: An Exploratory Study

Author: Szu-Yu Ruby Chen¹

Co-author: Chen-Wei Paul Lee²

¹ Department of Applied Linguistics and Language Studies, Chung Yuan Christian University

² Department of Information and Communication, Jinwen University of Science and Technology

When technology is integrated into educational environments, chatbots, as intelligent technological tools for learning assistance, garner widespread attention. However, despite the potential of chatbots in educational settings, there is relatively limited research on their application in guiding writing activities. Although current iterations of generative AI (GenAI) chatbots, such as ChatGPT, provide feedback on writing, how it facilitates EFL writing is still under-explored. This project aims to explore the efficacy of integrating ChatGPT in EFL writing and examine how EFL learners benefit from the GenAI feedback.

Thirty EFL college learners from a fundamental English composition class took part in the study. The learners were engaged in two in-class essay writing, producing two initial essay drafts (one cause-effect and one comparison). The learners then (1) revised the drafts using GenAI (ChatGPT) generated feedback produced based on the instruction given by the researcher, and (2) wrote a learning log, reflecting on how they revised the drafts based on the AI-generated feedback. The initial and revised drafts were compared regarding the development of topic sentences, the relevance of supporting ideas, the usage of academic language, and idea transition. The learning logs were coded for reflection episodes on topic sentences, supporting ideas, language usage, and idea transition.

The initial analysis of the learning logs indicated that the learners were able to identify the majority of their writing problems through the GenAI (ChatGPT) -generated feedback, particularly the language problems. The revised drafts were also better in language quality compared to the initial ones. The results thus suggest the potential of integrating GenAI chatbots to guide and facilitate English writing in an EFL learning environment.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

customerised generative AI chatbots, EFL writing skills, learning autonomy, language complexity

A systematic review on the use of Grammarly in L2 writing contexts

Author: John Gayed¹

Co-author: Gilbert Dizon²

- ¹ Waseda University
- ² Himeji Dokkyo University

The use of automated writing evaluation (AWE) in second language (L2) writing contexts has increased dramatically, as evidenced by the large body of research published on the topic over the past decade (e.g., Li, 2021; Link et al., 2022; Zhang, 2020). Considering this, several systematic reviews on AWE have been published (Ding & Zou, 2023; Ngo et al., 2022; Zhai & Ma, 2022). Nevertheless, none of these review studies has specifically focused on the use of Grammarly in L2 writing contexts. Grammarly is a popular intelligent writing assistant that offers real-time automated corrective feedback while writing, unlike other well-researched AWE systems such as Criterion and Pigai. Over the past several years, many studies have examined the use of Grammarly in L2 writing settings (e.g., Barrot, 2023; Dizon & Gayed, 2021; Ranalli, 2021; Yousofi, 2022). Yet, as aforementioned, no systematic reviews have exclusively focused on the use of Grammarly. Considering this research gap, this presentation reports on a systematic review study that investigates the specific trends, methodologies, and results in Grammarly research involving L2 learners. Two major databases (Web of Science and Scopus) were used to search for relevant peer-reviewed literature published between 2009 and 2023. A total of 25 studies met the inclusion criteria and thus were included in the analysis. Thematic analysis of these studies is still ongoing and will be reported during the presentation. Implications of the findings for pedagogy and research will also be discussed.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

automated writing evaluation, automated corrective feedback, intelligent writing assistant, second language writing

DN 408 / 81

Creating Interactive Digital Materials in the Paperless Era

Author: John Rothgerber¹

Co-author: Lucas Dickerson¹

Language teachers have long used paper-based handouts and worksheets in their classrooms for a range of purposes, including setting up and running communicative activities, delivering lesson content, and providing practice exercises. However, there has been a recent shift away from using paper in class in favor of electronic devices, such as laptops and tablets. In response, teachers have had to re-think how they approach classroom activities that traditionally relied on handouts. How can a teacher, for instance, best set up a find-someone-who interview activity without the use of paper? In this presentation, we provide an introduction and walkthrough of the powerful, versatile, and simple method of creating fillable PDF files. As we demonstrate, fillable PDFs overcome many of the limitations found in trying to deliver materials digitally through online learning management systems or by distributing digital word processing files to students. They allow teachers to easily implement the kind of interactive, communicative activities that have long been at the center of the language classroom. Furthermore, we demonstrate how generative AI tools such as ChatGPT can be used to quickly create properly-formatted classroom activities that can then be converted to fillable PDFs. The coupling of generative AI and fillable PDFs provides a powerful tool to teachers who may feel stranded in the paperless era.

¹ Kwansei Gakuin University

Keywords:

Teacher-Made Materials, Materials Design, Paperless Classroom, Fillable PDFs, Generative AI

DN 406: Research and Development / 84

Students' Insights on AI as a Writing Feedback Companion

Authors: Ashton Dawes¹; Mariia Melnikova¹

¹ Kanda University of International Studies

The ultimate goal of feedback in the writing process is to give students a chance to independently and critically analyze their own writing (Hyland & Hyland, 2006). The rise of generative artificial intelligence (AI) in classroom settings opens up the possibility of students using AI to ask questions about and receive feedback on their writing. However, how much students trust feedback from AI over their instructor, and to what extent is AI able to give quality feedback is yet unclear. This presentation will discuss students' perceptions of AI as a form of feedback within a writing class and seek to comprehend how these perceptions shift throughout the semester as students engage with AI-generated feedback. At the start and end of the semester, students were surveyed on their beliefs about AI's applicability inside the classroom, views on the accuracy of AI responses, and their attitudes about feedback. Students were tasked with utilizing any AI tool for feedback on their essay drafts. Reflection journals were used as a record of the specifics of their questions used to seek feedback and writing choices. Additionally, students have chances in class to seek feedback from their instructors or peers, and the differences in their perceptions of these processes have been surveyed. The outcomes offer insight into students' changing attitudes, knowledge, and practical use of AI in writing education. By examining the changes in students' perspectives over time, the presentation explores integrating AI into the writing classroom as a supportive tool for garnering feedback. The findings provide nuanced insights into learners' experiences, emphasizing the potential impact of AI on writing education and contributing to the ongoing discourse on the role of technology in the learning environment.

Hyland, K., & Hyland, F. (2006). Feedback on second language students'writing. Language Teaching, 39(2), 83–101. https://doi.org/10.1017/s0261444806003399

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

writing, feedback, generative AI, process writing

DW 305: AI for Teaching / 85

Empowering English Composition through ChatGPT

Author: Hiroyuki Obari¹

This presentation showcases a groundbreaking 28-week study conducted with twenty-five first-year and second-year students, exploring the efficacy of ChatGPT in enhancing English language skills, specifically in composition. The study rigorously tested the impact of ChatGPT on students' English proficiency, engaging them in a comprehensive, AI-integrated learning process.

¹ Globiz Professional University

Each week, students used ChatGPT to read and vocally practice short stories from Ririro's online collection, coupled with listening practices. The curriculum was structured in two phases: in the first half, students summarized these stories in about 100 words, and in the latter half, the summaries extended to approximately 200 words. These summaries were then refined using ChatGPT, providing an interactive and corrective feedback mechanism.

Key to the study was the submission of both the original drafts and the ChatGPT-revised manuscripts. Students conducted analyses on their errors, gaining insights into grammatical and structural aspects of English writing. Additionally, the revised texts were subjected to further scrutiny using tools like DeepL and Grammarly, refining the English quality. These final drafts were then used in text-to-speech applications for auditory reinforcement.

The study's conclusion featured a comprehensive survey, focusing on students' perceptions of Chat-GPT's role in their learning. A concluding survey will evaluate the students' perceptions of Chat-GPT's impact on their learning process. Preliminary findings indicate significant improvements in various areas: composition skills (64%), idea generation (72%), grammar and structure (68%), vocabulary enrichment (72%), overall satisfaction with the integration of ChatGPT in English teaching (76%), and the value of feedback received (80%).

This presentation will delve into how AI, specifically ChatGPT, can be effectively harnessed to elevate English composition and language proficiency, highlighting methodologies, student engagement, and the transformative potential of AI in language education.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

ChatGPT, English Composition, AI-Integrated Learning, Feedback Mechanism, Language Proficiency

DN 413: AI for Learning / 86

GenAI Usage and Perceptions –A Comparative Analysis of Two Surveys

Author: Bradley Irwin¹

¹ Kyoritsu Women's University

Generative AI (GenAI) is rapidly advancing language education by providing innovative learning tools. Understanding its adoption within academic contexts, particularly among university students in Japan, is vital to fostering the integration of GenAI in language learning courses and realizing its full educational potential. The research described in this presentation explores how students in Japan are adopting GenAI tools such as ChatGPT, reflecting on their current and anticipated use, and addressing underlying concerns about accuracy and ethical use. Results from two surveys, conducted in October 2023 and April 2024, will be analyzed to compare changes in students' perceptions and usage of GenAI.

In the initial survey of 101 first and second-year university students in Japan, 94.8% were aware of generative AI (GenAI) like ChatGPT, yet 60.8% weren't using it for study, sighting concerns over accuracy (47.3%) and ethics (31.7%) as main deterrents. Those who were using it did so for research (70%), idea generation (47.5%), and writing (35%). Despite these hesitations, 68% expect to use GenAI in the future, foreseeing benefits in time-saving and research efficiency. The initial survey pointed to a gap between awareness and practical use, and a hopeful outlook for future integration.

The follow-up survey hopes to uncover any significant changes in the use and perception of GenAI relating to study habits and whether the concerns over accuracy and ethics have been alleviated. The anticipated comparative analysis will be particularly beneficial for educators, curriculum developers, educational policymakers, and AI technologists who are at the forefront of integrating cutting-edge AI tools into learning and teaching methodologies. Participants will gain invaluable insights into the evolving student attitudes toward GenAI, which can inform the development of more effective, ethically sound educational practices and AI applications.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

Generative AI (GenAI), Language education, Student perception and adoption, Academic integration, Study habits

DN 406 / 87

Foreign Language Anxiety During Synchronous-Online and Faceto-Face Classes

Author: Xuehong (Stella) He¹

¹ Swansea University, UK

It is well acknowledged that the COVID-19 global pandemic has resulted in unignorable changes to almost every aspect of people's life, including foreign language education (UNESCO, 2020). Different from traditional online education that is often planned ahead with preparation, the abrupt transition to online education during COVID-19 has placed great pressure on foreign language teachers (MacIntyre et al., 2020). Similarly, students may have experienced foreign language anxiety (FLA) further in online classes during COVID-19 (Moser et al., 2021; Russell, 2020), due to isolation from teachers and peers (Hurd, 2007). Despite continuing interest in FLA, research is still lacking in directly comparing FLA between online and face-to-face classes (although see Resnik et al., 2023). This study aims to fill in this gap by adopting a quasi-experimental, within-subject design to compare the effects of synchronous-online and face-to-face learning contexts. Specifically, this study explores FLA levels, coping strategies, and their relationships as the same group of students moved from synchronous-online to face-to-face English language classes during COVID-19.

The FLA levels of 47 undergraduate students in a Japanese university were tracked throughout 14 weeks, with 3 waves of data collected from each of the 7-week, synchronous-online and face-to-face phases respectively, using the well-established Foreign Language Classroom Anxiety Scale (Horwitz et al., 1986). Students'strategies to cope with FLA were also recorded with the recent FLA Self-regulatory Strategy Scale (Guo et al., 2018). Results from statistical analyses showed that students experienced lower FLA levels in the face-to-face than the synchronous-online phase, and that students used the Avoidance strategies less often than the other five categories of strategies, namely, Cognitive, Management, Affective, Social, and Appraisal. It was also found that students with higher FLA levels tended to use the Avoidance and Affective strategies more often. Theoretical and pedagogical implications of the current findings will be discussed.

Keywords:

Foreign Language Anxiety, FLA Coping Strategies, Synchronous Online Classes

DN 408: Mixed Topics / 88

The NGSL Project: 10 Years of Helping EFL Learners to Succeed

Author: Charles Browne¹

¹ Meiji Gakuin University

This presentation introduces 7 open-source, corpus-derived high frequency vocabulary word lists known collectively as the New General Service List Project which were developed by the presenter to help meet the needs of ESL/EFL learners. It will then go on to introduce a large and growing number of free, pedagogically-driven online tools, apps and resources for helping to utilize these lists for teaching, learning, assessment, materials creation and research. The tools include gamified flashcards, an NGSL-specific Wordle game, a video-concordancing study tool, new online placement and achievement tests, text creation tools, and a brand-new AI-powered text profiling tool which helps teachers to generate and then simplify texts to the level of their students.

With an eye towards efficiency, each word list was made to be as short as possible (between 600-2800 words) while still offering extremely high coverage (between 92-99%) of language in that genre, and includes lists for general daily English (New General Service List), spoken English (New General Service List-Spoken), academic English (New Academic Word List), business English (Business Service List), TOEIC English (TOEIC Service List), children's English (New Dolch List) and fitness English (Fitness English List). Most lists were developed in a modular approach so they can be efficiently mixed and matched to meet a broad range of academic needs. Time permitting, the presentation will also briefly review the growing amount of refereed NGSL research which in addition to confirming high coverage for the intended genre of English also finds excellent coverage for high stakes exams such as the Japanese high school entrance exam, the Japanese National Center Exam and the TOEIC exam.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

Vocabulary, Gamification, AI, DDL

DN 405: AI & Ethics, Access, Equality, Diversity, and Inclusion / 89

Using machine translation tools for academic writing in language courses –perspectives of students and language teachers

Author: Linda Lin¹

¹ The Hong Kong Polytechnic University

With the affordances of advanced technologies, machine translation tools (MTT), such as Google Translate, have been created and widely used to facilitate communication between people from different language backgrounds. The last decade has also witnessed the employment of MTT by English as a Foreign Language learners to assist their studies at university. Such use of MTT is regarded as a "double-edged sword" and thus not often encouraged. Studies have found that MTT can help students with their language use in writing. However, there is a dearth of research on the use of MTT in the writing assessments for an EAP (English for Academic Purposes) course. This study attempts to bridge this gap by examining student and teacher perspectives on using MTT for the assessments of an EAP course in a major university in Hong Kong. Both quantitative and qualitative data were gathered for this research. The quantitative data was derived from surveys of 47 students and 37 language teachers and the qualitative information was collected via semi-structured interviews with 12 students and 10 language teachers. The analysis of the gathered data showed that notwithstanding some commonalities, the perspectives of students and teachers are markedly different on students' deployment of MTT in the assessments of the EAP course. The study has profound pedagogical significance with respect to assessment designs.

Keywords:

machine translation tools; Google Translate; EAP; student perspectives; teacher perspectives

DN 411: Mixed Sessions / 90

Examining the Efficacy of an Adaptive Reading Platform for Emergent Bilinguals in a Fifth-Grade CLIL Science Course

Author: Vivien Lin¹

Co-authors: Cheng-Ji Lai²; Tzu-Lin Tseng¹

¹ National Changhua University of Education

² National Taichung University of Education

This pilot study examines the efficacy of an adaptive CLIL science reading platform (ACSRP) for facilitating personalized learning among fifth graders in an after-school International Education program in Taiwan. Following the design-based research paradigm, which consists of grounding, conjecturing, iterating, and reflecting (Hoadley & Campos, 2022), the researchers first analyzed learning needs of fifth graders enrolled in a content-language integrated learning (CLIL) science course in Taiwan. Based on the identified learner needs, the researchers created balanced reading tasks with three adaptive mechanisms on the platform to accommodate for learners'individual (a) reading proficiency, (b) multimodal preference, and (c) word knowledge. The balanced reading tasks aimed to improve target learners'science reading skills with four different task types –(a) Recognizing Word Meaning, (b) Sentence Structuring, (c) Text Comprehension, and (d) Reading Fluency (realized through read-aloud tasks). The platform includes pre- and post-reading tests, multimodal balanced reading tasks where learners can choose their preferred learning mode (visual, aural, or linguistic modes), a scoreboard, and post-reading games focusing on vocabulary. The reading topics include soil, plants, and forces. The reading platform was developed on Unity and was refined after several trials over a six-month period. The pilot study in real classroom settings took place in two subsequent semesters with an experimental group and a control group. The adaptive mechanisms were evaluated for their efficacy based on researcher observations and a student survey. In the first semester, the first two mechanisms were evaluated for their efficacy. Then, in the second semester, all three mechanisms were tested, with learner survey collected after the use of ACSRP. Survey results show that target learners are motivated by using the platform to engage in reading about science by the multimodal balanced reading tasks. Their reading skills also improve with the use of the platform.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

adaptive reading, multimodality, CLIL Science, balanced reading, personalized learning

DN 405 / 91

Creating and utilizing an extensive reading library using Chat GPT

Author: Miguel Mision¹

¹ University of Nagano

XReading has become a popular platform for many ESL educators to conduct extensive reading in their classes. The convenience and accessibility of XReading can and continues to provide an enjoyable reading (and also listening) experience for students all over the world. From personal experience however, there are issues that arise with the use of XReading. The cost which can be prohibitive for some students and institutions, reading material that does not suit readers'interests (Collett, 2018, Sartika 2020), and the 'gamification' of the experience with quizzes and metrics - which can obfuscate the experience of reading. Howarth and Bollen (2019) found in their research that of the 730 second year university students introduced to XReading, only half were interested in continuing it after a semester.

What if instead of micromanaging the minutiae of reading rates, accuracy, and comprehension – students were given an opportunity to read things they were genuinely interested in. Leaning into the original goal of extensive reading –that being reading for pleasure. For this project students were asked what types of material they were interested in reading. Then the researcher used ChatGPT and Dall-E to create graded readers for the students.

- This research set out to answer the following questions:
- 1. Will students notice a difference if graded readers were written by AI?
- 2. Can students enjoy reading AI generated graded readers?
- 3. Can AI generated graded readers improve students motivation in reading English?

Keywords:

Extensive Reading, XReading, ChatGPT, Dall-E

DN 411: Mixed Sessions / 92

Adapting Teaching Practices in the Era of Artificial Intelligence

Authors: Nina Kang¹; Anastassia Tzoytzoyrakos¹; Richard Jones¹

¹ University of Southern California

The sudden pivot to teaching in the era of Artificial Intelligence (AI) has necessitated significant changes to the way instructors approach teaching. As AI tools flood the educational sphere, class-room instruction must accommodate the availability of these many and various tools. In some cases, AI tools are embraced as innovative means of gamification, interactivity, and efficiency; in other cases, the tools are viewed as a violation of academic integrity and strictly banned from use with severe consequences. Amidst the ongoing debate on AI's potential use and misuse, the need for innovating ways to meaningfully integrate and harness existing advantages of AI tools is paramount.

This presentation shares the experience of adapting existing curriculum to integrate the use of AI powered programs such as ChatGPT and Grammarly from the perspective of English language teaching faculty at a large, urban research university in the United States. In particular, it focuses on the process of modifying standards and requirements of specific assignments to ensure AI-enhanced activities can indeed contribute to the learning process. It will also discuss strategies to determine the degree of use and appropriateness of AI-tools in writing and oral skills courses and offer suggestions for developing clear protocols that inform teaching practices and increase student accountability.

The presentation will include a short introduction on common AI tools used among undergraduate and graduate students elaborating on their educational values as well as drawbacks. Attendees can expect to take away tips and best practices on how to adapt existing materials and practices to support AI-enhanced classroom instruction. The session targets professionals teaching and working in a university context seeking to address the complex challenges of the AI-driven era in education.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

AI tools, teaching practices

DN 409 / 93

Technology Literacy & Language Learning: Undergraduate Attitudes

Authors: Barrie Matte¹; Aeric Wong¹; Tamara Swenson¹; Aaron Sponseller¹; Philip Head¹; Kaori Hakone¹; Hiroyo Nakagawa¹

¹ Osaka Jogakuin University

This presentation discusses the results of a technological literacy survey of undergraduate English majors (N = 285) conducted in 2022 (n = 176) and 2023 (n = 109) at a small private women's university in Western Japan. The survey asked participants about their technology use pre-entry, changes in their technology use since entry, preferences regarding the various devices available for accessing applications commonly used in language learning classes, and issues they had with devices (smartphones, tablets, and computers) and applications (required and self-selected) used to complete a range of language-learning assignments. Preferences regarding the devices and applications were also sought in the survey. Comments from interviews with a subset of participants (n = 8) further elucidate the survey findings. Interview questions explored participants'survey responses to establish a clearer understanding of how students used technology for learning. Results from the Time 1 and Time 2 survey administrations, changes over time for those who completed the survey twice, and comments obtained in the interviews will be provided and the implications for language learning programs at this institution, and others, will be discussed.

Keywords:

technology literacy, language learning, mixed-methods research

DN 405 / 95

AI Use in the Japanese University EFL Writing Classroom

Author: Camilo Villanueva¹

¹ Nagoya University of Foreign Studies

No matter how much we may not like to admit it, AI is here to stay. Although there are several advantages to embracing AI in academic life (Lin 2023), AI use is frowned upon by teachers in the author's own university teaching contexts. Here, two university writing classes were monitored for AI use using Originality.ai, an AI detection software application, over the 2023-24 school year. Students were informed at the beginning of the year regarding the university's "no AI usage" policy. The results of the monitoring with AI detection software are presented here, along with the feedback from 44 anonymous student surveys handed out at the end of the year. Fifty percent of students reported using AI, though most reported that they only used AI on 5-25% of any individual assignment. The students were also asked why they used AI or did not use it. Answers ranged from using it to "check my writing" to not using it because the university disallowed it. The author discusses the best practices for using AI in the university EFL writing classroom. One of the reasons to use AI is because it can improve student writing, although transparency of use is required.

Keywords:

AI, EFL, writing

Toward Pedagogically-Informed Automated Writing Feedback for Language Learners

Author: Steven Coyne¹

Co-authors: Camélia Guerraoui ²; Diana Galvan-Sosa ³; Keisuke Sakaguchi ¹; Kentaro Inui ⁴; Michael Zock ⁵; Ryan Spring ⁶

- ¹ Tohoku University, Japan; RIKEN, Japan
- ² Tohoku University, Japan; RIKEN, Japan; INSA Lyon, France
- ³ ALTA Institute, Computer Laboratory, University of Cambridge, U.K
- ⁴ MBZUAI, United Arab Emirates; Tohoku University, Japan; RIKEN, Japan
- ⁵ CNRS, LIS, Aix-Marseille University
- ⁶ Tohoku University, Japan

We describe a new annotation framework and dataset for generating pedagogically effective automated feedback comments on second language (L2) learner writing.

Recent advances in natural language processing (NLP) have contributed to the development of myriad AI writing assistance programs, such as Grammarly or DeepL Write, that can correct grammatical errors in text. The use of such applications has become widespread among learners of English. However, while these systems are effective at improving text, they are not optimally designed to facilitate language learning. They favor direct revisions, often with a click-to-fix functionality that can be applied without the learner considering the reason for the correction. Meanwhile, depending on the error type, learners may benefit most from level-appropriate elaborated feedback in the form of strategically indirect hints, especially on generalizable grammatical rules.

To support the generation of such comments, we introduce a hierarchical annotation schema labeling errors by pedagogical feedback point using such terms as "relative clause" or "comparative," and describe plans for a dataset of learner sentences annotated with such labels. We additionally tag errors as "generalizable" or not, allowing differentiated comment strategies based on this factor. Furthermore, we add an example feedback comment to each error in the learner writing corpus. These feedback comments are labeled as either direct corrections or hints.

A dataset annotated in this fashion can inform data-driven methods for producing feedback that better targets the points learners are struggling with and more closely resembles the angles taken by teacher feedback. This annotation framework represents a novel attempt to bridge insights from education and AI to provide truly supportive intelligent writing and learning assistance technology.

Keywords:

Written Corrective Feedback, Grammatical Error Correction, Dataset, Artificial Intelligence in Language Education

DN 408: Mixed Topics / 97

Synchronous vs. Asynchronous Learning for English Reading Skills in an EFL Context

Author: So-Hee Kim¹

This study explores English learners'reactions and achievements for two types of online learning, pre-recoded lectures and real-time lectures in an English reading class during one semester. The participants were 60 Korean EFL university learners who attended an English reading class as a

¹ Korea University

general elective subject. They participated in the pre-recorded class for six weeks and the realtime class through the Zoom application for six weeks. The mid-term and the final exam were administered to assess the learners'achievements, and one online survey was conducted to examine their reactions. The results showed that the participants preferred to study recorded lectures rather than real-time ones, and they showed the most satisfaction with grammar study in recorded lectures and reading comprehension in real-time ones. It also presented that they attained better scores on top-down reading skills and vocabulary learning for recorded lessons and higher scores on bottomup reading skills and grammar learning for real-time lectures. This session suggests salient online learning ways for an English reading course.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

Recorded lecture, Zoom lecture, Reading class, Online learning,

DW 306: Mixed Sessions / 98

AI: Empowering Speaking Skills through Dialog Composition and Practice

Author: Lasma Tulusita¹

Co-author: Zusmizawati Zusmizawati¹

¹ SMAN4 Bandar Lampung

The demand for independence and agency in learning continues to develop as schools change the concept of the classroom. However, students' learning without the help of a teacher or instructor has shown that they need guidance to achieve self-directed learning. To respond to the problem above, the researcher used artificial intelligence (AI) to help accelerate students' learning. This study explored the role of Artificial Intelligence (AI) applications in speaking practice for senior high school students for English learning in Indonesia. The method used in this study is practice and independent evaluation. The supporting tool is ChatGPT for comprehension, vocabulary, and grammar. The other supporting tool is Google Text-to-Speech (GTT), which provides students with a model to improve their pronunciation and fluency. A mixed-method case study approach that utilized quantitative and qualitative data was deployed to effectively address the proposed research questions. Quantitative data was collected through students' self-assessment questionnaires using five-point Likert scale items to assess the degree to which they agreed or disagreed with a set of statements created by the researcher. It was completed by participants using an online anonymous form. As for qualitative data, instructors observed and conducted interviews to gain better insight. The result showed that integrating technology into language learning has enabled students to develop their speaking skills. Students developed their comprehension, expanded their vocabulary, and improved their grammatical structure using ChatGPT. Students' active involvement in language learning impacted their level of agency. Another finding was the improvement of students' pronunciation and fluency with the help of GTT. Students needed to practice several times to gain the appropriate pronunciation and fluency.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

Speaking skills, Artificial Intelligence, Self-directed Learning

Integrating Quizizz for Enhancing Student Engagement

Author: Tomoe Sato¹

¹ Yokohama City University

As attention spans vary individually and are influenced by different factors, the cultivation of active participation and engagement among students remains one of the paramount goals for educators. This workshop is designed for all levels of Quizizz users, and it explores the innovative use of Quizizz, an online learning platform suitable for creating dynamic and participatory learning experiences.

Beginning with an exploration of Quizizz's key features, including its gamified elements, real-time feedback, and accessibility across various devices, the workshop provides a comprehensive overview. Participants: all levels of Quizizz proficiency, will learn to design interactive questions enriched with multimedia elements. Practical examples from diverse language learning settings will illustrate the versatility of these features. Emphasis will be placed on utilizing the platform to cater to diverse learning styles and creating a more inclusive educational environment.

Notably, participants will experiment with Quizizz's latest feature: AI assistance, recognizing the significance of staying current with the prevailing trend in education. This addition enhances the platform's adaptability for various learning styles, emphasizing the importance for educators to fully take advantage of the potential of AI in their teaching practices.

Through hands-on activities, attendees will acquire practical insights into leveraging Quizizz to create engaging and interactive activities that captivate students' attention. The workshop aims to empower educators with the skills to utilize Quizizz as a potent tool for formative assessment and continuous feedback, fostering active learning and collaboration in the classroom.

By the end of the workshop, participants will have the knowledge and resources to confidently integrate Quizizz into their teaching practices to enhance student engagement and effectively prepare students for success in their language learning journeys.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

Quizizz, gamification, student engagement

DN 410 / 100

Exploring the Effects of Mobile Annotated Vlogs on Learners' Language Performance, Self-efficacy, and Learning Perceptions

Author: Hui-Tzu Hsu¹

¹ National Chin-Yi University of Technology

Few studies has investigated the effect of annotated vlogs on second language (L2) listening comprehension and vocabulary learning in mobile-assisted language learning environment (Çakmak & Erçetin, 2017). Accordingly, this study aims to investigate the effect of annotated vlogs on listening comprehension and vocabulary learning in mobile listening learning environment. This study adopted a quasi-experimental design and recruited 120 non-English-major college students at preintermediate level of English proficiency. They were divided into three groups: 40 in control group, 40 in experimental group one (captioned vlogs), and 40 in experimental group two (annotated vlogs). The research instruments comprised pre-and post-tests for listening comprehension and vocabulary retention, and questionnaires for self-efficacy and learning perception for annotated vlog learning. The results of this study presented that the students in the annotated vlog group more significantly improved their listening comprehension than those in the control group and the captioned vlog group. The students in the annotated vlog group had higher vocabulary retention than those in the other groups. However, the students'vocabulary retention in the annotated vlog group did not significantly differ from that in the captioned vlog group. The students in the annotated vlog group significantly increased their self-efficacy more than those in the other two groups. The students in the annotated vlog group held positive perceptions on mobile annotated vlog learning mode. Relevant pedagogical implications will be suggested for future vlog-assisted English teaching practice in mobile listening learning environment.

Keywords:

mobile listening learning, annotated vlogs, language performance, self-efficacy

DN 405: AI & Ethics, Access, Equality, Diversity, and Inclusion / 101

Tertiary Education Artificial Intelligence Policies Across Japan in 2024 and the New User Experience

Author: Anthony Brian Gallagher¹

¹ Meijo University

Artificial Intelligence (AI) has now emerged as a transformative force in various sectors of our lives, including academia. Machine translation has developed to the point that few students now own an electronic dictionary in tertiary education which propels the use of MT and AI tools from web-based tools and smartphone applications. Hence, the majority of Japanese universities and colleges now have a need to develop and implement their own unique AI policies to enhance student education and research processes. This presentation shall disclose the commonalities of multiple institutional policies and summarize how they were created and rolled out by these institutions. With the ideal goal of inhibiting AI misuse by students in their submitted work and proactively discouraging the submission of work that would be considered as not the students' own. The analysis will show university data from each region of Japan (Hokkaido, Tohoku, Kanto, Chubu, Kinki, Chugoku, Shikoku, and Kyushu-Okinawa). While some institutions allow and encourage the use of artificial intelligence (AI) as a learning resource and production tool there remains the risk that some productions would not be considered as their own work and therefore a breach of academic integrity. Questions over this new User Experience will be presented for ethical consideration, and with implementation in mind on how best to adapt these AI policies. Audience members can expect to develop a better sense of the national ethical approach to usage, and some new ideas on both implementing policies and developing a robust student learning experience.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

User Experience, Ethics, Artificial Intelligence, Machine Translation

DN 410 / 102

Students' responses towards the use of screen recording technology (Loom) in the teacher's feedback for students' writing assignments at a university in Vietnam

Author: Trang Nguyen¹

¹ University of Languages and International Studies (ULIS), Vietnam National University –Hanoi (VNU)

Given the essential role of teachers'feedback in language teaching and learning, a great body of research has been conducted to find ways of boosting the quality of teachers' comments on students' performance. More importantly, there has been a consensus among researchers that computerassisted feedback is likely to yield various merits, including specificity for students and time efficiency for teachers in language classrooms. Nonetheless, little has been written about the use of screen video recording technology, especially through the Loom website, in recording more detailed, vivid, and effective video feedback for learners' writing assignments, particularly in the Vietnamese context. To find a tool that helps provide feedback for students' writing assignments more detailed and convenient, I conducted this action research study, aiming at shedding light on the learners' perspectives towards the use of screen recording technology (Loom) in the teacher's feedback for their writing assignments. Two data collection instruments, namely surveys and semi-structured interviews, were utilized to collect data from a class of students majoring in English language at a university in Hanoi, Vietnam. The results revealed significant findings that all of the students had positive responses to the video feedback recorded via Loom, which could bring several benefits for both learners and teachers. Compared to conventional text comments, Loom multimedia feedback was said to be not only more detailed and vivid with the aid of both text and audio explanation, which could facilitate students' deeper understanding, but also more time-saving and convenient for both students and teachers. Loom feedback could also express better emotions from teachers through their tone and intonation, which could barely exist in traditional comments. However, one minor potential drawback was the need for a quiet place and stable internet connection to produce and watch Loom videos.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

Loom, computer-assisted feedback, screen recording technology, feedback for students' writing

DW 305: AI for Teaching / 103

Automated Writing Evaluation Systems: A Comparative Study of Grammarly and AI-Writing Assistant in EFL Writing

Author: Hsiao-hui Yang¹

¹ Hungkuo Delin University of Technology

Automatic Writing Evaluation (AWE) has experienced significant growth in the dynamic realm of English as a Foreign Language (EFL) writing, driven by remarkable advancements in Artificial Intelligence (AI) technology. This technological evolution has brought forth a plethora of writing tools characterized by increasingly sophisticated AWE systems that provide precise and adaptable solutions for the challenges faced by EFL students. This study undertakes a comparative analysis of two AWE tools, Grammarly and AI-Writing Assistant, with a focus on evaluating their feedback and suggestions in the context of EFL student writing.

The aim of this comparative study is to shed light on the strengths and limitations inherent in these two AWE tools, providing valuable insights to the field of EFL writing instruction. A total of 30 compositions by EFL students were collected and evaluated using both AWE systems. The compositions are all general writing and have a length of approximately 100-120 words.

The comparative results reveal the distinct strengths exhibited by each AWE system. Grammarly, for instance, demonstrated exceptional performance in correcting article errors, punctuation issues, and specific tense-related errors, which are common challenges for EFL students. On the other hand, AI-Writing Assistant excelled in its ability to provide suggestions regarding broader writing concerns, such as improving writing clarity, revising wordy sentences, suggesting better vocabulary choices, and even offering valuable collocation recommendations.

These insightful findings have significant pedagogical implications and serve as a basis for our recommendations on the effective utilization of both AWE tools in the EFL classroom. It is hoped that this research thus bridges the gap between AWE technology and pedagogical practice, facilitating a more effective integration of these tools into EFL writing classrooms.

Keywords:

AWE (Automated Writing Evaluation), EFL writing, AI tool, Grammarly

DN 405: AI & Ethics, Access, Equality, Diversity, and Inclusion / 104

A Corpus-based Study on the Linguistic Features of Fake News Headlines

Author: Su-han Cheng^{None}

In an attempt to explore the linguistic features in the headlines of fake news, this study selected a sample of 383 fake news articles (Clarke et al., 2021) covered by the SEC's enforcement action issued on April 10, 2017 (U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission 2017). Through building a corpus for headlines of fictitious news stories, this study was able to conduct both lexical and pragmatic analyses. At the lexical level, the present study found a prevalent use of medical or pharmaceutical terminology in the corpus. At the pragmatic level, guided by the relevance theory, this study explored the distribution of two grammatical categories—definite referring expressions and superlatives and intensifiers—to investigate whether these parts-of-speech contribute to an information gap that enhance readers' expectation. Employing the tool *Wmatrix*, this study discovered that definite referring expressions and superlatives and intensifiers accounted for a relatively small proportion of the corpus. However, some strategies used in clickbait headlines to increase the relevance between audience and news titles were observed in certain fake news headlines examined in this study. It is hoped that the findings of this study will not only shed some light on the detection of false information but also direct the attention of news consumers toward implicit or underlying linguistic patterns present in untruthful journalistic language embedded within headlines.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

fake news, corpus, relevance theory

DN 409: Virtual Reality / 105

Exploring the potential of VR vs. video conferencing on learning outcomes

Author: Mehrasa Alizadeh¹

Co-author: Neil Cowie²

¹ Otemon Gakuin University

² Okayama University

Virtual Reality (VR) has captured the attention of language educators due to its unique features such as immersion and sense of presence, promising enhanced learning experiences. However, existing research on language learning with VR predominantly consists of short-term studies, focusing on specific linguistic facets such as vocabulary, typically with a small number of students. While these studies provide evidence affirming the capability of VR in improving language skills, the need for more robust longitudinal studies involving a larger student population is undeniable to gain clearer insights into the effectiveness of VR in augmenting learning outcomes. To fill this gap, an eightweek quasi-experimental study was designed targeting Japanese students from multiple universities to compare Zoom as a mainstream video conferencing tool with a browser-based VR platform called Frame in the context of learning small talk skills. Following the flipped classroom approach, the students in both groups (N Zoom = 31, N VR = 26) first individually learned about small talk skills by watching two videos from an online course before every lesson. Using breakout rooms for the Zoom group and private voice zones for the VR group, they discussed the content of the videos in groups and practiced small talk in pairs during the one-hour weekly lessons. Learning outcomes were assessed at three intervals using a pre-test, mid-test, and post-test design for the Zoom group, and the same process is currently underway for the VR group. Significant improvement was observed in the Zoom group39;s performance from the mid-test to the post-test. This presentation delves into analyzing and discussing the learning outcomes of the VR group, currently under analysis, while comparing them against the baseline performance of the Zoom group. The findings hold significant implications for language educators keen on integrating VR into their teaching practices, offering insights into its potential benefits and challenges.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

virtual reality (VR), video conferencing, flipped classroom, small talk, learning outcomes

DN 403: AI for Teaching / 106

Dynamic Online Assessor: Scientific Genre-Specific Automated Feedback

Author: Nicholas Carr¹

Co-authors: John Blake¹; Julian Villegas¹

¹ University of Aizu

The provision of written corrective feedback on language learners' writing has been the focus of much investigation over the last three decades. Amongst this literature, there has been growing evidence that the provision of graduated feedback, which increases in explicitness as per learner needs in real time, can increase the learning potential of feedback on writing. However, the provision of such feedback has been limited to oral feedback due to its dialogical nature, with its implementation being reported as too time consuming for most real-life classrooms. This presentation introduces the ongoing development of DynaWrite (ver 1.0)—an online tool which automatically provides graduated feedback on learners' writing, thus overcoming the aforementioned modality and time restraints. Furthermore, in addition to detecting grammatical errors, the tool also provides automated dynamic feedback on brevity, clarity, objectivity and formality as they pertain to the genre of scientific writing. The proposed web application relays the input of a user to a chatbot based on a large language model. The chatbot is configured to increase the explicitness of feedback when the user is unable to resolve errors. We first briefly describe the theoretical foundation of the tool and graduated feedback. This is followed by a description of the four levels of feedback the tool provides, with level 1 being the most implicit and level 4 being the most explicit. We then discuss the process of error categorization and the process of instructing the chatbot to reliably detect these errors. The presentation concludes with a demonstration of how the tool is used and how it can track learner progress with specific error categories.

Keywords:

Large Language Models; Chatbots, Automated Written Corrective Feedback, Dynamic Assessment

DN 410: Mixed Sessions / 107

Language teachers'and learners' perceptions of the use of Chat-GPT as a self-learning tool

Author: Yurika Ito¹

¹ Waseda University

Since the launch of ChatGPT by OpenAI in November 2022, it has emerged as a pivotal point of discourse worldwide, particularly within the educational sphere. While the initial fascination about the use of ChatGPT in educational settings seems to have somewhat diminished, its numerous facets are yet to be fully unveiled and understood. One area which requires further exploration is the way language learners can use ChatGPT as a tool for self-learning and how teachers can adequately guide them. Although the benefits associated with using ChatGPT for language learning purposes have been noted by various scholars (e.g., Kohnke et al., 2023), it is unclear whether learners themselves are aware of them and are able to use them on their own. The current study therefore aimed to reveal learners' perspectives and experiences regarding the utilisation of ChatGPT for self-study. As language teachers hold a central role in guiding learners how to use such tools effectively, the second part of the study was to investigate their perceptions of ChatGPT and their methods of learning about the tool. The study involved two primary data collection procedures: Firstly, to gain learners'insights, a questionnaire was distributed to students in two intact English classes at a private Japanese university who were offered a short guidance session of how to use ChatGPT on their own to practise English. Secondly, a separate questionnaire tailored for language teachers was administered, accompanied by interviews to obtain a more comprehensive understanding of teachers' needs and thoughts about ChatGPT. Through the study, the current challenges for the use of ChatGPT as a tool for self-learning are identified, and implications for how to better guide learners in using the free online tool are suggested.

References :

Kohnke, L., Moorhouse, B. L., & Zou, D. (2023). ChatGPT for language teaching and learning. RELC Journal, 1—14. https://doi.org/10.1177/00336882231162868

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

ChatGPT, language teaching, AI, artificial intelligence

DN 407 / 108

Developing Intercultural Competence in English Language Learners through AI: A Case Study in Vietnamese Higher Education

Author: Ngoc Tung Vu¹

Co-authors: Huong Ta Thi Mai²; Thanh Ngo Thi³; Thi To Loan Nguyen⁴

¹ VNU University of Languages and International Studies, Hanoi

² Thai Nguyen University of Economics and Business Administration

³ Foreign Trade University

⁴ Hung Vuong University, Phu Tho

Intercultural competence is an essential component of effective communication, particularly in foreign language education like English, where learners engage with diverse linguistic and cultural backgrounds. Research highlights the importance of integrating intercultural competence with linguistic proficiency, empowering learners to confidently share their perspectives and enrich the meaning-making process in communication. Our presentation delves into the findings of our research on the impact of ChatGPT on Vietnamese English learners, with a specific emphasis on intercultural competence development. Through interviews with two English-as-a-foreign-language (EFL) teachers and six EFL university students, we explore their perspectives on integrating Chat-GPT as a language input source for overall language production. Grounded in Deardorff's (2004) pyramid model of intercultural competence and Coleman's (1968) push and pull framework, our investigation aims to unveil areas of agreement and divergence between teachers and students concerning the optimal use of ChatGPT for enhancing intercultural attitudes, knowledge, and skills. Our discussion emphasizes adapting to the evolving global landscape influencing diverse language use and addresses ethical conflicts related to intellectual property and students' academic integrity. The presentation concludes with reflections, implications, and recommendations for future research, emphasizing a nuanced understanding of technological advancements in foreign language education within non-English speaking countries.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

intercultural competence, ChatGPT, academic development, academic integrity, Vietnamese higher education

DN 409 / 109

Pros and Cons of Themed-Related Discussions in English via Padlet

Author: Kazunori Nozawa¹

¹ *Ritsumeikan University*

Adopting post-reading discussions in English offers several advantages, including enhancing comprehension, stimulating critical thinking, developing interpersonal skills, fostering curiosity, and providing diverse perspectives (Alvermann, 1985; AdLit.org, 2008; UNESCO, n.d.). This practice was implemented as a weekly assignment at a private university within the context of Academic English Reading classes. Non-English major first-year students (Class A) from the College of Social Sciences and second-year English Literature major students (Class B) from the College of Letters participated in these discussions using Padlet, a digital platform facilitating rich media communication (British Council, n.d.). Over the 2023-24 academic year, students engaged in ten discussions during the spring semester and nine or ten discussions for Class B and Class A, respectively, in the fall semester, covering various topics from the textbooks. This approach garnered active participation from most students, who expressed satisfaction with the discussions, citing the acquisition of new information and diverse perspectives from fellow participants. The presentation provides a comprehensive analysis of the benefits and drawbacks of employing Padlet for such discussions, ultimately recommending it as a valuable tool for promoting active learning.

Keywords:

Pros and cons, discussions, Academic English reading, Padlet

DN 403: AI for Teaching / 110

Leveraging AI to Quantify Comprehensibility and Intelligibility in Speaking

Author: Robert Cvitkovic¹

Co-author: Omar Massoud²

¹ Teikyo University

² Sofia University Junior College

This presentation explores the use of AI in evaluating speaking and pronunction. It addresses the challenges in assessing them quickly and accurately, specifically its impact on the metrics of comprehensibility and intelligibility. Pronunciation, in particular, significantly influences comprehensibility and intelligibility, essential components for effective communication. Historically, evaluating these components has been labor-intensive, relying heavily on human raters for comprehensibility and transcription for intelligibility assessment. Such processes are not only time-consuming but also impractical for educators with substantial workloads, thus remaining largely within the realm of academic research. In response to these challenges, this presentation introduces an innovative approach utilizing AI tools to quantify comprehensibility and intelligibility efficiently and accurately. The advent of AI technologies in language learning provides an unprecedented opportunity to streamline these assessments, making them more accessible to educators. Drawing on the authors work on evaluating speaking performance, the methodologies used include elicited imitation approaches, AI generated rubrics, AI-assisted transcription, and the use of other AI assisted tools. These tools facilitate the calculation of intelligibility scores by quantifying the percentage of words correctly pronounced as per a given standard. Additionally, comprehensibility is evaluated through AI-powered analyses of listener effort, aligning with established scales. A step-by-step workflow will be provided, equipping participants with the necessary guidance to apply these AI-based speaking assessment techniques in their own classrooms. This approach represents a significant departure from traditional, subjective evaluations of speaking performance. By leveraging AI technologies, educators can obtain objective, quantifiable metrics of speaking and pronuncation proficiency quickly without having to rely on inaccurate holistic scoring. This presentation, building on the insights gained from previous workshops and studies, aims to inspire educators and researchers to embrace technological advancements in the pursuit of more effective language teaching methodologies for evaluating speaking performance.

Keywords:

speaking evaluation, pronunciation, comprehensibility, intelligibility

DN 403 / 112

Integrating AI in Language Learning: Balancing Innovation with Integrity

Author: Omar Massoud¹

Co-author: Bob Cvitkovic²

¹ Meiji Gakuin University

² Teikyo University

This research-based presentation investigates the integration of Artificial Intelligence (AI) tools, like ChatGPT and Grammarly, within language learning to ascertain their impact on enhancing learning while maintaining academic integrity. It focuses on AI's role in facilitating personalized learning experiences, such as generating writing topics, correcting grammatical errors, expanding vocabulary, and offering sentence structure suggestions. These AI-integrated tasks are designed to aid students in developing clear topic sentences, applying grammar lessons, and improving their linguistic proficiency in writing assignments. Additionally, the study incorporates authentic writing activities, including creative writing prompts, reflective writing journals, citation and referencing workshops, peer-to-peer feedback, and manual grammar exercises, to improve students' ability to write authentically. Utilizing surveys, classroom observations, and pre and post-test assessments, the research aims to explore whether these AI tools support or hinder students' development within the Zone of Proximal Development (ZPD), assessing their potential to foster dependency or undermine the authenticity of students' writing. The objective is to identify strategies for educators to integrate AI in language teaching responsibly, enhancing the educational experience while promoting genuine student engagement and upholding academic standards. This study aims to bridge AI's technological advancements with pedagogical objectives, offering insights to navigate the evolving CALL landscape.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

AI in Language Education, Computer-Assisted Language Learning, Academic Integrity, ESL Education, Educational Technology

DN 407: Professional Development and Teacher Training / 113

Technological Support as a Foundation to AI-integrated Teaching Practice

Author: Bao Nguyen¹

¹ Waseda University

"[T]he entire ELT community needs to see any threats to individual well-being as a collective community issue" (Mercer, 2021, p.19). However, in this day and age, the extent to which language teachers are prepared to handle AI and sustain their mental well-being still needs more insight. With that in mind, a case study focusing on the context of Vietnamese higher education was conducted to examine how important support, technology in particular, is to language teachers at the tertiary level so that they are more capable of handling AI and safeguarding their wellbeing. Semi-structured interviews were conducted with Vietnamese teachers of English at the tertiary level. Transcribed data were analyzed using the constructivist grounded theory approach (Charmaz, 2006). In this presentation, the theoretical framework encompassing the study is discussed together with the detailed procedure of the data analysis. Findings suggest that the teachers indeed did not receive sufficient technological support and training from their institutions, which eventually could make them feel more resentful toward the potential of AI and affect their mentality exponentially. Therefore, it is hoped that the presentation could provide suggestions to both institutions and language teachers on how to utilize the advantages that AI brings about and hence, sustain their well-being. As such, while it is highly recommended that institutions provide fundamental technological support to their teachers, teachers should not rely solely on that assistance but take the necessary initiatives to develop their skills and teaching practice.

References

Mercer, S. (2021). An agenda for well-being in ELT: An ecological perspective. *ELT Journal*, 75(1), 14–21. https://doi:10.1093/elt/ccaa062 Charmaz, K (2006). *Constructing grounded theory* (2nd ed.). SAGE Publications.

Keywords:

AI, teacher wellbeing, professional development

Affordances and Limitations of AI tools for oral proficiency development

Author: Nathaniel Carney^{None}

This presentation details affordances and limitations of using AI voice chatbots for oral proficiency development. In the past year, voice-input functionality was added to OpenAl's widely known Chat-GPT4 model, and there has been a steep increase in tools that enable users to improve aspects of oral proficiency through AI (e.g., ELSA AI, LangAI, TalkPal, and many others). In this presentation, I present an overview and comparison of available tools, and then I present user data from an adult English language learner, as well as insights from my personal use of these tools while practicing a second language. The presentation begins with a timeline that shows the rapid development of AI tools that have been developed for L2 speaking proficiency development. Then, I compare the functionality of AI tools as it relates to developing L2 oral proficiency. After discussing the tools, I share data from an adult English language learner and from my experience practicing my own L2s using the AI tools, focusing on three main aspects of the tools: user experience, corrective feedback, and adaptation to user's needs and current proficiency level. Based on the data, I discuss affordances such as the convenience, affordability, and flexibility of the tools for oral proficiency development, and I discuss limitations including the kind of discourse voice chatbots tend to produce, the lack of some paralinguistic and turn-taking cues that normally occur in human-to-human speech, and the inaccurate feedback or misunderstandings that occur in spoken interaction with AI chatbots.

Keywords:

oral proficiency, L2 speaking, L2 listening, AI voice chatbots

Posters Session / 115

Using Microsoft 365 for Education as a Learning Management System in the Classroom

Author: Phil Nguyen^{None}

The increasing trend in education involves teachers and students utilizing various online tools and learning management systems (LMS) like Google Workspace, Moodle, Canvas, and Blackboard. Among these, Microsoft's LMS offering is worth considering. This presentation highlights how Microsoft Teams is user-friendly and straightforward for educators to set up and use in their classrooms without needing extra help. Microsoft Teams stands out as it operates effectively right after installation without the need for any additional plug-ins or customizations. It includes widely-used software like the Microsoft Office suite, which is prevalent in many businesses, thus providing students with practical, real-world experience both during their studies and beyond. This presentation not only sheds light on the digital learning platforms prevalent in higher education, particularly focusing on Microsoft Teams as an LMS but also provides valuable recommendations and insights on how to optimize Microsoft Teams for Education. This aims to enhance the learning experience in both academic and professional settings.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

LMS, Microsoft 365 for Education, hybrid learning

Voice recognition applications in university English Reading classes

Author: Mike Lyons^{None}

Voice recognition technology has seen remarkable advancements in recent years, and its integration into the field of education holds immense potential for transforming the way we teach and learn, particularly in Language Learning. In Reading classes, voice recognition technology is already able to give students personalized instruction and instant feedback. It encourages language learners to improve their pronunciation, accuracy, and reading speed. At the same time, voice recognition tools are aiding educators in assessing students' oral proficiency, saving time.

Looking ahead, voice recognition will likely be used more interactively in Reading education applications. Future systems may, for example, engage with students in natural conversations about a text, improving reading comprehension and advanced oral skills. Applications will hopefully become more affordable and accessible too.

This presentation will explore the current state of voice recognition in Reading education, as well as its benefits and potential.

Keywords:

voice-recognition,reading

DN 413: AI for Learning / 117

Authoring system for online speech drills customizable to learners' needs

Author: Nobuaki MINEMATSU¹

Co-authors: Noriko Nakanishi²; Yusuke Inoue³

¹ The University of Tokyo

² Kobe Gakuin University

³ Carriage Inc.

We are developing a language-independent authoring system for teachers to construct listening and speaking drills integrated with technologies such as speech analysis, assessment, recognition, and synthesis. With this system, teachers can prepare online drills composed of various tasks customizable flexibly to the objective of the class and learners' needs in the class. The tasks implemented so far are reading aloud, repeating, paraphrasing, shadowing, script-shadowing, explanation, and overlapping. In any task, learners' oral responses are automatically processed to be visualized and/or scored using word-based transcription, phone-based transcription, rhythm, intonation, listening fluency, etc. Teachers can use these results selectively as encouraging feedback for their learners.

For learners who want to improve their listening skills, shadowing tasks are suited, where learners shadow input speech without referring to any text. Shadowing speech is analyzed to visualize listening disfluency measured while shadowing. With this visualization, learners can check what kind of inputs tend to cause listening disfluency.

For learners who want to improve their prosodic and segmental aspects of pronunciation, overlapping tasks may be preferable. The rhythm and intonation patterns of a learner's speech are visualized and compared to the corresponding model patterns. Also, his/her pronunciation is examined and compared to the model via word-based or phone-based transcription. All or some of them will be used as feedback to learners.

The authoring system has been already introduced to create daily aural/oral drills for university students, which has been very well received and found to be effective to improve the students' oral

proficiency. In the presentation, the authors will demonstrate how to construct some listening drills and speaking drills. They would also like to receive any request from teachers to make this system meet educational and practical needs better. This system will be made publicly available in the future.

Keywords:

Authoring system, online drills, speech technologies, listening and speaking

DN 413: AI for Learning / 118

GPT-based simulation of oral Q&A to aid students attending first conference

Author: Mayuko Aiba¹

Co-authors: Daisuke Saito²; Nobuaki MINEMATSU³

¹ the University of Tokyo

² University of Tokyo

³ The University of Tokyo

Students often need good practice not only for English oral presentation but also for oral answering in Q&A sessions, especially when they present their research results for the first time at international conferences. In this study, we aimed to assist those students in improving their oral skills in Q&A by having ChatGPT read the papers, which were written by the students, and ask general and specific questions on the papers to the students. We examined six configurations of ChaGPT for question generation to find the optimal one for this task. The six configurations are a combination of whether reference papers should be explicitly uploaded to ChatGPT or not, and whether questions should be generated for each keyword, for each section, or not specifying any scope of the paper. We recruited eight master students who recently attended their first conferences and made oral presentations there and eight Japanese teachers of English. Each student evaluated the questions of his/her paper in terms of relevance, specificity, clarity, inspiration, and expectedness, but the teachers evaluated all the 471 questions paying attention to whether the questions were likely to be raised by language teachers or only by specialists. Finally, all the students and teachers selected the best configuration for Q&A practice. It was very unexpected to us but their responses indicated that the simplest configuration, where reference papers were NOT uploaded explicitly and any scope was NOT specified, was selected as the best one. Following this result, ChatGPT in the simplest configuration was integrated with a speech interface, ASR and TTS, so that ChatGPT can ask orally and students can answer orally. Although the integrated system has not been evaluated yet, we believe that it can help students prepare for their first encounter with international academia.

Keywords:

ChatGPT, Q&A, oral skills, automatic question generation

DN 402 / 119

Evaluating a LLM's Ability to Analyze Politeness Strategies for Instructed Pragmatics

Authors: Christopher Ziffo¹; Taylor Meizlish¹

¹ Nagoya University of Foreign Studies

This presentation will examine the current ability of a Large Language Model, ChatGPT 4, to analyze Discourse Completion Task responses for politeness strategies. The responses to the eight situation DCT meant to elicit 'refusals' were used to create two small corpora: one of University EFL learners and one of University EFL instructors. The instructors' responses were manually coded for use of speech act strategies and used as a baseline to test the LLM. Strategy definitions, examples, and prompts were carefully tested and retooled leading to an eventual accuracy rating of 99.91 percent, when combined with minimal human monitoring. The LLM's ability to accurately recognize and tabulate the use of speech act strategies can aid researchers and teachers in the analysis of large data sets and identify gaps in strategy use by learners as targets for instruction. The utility of assessing strategy use for pragmatic competence, the process used to prompt the LLM, and the results of the research will be presented.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

Pragmatics, Corpus Linguistics, Instructed Pragmatics, Speech ACts

DN 412: AI for Teaching / 120

Enhancing Teaching with ChatGPT API, Google Sheets, and Moodle.

Author: Forrest Nelson¹

¹ Soka University

The shift to online education during the pandemic presented unique challenges, particularly for instructors accustomed to using traditional teaching tools such as whiteboards. In response, I adopted Google Sheets as a whiteboard to facilitate student interaction and provide a platform for submitting and checking assignments. Initially, correcting grammar and vocabulary in these submissions was somewhat time-consuming. However, with the advent of AI, specifically ChatGPT in late 2022, my approach evolved. This presentation will detail the integration of the ChatGPT API with Google Sheets, enabling immediate feedback on speaking and writing assignments. Students enter their work into Google Sheets, which ChatGPT promptly evaluates, offering corrections and suggestions. This accelerates the feedback process helping to reduce the instructor's workload. Nevertheless, the system's implementation revealed hurdles, exemplified when students misunderstood alternative phrase suggestions as errors. To mitigate this, a 'Noticing Log'was created for students to note and reflect over the variances between their submissions and ChatGPT's 'suggested corrections'. This process results in the generation of customized review materials and vocabulary tests in GIFT format for Moodle by ChatGPT, optimizing the assessment procedure. The method not only conserves time but also delivers tailor-made educational content to each student. This discussion will encompass the method's practical application, its advantages, and its constraints, providing attendees with a comprehensive understanding of AI's role in my classes.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

A.I. ChatGPT, Moodle, GIFT Format, API

Addressing Machine Translation and AI Tool Use in the English Language Learning Classroom

Co-authors: Kym Jolley ¹; Troy Rubesch ¹

¹ Baika Women's University

Recently, machine translation (MT) services such as Google Translate and DeepL, and generative AI tools like ChatGPT and Google Bard have become a topic of interest for many language teachers. Some teachers are concerned about threats to academic integrity, while others are interested in the educational potential of such tools and how best to effectively harness them for learning. In this presentation, we explore how teachers are addressing the use of MT and generative AI in the classroom in Japan and how they believe these tools will affect the language teaching profession.

A pilot survey was initially conducted regarding how teachers address the use of MT and generative AI in their classrooms (N = 32). Out of the university English instructors in Japan who responded to the initial pilot survey, 9 instructors were interviewed. Interviewees shared their: teaching context; approaches to addressing MT & generative AI use in their courses, and; thoughts on the future of MT/AI and the language teaching profession.

The interviewees instructional approaches included: increasing monitoring of student coursework, "re-walling the classroom" with group work, paper and pencil assessments, interviewing students about the content of their writing assignments, impromptu assessments, and strengthening the process writing approach. Other teachers fully embraced the technologies in their courses- teaching students about effective and ineffective uses of MT/AI, or encouraging their critical use in certain steps in the writing process. Others avoided the use of them altogether.

The presenters will explain the various interviewees' approaches towards MT and generative AI in the language classroom. Some thoughts about the future of these technologies in the language teaching profession will also be shared.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

Machine Translation, Artificial Intelligence, Pedagogy, Language Learning

DN 403: AI for Teaching / 122

Integrating AI in assessment and evaluation in higher education

Authors: Freek Olaf de Groot¹; Jackie L. K. Yeoh²

¹ City University of Hong Kong

² BNU-HKBU United International College

In recent years, universities have been dealing with the concerns of the utilisation of artificial intelligence, especially with the emergence of ChatGPT. This technology can not only generate written contents, i.e. human-like responses to questions and prompts, it can also affect assessments and evaluation methods. This paper presents a pedagogical approach that focuses on integrating artificial intelligence (AI), in particular Ernie Bot, a Chinese version of ChatGPT, into the assessment and evaluation process in the context of language education. The approach is designed to enhance the understanding of AI's role in learning, develop skills in designing AI-informed assessment tasks, and cultivate critical AI literacy among a group of Year 3 TESOL undergraduate students in a university located at Guangdong Province, China. Overall, this pedagogical approach enables TESOL undergraduate students to develop awareness and understanding of AI's role in learning, cultivate skills in designing AI-informed assessment tasks, and foster critical AI literacy through hands-on experiences. By integrating AI into language education assessment and evaluation, this approach prepares students to navigate the evolving landscape of technology-mediated language learning environments. This presentation also aims to contribute to the ongoing discussion around the use of AI in higher education assessment and evaluation, highlighting the need for more research and a critical evaluation of its challenges and impact.

Keywords:

Artificial Intelligence, Language Education, Assessment and Evaluation, Critical AI Literacy

DN 410 / 123

Video feedback as multimodal tool for transformative action in learning and teaching

Author: Freek Olaf de Groot¹

¹ City University of Hong Kong

Affect (Ahmed, 2004) has gained more attention in applied linguistics as a predictor of transformative learning action. Specific attention has gone to the multimodal nature of how affect is experienced and its ability to enable transformative action (Kiesling, 2019; Westberg, 2022). This study reports how multimodal video feedback on academic assignments brings about 'affect'in students'interaction with feedback and how this affects their future learning practices. Digital multimodal video feedback is the practice of providing textual track changes while simultaneously recording screen activity and voice-over commentary. Thus far, research on academic feedback has primarily focused on the effectiveness of types of feedback and discursive strategies of delivery. Less attention is paid to how feedback can be designed to become part of students future learning practices. This study combined a multimodal discourse analysis (Norris, 2019) of a corpus of feedback videos with followup focus group interviews. The interviews aimed to understand how multimodal video feedback was experienced, both emotionally and affectively, and identify the self-reported literacy practices that emanated from the interaction with multimodal feedback in comparison with traditional text-based feedback. This study found that the multimodal nature of video feedback provided participants with multiple semiotic cues to understand feedback, specifically, the metaphysical sense of the mood and spirit in which feedback was provided. Second, this multimodal engagement subsequently brought about a range of affective responses signaling a more active stance toward future learning practices in comparison with traditional text-based feedback. Finally, sharing video feedback online created important affordances to facilitate transformative learning action. Participants could access video feedback free of time and space constraints and reported that this allowed them to access feedback multiple times and integrate it as a learning resource for future learning practices and even professional practices.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

Multimodality, digital literacy, technology, affect

DN 403 / 125

An N-gram Approach to Identifying Lexical Features in Fake Financial News

Author: Su-han Cheng^{None}

While financial reports play an important role in guiding investment decisions, the research landscape pertaining to fake news detection in the financial sector remains underexplored with most existing literature primarily focusing on false political and social news identification or on the impact of fake financial news on investor attention and market reaction (Zhang & Liu, 2023). To address this gap and seek to enhance the limitation of pure machine learning algorithms, the present study proposed applying the n-gram approach in natural language processing (NLP). Through investigating word-based 4-grams (i.e., quadgrams) and scrutinizing forms and functions of these lexical strings in the fake financial news articles obtained from the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) crackdown of stock promotion schemes in the United States in 2017, the present study identified 18 high-frequency quadgrams. Based on the taxonomy devised by Biber and his colleagues (1999), the findings showed that (1) the 18 quadgrams were dominated by PP-based expressions in terms of structures and (2) functionally, referential quadgrams constituted over 75% of the total tokens and types, followed by an additional subcategory (i.e., subject-specific quadgrams) which contained medical or financial vocabulary. It is hoped that through uncovering n-grams alongside qualitative structural and functional analyses, the findings of this study would not only contribute to the detection of illegitimate news but also draw the attention of consumers or readers to some implicit deceptive linguistic patterns in financial news reports.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

N-gram, natural language processing (NLP), fake news, financial news

DN 402: AI in Learning / 127

Generating discussion: Using ChatGPT to foster critical thinking skills

Author: Kathryn Jurns¹

¹ Kanda University of International Studies

While generative AI has been around since the 1950s (Cao et al., 2023), in the last year and a half, the release of ChatGPT 3.5 and the influx of similar programs using large language models has left many in the academic world scrambling to find answers of how such powerful machines and education can coexist. Whether one is excited or concerned by the prospect of AI like ChatGPT in the classroom, a question remains: when students can turn to technology for so many answers, how can educators continue to encourage creativity and critical thinking in the classroom? One rather straightforward answer is by exposing students to the realities of ChatGPT and educating them how it can be used. Rather than impairing their ability to think critically, by giving students the space to discover the successes and deficiencies of ChatGPT and similar programs, AI can be a tool to foster critical thinking skills (Chang et al., 2021). This presentation will outline a classroom practice for English-language students at a private, Japanese university. The presentation will discuss the procedure, the positives, and the challenges of a practice in which students analyzed discussion questions created by ChatGPT. Students were required to use higher-order thinking skills by considering the significance, role, and qualities of thought-provoking discussion questions and evaluating generated questions against these criteria. Beyond encouraging critical thinking, the activity highlighted its necessity when adopting new, exciting technology.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

critical thinking, ChatGPT, discussion

DN 403: AI for Teaching / 128

Developing and revising an academic literacy course in response to AI

Author: Suzan Stamper¹

¹ Hong Kong University of Science and Technology

This presentation provides an update on developments of a new university-level English course with a high proficiency enrollment requirement (IELTS 7+). The course, which was initially designed before the emergence of tools like ChatGPT, made revisions in Year 1 in response to the university's stance to encourage AI use as it is a university of science and technology. These course developments were first introduced in a JALTCALL 2023 presentation. This JALTCALL 2024 presentation will focus on current GenAI-related revisions in Year 2 and future changes.

The presentation will begin with a short overview of this academic literacy course. As an outcomebased course, a key expectation is for students to learn how to research topics using the university library's electronic databases, to find and synthesize sources for academic writing and speaking tasks, and to incorporate research correctly (e.g., avoiding plagiarism, using lateral reading skills to verify sources, understanding how to cite and reference sources). The course thus focuses on activities that bridge gaps in students'research experiences and with new issues raised by GenAI (e.g., hallucinated sources, using AI as a source or tool, considerations for citing and referencing). A few examples of lessons and activities will be shared.

After the overview, the presentation will continue with feedback from the course developers, teachers, and students. This will include self-reported GenAI use in post-assessment questionnaires by approximately 700 students. A summary of insights and experiences from teachers and students on incorporating GenAI in instruction and assessments will focus on points that may be useful to others developing similar courses or activities.

The session will end with a short discussion questioning what academic literacy skills are needed for our 21st-century learners conducting research online and using GenAI.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

academic literacy, academic writing

DN 404 / 129

Teacher approaches towards using chatgpt to analyze a corpus of student writing samples

Author: Michael Barr¹

Co-author: Jeanette Dennisson²

¹ Kyoto University of Foreign Studies

² Institute of Science Tokyo

AI tools such as ChatGPT can be used to great advantage by teachers, classes, and individual students to improve the quality of Academic English writing skills while providing superior and more customized feedback within the parameters of specific writing assignments. The authors intend to showcase the various ways ChatGPT could support best teaching practices and successful methodologies for writing tasks based on the analysis of a corpus of student writing samples collected before the arrival of ChatGPT. Three academic years of student writing samples were analyzed. Undergraduate EFL students of different CEFR levels were instructed to write 100+ words within 10 minutes according to a specific writing theme or prompt. These writing samples were then collected, digitized, and anonymized before they were separately analyzed by each author using ChatGPT. The results of each analysis were compared and interpreted in order to understand trends in student writing which could direct future coursework. Such an objective analysis of student work using ChatGPT can be extremely beneficial in (1) identifying areas that need improvement, (2) evaluating individual student progress, and (3) directly informing ChatGPT-based methodology in the teaching process.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

Writing tasks, Corpus, ChatGPT, Writing analysis

DN 406 / 130

Impact of AI-Based Educational Practices on Student Motivation in English Language Learning

Author: Michiyo Oda¹

Co-author: Ryo Saito²

¹ Reitaku University

² Tohoku University

Despite the growing body of research on the pedagogical aspects of machine translation and Chat-GPT in language learning, concerns have been raised about students relying on machine translation to avoid language learning and about ChatGPT increasing the risk of plagiarism and cheating. These concerns may be attributed in part to students' lack of literacy about machine translation and ChatGPT, including their strengths and limitations, their mechanisms, and effective applications for language learning. Therefore, this study conducted a literacy program on machine translation and ChatGPT for Japanese university students majoring in English, with the aim of exploring the impact of acquiring machine translation and ChatGPT literacy on students' motivation to learn English. The literacy program was conducted for a total of 14 sessions (once a week, 90 minutes per session), with surveys conducted at the first and last sessions. The surveys encompassed intrinsic/extrinsic motivation for learning English, willingness to continue learning English even after the development of machine translation and artificial intelligence (AI), what they were able to do regarding machine translation and ChatGPT, and their level of satisfaction. The results showed that, although not statistically significant, this literacy program tended to enhance students' willingness to continue learning English even after development of machine translation and AI, as well as their intrinsic motivation and *identified regulation* for learning English. Simultaneously, there was a reduction in their amotivation, although this did not show statistical significance as well. This study will further explore the factors within the program that contributed to these observed changes.

Keywords:

Machine Translation, Artificial Intelligence, Language Learning, Motivation

DN 407 / 131

AI Natives' Perspectives on ChatGPT Pedagogy

Author: Amelia Ijiri¹

Co-author: Sandra Healy ¹

¹ Kyoto Institute of Technology

This study focuses on educational artificial intelligence (AI), centering on the impact of AI in transforming educational paradigms. Recent research efforts, including those at Harvard's Next Level Lab (2023) and insights from thought leaders like Donald Clark (2023) and Paul Kim at Stanford's SMILE lab, highlight the shift from traditional teaching methods to dynamic, just-in-time Socratic learning processes facilitated by AI. Large Language Models (LLMs) like ChatGPT are at the forefront of this shift. As Martin et al. (2020) observe, adopting emerging technologies in education typically starts with isolated case studies before evolving into a comprehensive research body that addresses existing knowledge gaps. Our study aims to add to this nascent body of research. Focusing on integrating AI tools in a first-year English as a Foreign Language (EFL) classroom, we explore the concept of Intelligence Augmentation (IA). This concept promotes a symbiotic relationship between AI and human intelligence, as Hassani et al. (2020) outlined.

Employing a qualitative approach, we examined students' engagement with AI over one semester and their perspectives on its use. A specially designed questionnaire assessed learner motivation, attitudes, and self-efficacy. We adapted interview questions from Hwang et al. (2009) to better understand students' views on the learning method. This data is instrumental in assessing the approach's effectiveness and pinpointing potential areas for enhancement, particularly AI's potential to enhance critical thinking, active learning, and engagement by guiding question creation and tailoring it to individual styles. In summary, the study hopes to advance our understanding of the role of AI in education, particularly in EFL classrooms, by assessing its impact on students' perception of the IA learning approach. It also aims to provide practical insights for educators and policymakers looking to leverage AI in educational settings.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

Educational AI, Intelligence Augmentation (IA), Student engagement,

DN 406 / 133

Student perspectives on AI use in language learning

Author: Michael Hofmeyr¹

¹ Tokyo University of Science

The capabilities and practical applications of artificial intelligence (AI) technologies have advanced rapidly over recent years (Heift & Schulze, 2015). Foreign language education has already been dramatically impacted by these developments, as learners gain access to increasingly powerful AI tools capable not only of improving grammar and vocabulary choices in academic writing, but also of generating highly coherent and cohesive original written texts (Godwin-Jones, 2022). Such tools may hold great potential for learning (Cai et al., 2023), but they also pose an array of complex new problems on matters of pedagogical effectiveness and academic integrity (Chomsky, 2023).

Understanding how key stakeholders use and perceive these technologies is crucial for developing effective and equitable classroom practices and also for educational policy-making, yet systematic research on these topics remains scarce. This presentation will review the key findings on language learner and teacher perceptions of and attitudes towards AI technologies, including AI-augmented machine translation tools and generative AI technologies such as ChatGPT, in the existing CALL literature. Furthermore, a work-in-progress research project on the actual use of such technologies among young adult foreign language learners in Japan for the purposes of English academic writing

will also be introduced. Initial findings from a meta-analysis of the relevant existing CALL literature as well as from learner and teacher surveys will be presented. The aim of this session is to encourage constructive discussion among CALL researchers and practitioners about the potentials and the pitfalls of current and emerging AI technologies for language learning and teaching as well as to identify fruitful avenues for future collaborative research.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

artificial intelligence (AI), learner attitudes, machine translation

Posters Session / 134

Using ChatGPT in Lesson Planning: Opportunities and Limitations

Author: Daniel Sykes¹

¹ Kanda University of International Studies

The rapid rise of ChatGPT and similar large language models (LLMs) has given teachers access to a new and potentially valuable resource. But while many teachers may focus on the potential in-class applications of artificial intelligence, there is also potential for LLMs to support teachers outside the classroom. This poster presentation will explore the use of ChatGPT and similar LLMs in lesson planning and materials development.

ChatGPT may be used by educators in a number of ways: it can generate texts, create comprehension and discussion questions, suggest activity and project ideas, and even design lessons and entire syllabi. The presentation will examine ChatGPT's abilities and evaluate its effectiveness as a lesson planning tool, and provide suggestions on how language teachers can make effective use of LLMs. Also highlighted will be the potential limitations of using LLMs, notably the risk of hallucinations or factually incorrect responses, and how best to prevent these problems from arising. By being aware of both the opportunities and limitations of using AI, teachers can make informed decisions on how (and whether) to use it.

Keywords:

artificial intelligence, AI, ChatGPT, lesson planning

DW 305: AI for Teaching / 135

Integration of Artificial Intelligence Elements in the Discipline Specific Chinese Curriculum of Hong Kong Polytechnic University

Author: Ken Siu-Kei Cheng¹

¹ The Hong Kong Polytechnic University

"To commit ourselves to the modernization of Chinese language education through the application of information technology to different areas including curriculum, pedagogy and assessment," reads

the mission statement of the Chinese Language Centre (CLC) of the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. CLC has long been participating in a number of Computer Assisted Language Learning (CALL) initiatives, including flipped classrooms and blended learning. This presentation will center on our latest efforts to include artificial intelligence (AI) components, such as GenAI, into our Discipline Specific Requirements Chinese (DSR-Chinese) courses.

Since 2013, CLC has customized DSR Chinese courses for students enrolled in various professional programs. In order to improve their professional language proficiency and get ready for the work-force, students receive workplace Chinese training. With the tremendous effort by our DSR Working Group, CLC has launched projects like "AI-assisted and Inquiry-based Chinese Language Learning for Authentic Learning and Assessment" in response to the recent advancements in GenAI. These projects center on the use of GenAI in the teaching and evaluation of writing, speaking, reading, listening, and integrated skills. Students have experimented with using GenAI tools for essay writing and evaluation when it comes to reading and writing. Students have built their own digital humans to practice speaking and listening, and they can participate in group or individual presentations. At the end of the semester, semi-structured interviews and focus groups revealed that students were content and welcomed the use of GenAI in Chinese language instruction. They said that with AI's help, learning a language became more enjoyable and engaged, which enhanced their academic achievement. Participating teacher representatives in the focus group discussion agreed that using GenAI in the course was essential, especially for encouraging writing. Furthermore, neither students' writing nor teachers' marking of the assessments this semester was hampered by the addition

of GenAI components.

Keywords:

Chinese Language Education, Discipline Specific Chinese, GenAI, digital human

DN 407 / 136

Improving Students' Speaking Skills with Replika

Author: Ariko Nishimura¹

¹ Aichi Prefectural Meiwa Senior High School

Recently, a lot of people have been learning a new language through the Internet. One of the practical English language learning tools is a chatbot with Artificial Intelligence (AI). Replika (https://replika.ai/) can be a self-study tool for language learners. It is an AI chatbot that communicates with language learners naturally, and it helps learners learn how to communicate in English. Replika understands what the learners mainly wrote, and it recasts and answers questions. Although Replika cannot speak and is an age verification, learners are able to learn how to communicate with others in English and also realize grammatical errors. Two third-year senior high school students in Japan and one university student in Hawaii used Replika for two weeks. The research was conducted in 2021 and the researcher asked them to chat with Replika for at least one hour per week for two weeks to see how Replika helped students' communicative abilities. The researcher asked them to send screenshots of their conversation with Replika and see the improvement. The qualitative data show that all students learned new expressions from Replika. One student also mentioned that chatting with Replika was a good motivation because it includes a gamification perspective. When students write long sentences, they earn extra coins and buy special items for Replika. In conclusion, Replika can be a convenient tool for learning English although the conversation is sometimes unnatural. Students get replies quickly and feel that they are chatting with a native speaker because Replika remembers their conversation. The author will propose how the chatbot works for students' language learning through qualitative data.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

AI chatbot, Replika, speaking, communicative ability

DN 410: Mixed Sessions / 137

The Effectiveness of Using Adaptive Learning Platform to Improve English Reading Proficiency in Elementary School Students

Author: Cheng-Ting Chen¹

Co-author: Wen Ting Lin¹

¹ Chung Yuan Christian University

This study aims to investigate using digital learning resources, specifically the Adaptive English Learning Platform, to enhance English reading skills and motivation among elementary school students. With the increasing prominence of English as a global language and the challenges faced in primary-level English reading skills, this study aims to explore the practical impact of digital learning on language proficiency and motivation. The Adaptive English Learning Platform, developed by a collaborative team of educational scholars, AI experts, and teachers, has garnered attention for its innovative approach to adaptive teaching. The study's motivation stems from the platform's unique features, its international recognition, proximity to the school's curriculum, and its potential contribution to more intelligent and personalized educational methods. The research objectives encompass evaluating the impact of digital learning on English reading achievement, understanding students' motivation in digital environments, comparing traditional teaching with digital learning, and providing policy references for educational institutions. The research questions focus on improving English reading ability and motivation after using the digital learning platform. The scope of the study involves third-grade students at an elementary school in northern Taiwan, including a background investigation, pre-test and post-test assessments, and an analysis of platform usage. The study anticipates challenges related to individual differences, external factors, and platform usage, with ethical considerations guiding participant consent and data privacy. This study is expected to contribute by providing insights into the English learning environment, evaluating the effectiveness of the Adaptive Learning Platform, analyzing students' usage behavior, and offering empirical references for educational policies.

Is this a sponsored session?:

No

Keywords:

digital learning, English reading proficiency, Adaptive Learning Platform

DW 302: Mixed Sessions / 138

What's Wrong With This Picture? Exploring Gender and Racial Bias in AI Art

Author: Matthew Wiegand¹

¹ Musashino Art University

AI Generated Imagery (AIGI) produces racially biased images and the implications of such biases are problematic because proliferation of such imagery can amplify stereotypes. However, little research has been done into if L2 students are able to identify and articulate about these biases. Furthermore, because current AIGA is text based, there is a crucial language component that can be explored by L2 students. This presentation introduces research conducted at a prominent Japanese Art university into how English as L2 students identified AIGI, used text prompted technology to generate images and finally reflected on inherent biases produced. The research has implications for correcting and diversifying data sets.

20 participants of an intermediate/advanced English Communication course (L2) in the school of Creative Innovation at a leading Art and Design university in Japan explored text-generated AI images and their implications over the course of 15 weeks. Students engaged with AI generated imagery by creating it, discussing it, and answering questions about it. In the concluding weeks, students were tasked with creating prompts and were given sample prompts in class and asked to reflect on the output.

Images were biased in terms of gender and race. Students were asked to comment on these bias. In the images created based on the prompt "Leading doctor"students recognized that 72% images were of a middle aged men with glasses and 100% of the images were light-skinned. The images resulting from "leading scientist" generated similar results. When prompts included racial characteristics (Japanese/Chinese), the program revealed extreme stereotyping. Skin-tone bias was also prevalent in the photo-realistic images when prompts included income level or job position. While some students concluded that the images were based on reality, others identified the need for data sets to be trained with more diversity reflective of reality.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

AI-generated imagery, Bias, Generative AI art, Gender stereotypes, Racial stereotypes

DW 305: AI for Teaching / 139

Utilizing ChatGPT for spoken task-based practices

Author: Jeanette Dennisson¹

Co-author: Gary Ross²

¹ Tokyo Medical and Dental University

² Kanazwa University

ChatGPT has already revolutionized our ability to have conversations with a computer. At present this is generally limited to typing rather than speech itself. Utilization of speech synthesis and recognition (SR) technology for English speaking practices could present alternative methods to assist in the development of speaking and listening skills. However, there are still challenges when utilizing such technologies in the classroom. In human conversation we are acutely aware of visual and auditory clues that indicate when it is our turn to speak, and at present, this technology is not present within AI models, and thus presents a significant challenge to the learner utilizing SR technology. Moreover, native speakers can recognize when ChatGPT goes 'off script' while this can be challenging for L2 learners. This presentation will elucidate how we addressed these issues and how effective they were. First, we developed a system that integrates SR and ChatGPT allowing English learners more opportunities to practice speaking and listening skills in a customizable framework based on the course needs and student needs. We then recruited L1 and L2 participants from various countries who interacted with our ChatGPT-SR speaking program to determine the feasibility of using such technology in the classroom, what difficulties students encountered, and actionable techniques that instructors can apply in their own classroom.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

ChatGPT, AI, speech recognition, prompts

The ethical and pedagogical implications of 'AI-proof writing assignments.

Author: Michael Savage¹

 1 TWCU

The rise of digital technology in educational settings from its formative years in the 1980s to its current iteration has seemed inexorable and, in recent months, exponential. Natural Language Processing and Large Language Models are now ubiquitous topics of debate when discussing ethical and moral concerns in education. This presentation will begin by examining the ethical and moral issues associated with the use of generative AI in academic writing. It will address concerns related to academic integrity, the potential for AI to facilitate plagiarism, and the cognitive impact on students' critical thinking and learning processes. Subsequently, it asks two key questions: firstly, is it possible to create 'AI-proof' writing assignments, and secondly, is it ultimately more far-sighted to focus on higher order thinking skills and a scaffolded approach when dealing with generative AI? Lastly, the presentation considers the situation in Japan, where rote-learning and memorization are key concepts in learning. The recent decision by Japan's minister of education, culture, sports, science, and technology to permit content from any source to be used for "information analysis" means that Japan is an outlier in its approach to fair use and associated copyright and tort law issues. If all input is considered fair game for training generative models, irrespective of content and method, it is prudent to consider whether all output will also be similarly considered acceptable. From this presentation, it is hoped that educators will gain a comprehensive understanding of the ethical considerations surrounding the use of generative AI in academic writing as well as practical strategies to promote academic integrity and prevent misconduct in student assignments.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

Generative AI, ethics,

DN 408 / 141

Showcasing ChatGPT, DeepL/Google Translate, and Google Docs for Speech Practice: Insights from the U.S. University Pilot Study

Author: Aya Owada¹

¹ University of Hawaii at Manoa

This pilot study investigated two main components: the use of ChatGPT for generating speech scripts, and the integration of DeepL/Google Translate and Google Docs for pronunciation checking and practice. Specifically, ChatGPT served as an online tutor and the generator of speech scripts for the participants. In addition, the audio function of DeepL/Google Translate and the Automatic Speech Recognition (ASR) function of Google Docs were employed for pronunciation checks and reading practice. These elements were selected to determine how task designs utilizing Generative AI and online tools could support effective language learning. Five graduate students from a U.S. university, participated to evaluate the educational integration and impact of Generative AI and online tools. Additionally, an online survey explored the impact of task design on learners'attitudes toward technology integration in language learning. Participants'feedback and reflections offered insights into the tools' effectiveness, usability, and acceptance in their language learning process. Results suggest that strategic task design incorporating Generative AI and online tools not only has the potential to foster autonomous learning but also to positively influence learners' perceptions toward the use of technology. However, the study highlighted the importance of addressing ethical considerations in deploying these technologies, suggesting that responsible and informed use of

Generative AI and online tools is crucial in educational settings. The findings have practical implications for designing and implementing online tools and contribute to the discourse on Generative AI integration in language learning and teaching. This presentation will also introduce curriculum ideas utilizing this combination of Generative AI and online tools for future applications.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

technology-mediated language learning, AI, speaking

Posters Session / 142

Enhancing Language Learning Through VR Photo-Based Tours: Cases in Japan, France, and the Philippines

Author: Roberto Figueroa¹

Co-author: Hiroshi Taniguchi²

¹ University of the Philippines

² Digital Language School

This poster presentation exhibits a method of language acquisition, employing Virtual Reality (VR) photo-based tours as a means to appreciate a foreign language and the cultures that are connected to it.

In this poster presentation, I shall discuss the development of VR Photo-Based Tours to address the needs of three different projects that incorporated the linguistic and cultural elements of English, Filipino, and Japanese. The tours incorporate interactive components, such as hotspots accompanied by lexical labels and situational discussions.

The study utilized a mixed-method research approach, incorporating both quantitative assessments of vocabulary retention and qualitative input on learner involvement.

The study investigated the relationship between spatial presence, which refers to the feeling of "being there" in a virtual reality (VR) environment, and situational interest and motivation in language learning. The findings revealed a notable and favorable correlation, indicating that increased levels of spatial presence in virtual reality tours augment the situational interest in language acquisition. The qualitative findings emphasize the importance of ergonomics, the physical space in which the tours are experienced, and the scenic novelty of the place being featured in the tours.

Incorporating VR photo-based tours into language teaching shows potential for improving learner engagement and efficacy in acquiring vocabulary. The strong association between spatial presence, situational interest, and learning outcomes presents opportunities for incorporating technology in educational environments.

Keywords:

virtual reality, virtual tours, EFL, Japanese Language Education, Filipino Language Learning

DN 408: Mixed Topics / 144

Virtual Exchange + Extensive Reading: A combination for success

Virtual exchanges and COIL (Collaborative Online International Learning) allow participants to communicate with peers around the world, an experience that can be highly motivating for students. Virtual exchanges often get off to an exciting start when students first meet their counterparts from another country. However, the exchanges soon start to suffer due to a lack of content that would foster engaging discussions. Extensive Reading provides students with input, but many students lack motivation to read. Combining the two can be a recipe for success. In this session, the presenter will discuss a proposed virtual exchange in which, each week, students prepare for a meeting with their partner in another country by reading a graded reader about a different aspect of their partner's country. Example topics are school life, pop culture, holidays, traditional food, dating, etc. In addition to reading about a topic, students can prepare questions about points in the reading that they are curious about or did not understand. Entering the meeting with detailed knowledge of the topic and some related questions can result in more engaging interaction. Furthermore, the content of the graded readers could provide the basis for a final project between participants, such as a presentation.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

Collaborative Online International Collaboration, Extensive Reading

DN 404: Innovative Teaching Using Technology / 145

Learners' Perceptions of Corrective Feedback in Digital Language Learning Environments

Author: Leticia VICENTE RASOAMALALA¹

¹ The Chinese University of Hong Kong

This pilot study explores learners' perceptions of corrective feedback in digital foreign language learning tasks within a Learning Management System (LMS) as complementary tools in Spanish as a Foreign Language courses. While previous research (Li & Vuono, 2019) has extensively examined teacher corrective feedback in oral and written contexts, there is a lack of research on automated corrective feedback in digital learning environments.

A series of studies (Sheen, 2020) has suggested that corrective feedback can draw learners' attention to specific formal incorrect structures of the target language they are acquiring, promoting error awareness and language development. However, the options for corrective feedback in H5P interactive activities within LMSs have limitations in effectively informing learners about the nature of mistakes. Most default feedback forms provide explicit feedback by displaying a green check mark for correct responses, and a red X for incorrect ones. To address this limitation, this study investigates how implicit feedback forms in digital language learning environments can enhance learners' error reflection and potentially develop metalinguistic awareness. Previous corrective feedback studies (Klimova & Pikhart, 2022) have not extensively examined digital educational environments or considered learners' perceptions and preferences regarding explicit and implicit automated feedback. The current study examines the types of automated feedback provided in beginner-level Spanish as a Foreign Language digital activities at a university in Hong Kong. Questionnaires are used to collect data on learners' perceptions of automated feedback. Preliminary results indicate that students often struggle to understand simple explicit corrective feedback provided for grammar forms in H5P tasks. Therefore, there is a need for tailored feedback options in digital language learning activities. We will also introduce examples of learners' preferred reformulated digital feedback. Understanding learners' perceptions and preferences enables educators to optimize feedback approaches in digital learning platforms, ultimately improving language learning engagement and outcomes.

Keywords:

corrective feedback, digital learning, LMS, H5P, learner perception

DN 402: AI in Learning / 146

Human-AI hybrid authorship in the development of crime stories

Author: Paul Sevigny¹

¹ Ritsumeikan Asia Pacific University

This research explores the value of generative AI as a tool for supporting multimodal reading and writing in the creation of crime stories. Currently, at this research site, the use of generative AI for expository essays is against program policy, but narrative creation is allowed as a no-stakes activity. To elucidate patterns in which language students explore and use generative AI as part of their language study, This study at a Japanese university, explored the tools and strategies that English students employ when given the task to work with a classmate to iteratively prompt ChatGPT (or equivalent LLM AI) in the creation of a crime narrative. The research questions were, 1) What strategies and tools do students use when crafting prompts to develop a crime narrative? 2) What concepts and skills are needed for students to generate comprehensible output that meets the criteria for a mock trial narrative? CEFR B2- English students (in pairs) chose a crime and recorded their iterative input and output from ChatGPT in developing a crime narrative. Data from three classes were analyzed. Pairs of students were observed in the process of using the AI and field notes were taken. Follow-up interviews and observations were used to validate prior data. Finally, a survey of language program students was conducted to elicit more general attitudes toward and patterns of use regarding generative AI tools. The results of this study will elucidate basic issues regarding L2 student prompt authoring and revision, the types of online tools students use, and strategies needed to create a crime narrative with the help of AI systems. Implications for L2 learner, human-AI hybrid authorship of narratives, and the normalization of tools like ChatGPT for language learning through hybrid authorship will be discussed.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

Human-AI hybrid learning, multimodal CALL, hybrid authorship

DW 302: Mixed Sessions / 147

Does AI Help Presentation Preparation?

Author: Anthony Torbert¹

¹ Kobe Gakuin University

Generative AI can be intimidating for students and instructors, but with some guidance and practice, it can become a valuable (and even fun) tool. Ideally, it will provide a wider range of easy-tounderstand information and give suggestions to learners who may not know where to begin. Being a new technology, there are still many who are reluctant to use it. In addition, perhaps the challenging aspect for students is how to formulate useful prompts that elicit information English language learners can comprehend.

This presentation will review the results of a small study on having students in a Business English class use AI to prepare 3-minute presentations on various companies. One group (the control) was given an assignment and no instructions related to AI research. The other group was given the same

assignment but a 15-minute demonstration of using generative AI to gather comprehensible information. The results of both groups were then analyzed in terms of content and understandability, and a student survey regarding their overall impressions of AI was conducted. While the differences between the two groups were not substantial, with more guidance and improvements in AI services, the potential for improving student work exists.

After considering the strengths and weaknesses of the exercise, follow-up activities have been planned to enhance AI usage further. The overall aim of using AI is to get students to do more research in the target language (English) instead of collecting information in Japanese and then using translation software to produce content they and their classmates cannot understand. To this end, the presenter will offer examples of how Microsoft Bing Copilot, Google Gemini (Bard), and ChatGPT differ.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

AI, Presentation, English, Research

DN 406 / 148

Telecollaboration project improves college students'intercultural communication skills

Author: Yoko Takano¹

 1 NUFS

Students need to understand different cultures across the world to gain intercultural communication skills and raise awareness. Therefore, this speaker asked a professor in Sri Lanka to proceed with a telecollaboration project. Based on the agreement with this professor, the project invited 16 first-year Japanese college students and 10 third-year Sri Lankan college students to participate for two months to learn about cultural differences, including taboos and manners. They were divided into eight groups and started this exchange-culture project by making presentation slides together. Due to the time zones and different communication styles, both groups of students complained of difficulties, so the two lectures shared these students'voices and tried to observe and support their meetings using Zoom. During this process, each group of Japanese students reported the progress and issues in the classroom and then discussed how to solve these issues in the classroom. As a result, they noticed that WhatsApp, a social media app they were unfamiliar with, was a solution to cover time differences and pronunciation problems. In the end, the Japanese students delivered presentations and sent the recorded videos to the Sri Lankan students. After this project, Japanese students answered survey questions and noted their comments. Moreover, this speaker had faceto-face meetings with three Sri Lankan students in Sri Lanka. The interview data was analyzed to investigate the students' intercultural communication skills and compare their perspectives toward different cultures. The data, including the video and both students' perspectives, will be reported in this presentation.,

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

Cross-cultural understanding, CALL

Implicit grammar instruction in VR: Evaluation of an immersive experience for English conditionals

Author: Takeru Kanahama¹

Co-authors: Hiroshi Nakayama ¹; James York ²

- ¹ Tokyo Denki University
- ² Meiji University

This study explores the development of an immersive **virtual reality** (VR) environment designed for independent, implicit learning of English conditional forms —specifically, the first, second, and third conditionals. A group of 20 participants experienced the VR system, and their comprehension of the relationship between conditional forms and verb tense was assessed through pre-tests, posttests, and delayed tests. The results revealed that, among the three forms, the experience was most effective in enhancing users' understanding of the construction of the second conditional, although the findings did not reach statistical significance. Moreover, there was only a marginal disparity in average scores between post-tests and delayed tests, suggesting the sustained retention of learned content.

In this presentation, we will introduce the developed VR system, outline the experimental design, and present the results obtained. Additionally, we will provide insights and recommendations for future research endeavours in this domain.

Keywords:

virtual reality, grammar, immersive education

DN 411: Mixed Sessions / 150

Flavoring the Vanilla: Finetuning Large Language Models for Automated Evaluation of Argumentative Writing

Authors: Qiao Wang¹; John Gayed¹

¹ Waseda University

To address the long-standing challenge facing traditional automated writing evaluation (AWE) systems in assessing higher-order thinking, this study built an AWE system for scoring argumentative essays by finetuning the GPT-3.5 Large Language Model and compared the system's effectiveness with that of the non-finetuned GPT-3.5 and GPT-4 base models, or "vanilla" models, using zero-shot prompting methods. The dataset used was the TOEFL Public Writing Dataset provided by Education Testing Service, containing 480 argumentative essays with ground truth scores under two essay prompts. Three finetuned models were generated: two finetuned exclusively on either prompt and one on both. All finetuned and base models were used to score the remaining essays after finetuning and their scoring effectiveness was compared with ground truth scores as the benchmark. The impact of the variety of finetuning prompts and the robustness of finetuned models were also explored. Results showed a 100% consistency of all models in two scoring sessions. More importantly, the finetuned models significantly outperformed the base models in accuracy and reliability. The bestperforming model, finetuned on prompt 1, showed an RMSE of 0.57, a percentage agreement (score discrepancy \leq 0.5) of 84.72%, and a QWK of 0.78. Further, the model finetuned on both prompts did not exhibit enhanced performance, and the two models finetuned on one prompt remained robust when scoring essays from the alternative prompt. These results suggest 1) task-specific finetuning for AWE is beneficial; 2) finetuning does not require a large variety of essay prompts; and 3) finetuned models are robust to unseen essays.

Keywords:

Automated Writing Evaluation, Large Language Models, GPT-3.5, Finetuning, TOEFL Public Writing Dataset

DN 404: Innovative Teaching Using Technology / 151

Enhancing fluency and autonomy: A three-step DeepL quick-writes activity

Author: Eucharia Donnery¹

¹ Soka University

This presentation outlines a three-step quick-writes activity conducted over a one-year period in 2023 at the intermediate level first-year EFL class at a private university in the Kanto region. The aim was for students to develop fluency in writing, as well as develop a sense of ownership of English through learner autonomy facilitated by DeepL. The first step involved a five-minute quick-write in response to prompts, encouraging students to react to news headlines or textbook content. Using an honor-system, students were asked to refrain from using dictionaries, online translation tools or AI for this step, but could use the right-click function to correct misspellings. The second step was to copy this text into DeepL, whereby English (left) was translated to Japanese (right) by DeepL. Students were asked to read the Japanese for coherence, then make any changes to the English until they were satisfied with the Japanese translation. The third step involved a reversal of languages, with English and Japanese switched, prompting students to explore synonyms and alternative phrasing using DeepL's suggestions to enhance language skills. DeepL provided a number of synonyms and alternative phrasing, and students were encouraged to take ownership of and to develop their own English language learning. Both the first and the second drafts were submitted to the Google Classroom for feedback. This study focuses on the 2024 fall semester by tracing the development of three students at the start, middle and end of the semester. The study was piloted as a one-year project for the cohort of 2023, yet its success has meant that it has been included in the 2024 syllabus for the incoming cohort.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

DeepL, Quick writes, learner fluency, learner autonomy

DN 409 / 153

Project-based learning in collaboration with a local business

Author: Elizabeth Lavolette¹

¹ Kyoto Sangyo University

In project-based language learning (PBLL), students engage in real-world issues and use the language they are learning to produce products for audiences beyond the classroom. PBLL was incorporated into a business English class for third- and fourth-year university students. In this case, the real-world issue was provided by a local company that wanted to market its Airbnb to English-speaking visitors, and the product the students produced was a series of Instagram posts. The company president visited the classroom virtually to explain the business, provided websites and written documents about the purpose of the project, and provided feedback on students' draft Instagram posts.

At the conclusion of the project, the company used the students' work on their official Instagram account.

In this presentation, I will explain the process of finding a local partner, the development of the project in collaboration with the company, and what students did in the classroom. I will share class materials, such as the series of assignments that led to the final products submitted to the company. I will conclude by showcasing what went well, areas that need improvement, and prospects for PBLL in future classes.

Keywords:

PBL, business English, social media

Posters Session / 154

Rhizomatic Recoding: Rethinking Learning with CMCT in Disrupted Spaces

Author: Shari Eunice San Pablo¹

¹ University of the Philippines

The abrupt pandemic-driven shift to online learning fractured traditional academic spaces, exposing deep vulnerabilities in communication, collaboration, and the very foundation of the stable academic subject. This study, drawing on post-qualitative inquiry and Deleuzoguattarian rhizome theory, recodes this disruption not as a mere obstacle, but as an unexpected and fertile ground for transformative learning with computer-mediated communication technology (CMCT). Interwoven narrative maps, rich discussions, and intimate conversations with three undergraduate students and three professors at the University of the Philippines Los Baños reveal their diverse and often poignant experiences navigating this tumultuous shift. Mumby's Discourse of Vulnerability is reframed here, not as a deficiency, but as a potent catalyst for collaborative experimentation and dynamic interactions fostered with the unique affordances of CMCT. This study emphasizes the crucial importance of embracing messiness, fluidity, and contingency in the digital classroom. By meticulously exploring how CMCT reshapes communication, collaboration, and even identity formation in these fluid digital spaces, it offers valuable insights and practical guidance for educators and researchers seeking to cultivate more open, inclusive, and resilient academic environments in the age of online learning. The analysis revealed how shared anxieties and challenges spurred collaborative experimentation and dynamic interactions, akin to the rhizomatic model, (re)shaping online learning communities using computer-mediated communication technology. The findings emphasized the importance of embracing messiness and contingency in online spaces, fostering collaborative meaning-making through open communication, and rethinking academic success beyond traditional metrics. This rhizomatic recoding, driven by CMCT and vulnerability, points towards a future where learning thrives in dynamic, interconnected networks, not only redefining academic success but also transforming the very landscape of education itself.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

online learning, computer-mediated communication technology, rhizoanalysis

Workshop B1 / 155

Pragmatics, Generative AI, and the Language Classroom

Authors: Bradford Lee¹; Jim Ronald²; Yukie Saito³

- ¹ Fukui University of Technology
- ² Hiroshima Shudo University

³ Chuo University

In this workshop, each practitioner will involve participants in exploring approaches and activities that bring together Pragmatics, generative AI, and language classroom practices.

Yukie Saito: In my part of this workshop, I will explain the challenges Japanese EFL students face in mastering pragmatically appropriate conversations using standard ELT textbooks. Then, I will introduce ChatGPT as an innovative tool to bridge this gap, focusing on conversational aspects typically difficult for Japanese learners, such as leave-taking, making, accepting, and refusing invitations, as well as giving and receiving compliments. Additionally, I will explain how we can create conversations involving different participants in various contexts. At the end of my part, participants will also have the opportunity to try to make conversations using ChatGPT.

Bradford Lee: Generative AI has the potential to serve as speaking partners for students outside the classroom in role play activities or discourse-completion tasks (DCT). We analyzed the suitability, variability, and pragmatic strategies that ChatGPT 3.5 employed under a range of scenarios. Its responses were generally pragmatically-suitable, though highly dependent on the amount of context provided. ChatGPT also displayed limited strategic variety and sometimes made inaccurate assumptions. We will discuss common pitfalls in prompt composition and provide specific guidelines to get the most accurate responses from ChatGPT as a pragmatic instruction tool.

Jim Ronald: Situation-specific or speech act-specific "conversations" generated by ChatGPT are quick and easy to produce and, while they may contain factual or logical inaccuracies, they typically use English that is both grammatically correct and pragmatically appropriate. As such, they provide much that language textbooks and classrooms lack. Both as a consequence of their accuracy and their faults, these "conversations" provide opportunities for promoting critical thinking skills, pragmatic awareness, and fostering skillful users of the target language. In my part of the workshop, we will explore ways that this may be achieved.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

pragmatics, speech acts, generative AI

DN 408: Mixed Topics / 158

Ohtani's Playbook in Modern English Language Teaching: The Synergy of Minds and Machines to Advance the 21st Century Language Competencies

Author: Yi-hung Liao¹

¹ National Pingtung University

Modern English language education is undergoing a transformative shift, embracing a holistic approach that nurtures 21st-century competencies such as integrated communication fluency and critical thinking. This evolution process necessitates a comprehensive reskilling and upskilling of language instructors, a challenge that this innovative pedagogical framework addresses. Motivated by the strategic synergy exemplified by Shohei Ohtani's dual mastery in baseball, this framework for an "English for Academic Purposes" course combines Artificial Intelligence (AI) advancements with the authentic intelligence (ai) of human expertise.

This framework features essential AI-driven components to support this pedagogical transformation: Adaptive Learning & Feedback, employing algorithms to tailor linguistic content to suit individual learner needs and provide immediate, personalized feedback; Immersive Communication Tools, creating authentic practice environments to promote fluency and confidence in language learning; Data-Driven Progress Tracking, analyzing learner performance to customize learning paths and tracking progress towards language competencies; and Content Creation & Resource Curation, generating and selecting appropriate, relevant, and engaging materials tailored for a given group of learners. Complementing these technological advancements, human elements are crucial for fostering an authentic and stimulating learning environment. Expert Facilitation & Contextual Feedback involve instructors guiding students and offering deep, qualitative feedback on complex skills for real-world language application, while Collaborative Professionalism & Intercultural Engagement encourage professional conversations and intercultural collaboration through human-led tasks. Creative Insight & Critical Thinking are achieved through tasks or projects that go beyond traditional textbooks, encouraging the practical application of language skills. Acknowledging AI's limitations, Ethical Considerations & Social Responsibility ensure human instructors address key issues to 21st-century learners, like data privacy, algorithmic bias, and responsible digital communication practices. Preparing for an engaging, effective, and ethically sound teaching and learning pathway, this framework is intended to revolutionize English language education by balancing AI and AI in order to meet the diverse needs of contemporary learners. This signifies a substantial departure from specialized skill instruction and toward the comprehensive development of vital proficiencies, aided by cutting-edge technology and augmented by visionary language instructors.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

AI-Human Synergy, English for Academic Purposes, Competency-Based Learning,

DN 413: AI for Learning / 159

Voiced Character Language Chatbots for Japanese Learning

Author: Zackary Rackauckas¹

¹ Columbia University

Recently, educators have started to leverage large language models like ChatGPT for Japanese language education. In this study, I created a ChatGPT-like chatbot to output voiced character language for Japanese learning. Character language captures the unique speech patterns of fictional characters, influenced by their age, gender, personality, and environment. These patterns are especially present in anime. For example, samurai characters tend to use de gozaru instead of the modern auxiliary verb da. Wise female characters prefer the archaic first-person pronoun warawa over the modern watashi and use the noja expression to end sentences instead of noda. Understanding that language acquisition extends beyond reading and writing to include listening and speaking, I gave the character chatbots AI-generated voices fine-tuned to their specific character. This not only makes the lessons more engaging, but also provides a comprehensive language learning tool. Through interaction with voiced character language chatbots, Japanese learners acquire speech patterns that they cannot learn through traditional mediums like textbooks and mobile applications. In addition, while learning Japanese is a highly difficult and daunting task, these chatbots are engaging and provide a fun way to learn Japanese. I will evaluate the effectiveness of these voiced character language chatbots in a mobile application.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

chatbot, natural language processing, character language, role language, Japanese learning

Leveraging ChatGPT for English Language Teaching: Insights from Korean EFL Instructors

Authors: Myeongeun Son¹; Jongbong Lee²

¹ Gangneung-Wonju National University

² Cyber Hankuk University of Foreign Studies

The integration of artificial intelligence (AI) in educational settings has opened new avenues for language teaching and learning. Previous studies (e.g., Pack & Maloney, 2023; Pfau et al., 2023) have presented a potential for AI in language teaching. Building on this foundation, this study explores the utilization of ChatGPT, a sophisticated AI language model, in the context of English as a Foreign Language (EFL) instruction in South Korea. It focuses on how EFL instructors can effectively use this tool to enhance their teaching.

Five Korean EFL instructors were selected to investigate how ChatGPT can be utilized in English teaching. An online workshop was conducted to provide insights and guidelines for effectively integrating ChatGPT as a teaching assistant in English language classrooms. Following the workshop, the participants completed a questionnaire about their experiences and perspectives on using ChatGPT in their teaching practices. They were then invited for in-depth interviews to gather qualitative insights into this issue. These interviews were analyzed to uncover the instructors' initial impressions, their strategies for integrating ChatGPT into their teaching methods, the challenges they faced, and the perceived benefits for their students.

The findings indicated that while the instructors recognized ChatGPT's potential as a valuable teaching aid, its effective use necessitated active engagement with the tool. They emphasized the importance of understanding ChatGPT's capabilities and limitations to tailor its use for language teaching. The instructors also noted the need for a strategic approach in integrating ChatGPT into the curriculum, highlighting its role in complementing traditional teaching methods rather than replacing them. The study concludes that ChatGPT can be a powerful tool for EFL instruction when used thoughtfully and interactively by teachers. It offers recommendations for EFL instructors on effectively incorporating ChatGPT into their teaching, including continuous experimentation and adaptation based on student needs and learning objectives.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

ChatGPT, teaching tool, teacher education

DN 407: Professional Development and Teacher Training / 161

Teachers' Perspectives on the Integration of AI in the Classroom: A Global Survey

Authors: Deborah Broadby¹; Jaime Morrish²

¹ Sugiyama Jogakuen University

² Sugiyama Jogakuen Univesity

The rapid advancement of Artificial Intelligence (AI) has opened new horizons in education, potentially transforming the traditional classroom into a dynamic and adaptive learning environment. This presentation explores the findings of a comprehensive global survey, including educators from diverse teaching backgrounds, teaching experiences, and geographical locations. Our research sought to understand teachers' perceptions of AI in education, focusing on two primary areas: teachers' views on students' use of AI in the classroom and teachers' utilisation of AI for creating class materials. The first section of our study explores teachers' perspectives on students' engagement with AI tools and applications. Through a selection of multiple-choice, likert scale, and open-ended questions, we examined teachers' familiarity with AI in education, their experiences with AI integration, and their perceptions of the impact of AI on student learning and engagement. We also delved into teachers' opinions on the benefits and challenges associated with students' use of AI, shedding light on their concerns regarding ethical considerations and the potential for overreliance on AI.

In the second section of our questionnaire, we investigated how teachers employ AI to create teaching materials. Our survey inquired about their use of AI-based tools, their experiences with AIgenerated content, and the perceived effects of AI on the quality and efficiency of teaching material development. We also probed into teachers' views on the advantages and challenges of incorporating AI into creating educational resources and their willingness to receive further training.

Our research reveals diverse insights from teachers worldwide, offering a nuanced understanding of their perspectives on AI in education. The findings provide valuable guidance for educational policymakers, technology developers, and fellow educators aiming to harness the potential of AI to enhance teaching and learning. We present our results to foster informed discussions and collaborative efforts in the dynamic field of AI in education, ultimately striving to create more inclusive, effective, and personalised learning experiences for students worldwide.

Keywords:

AI in Education, Teacher Perspectives, Educational Technology, Ethical Considerations

Posters Session / 162

Using technology to increase English usage opportunities and feedback.

Author: Robin Sneath¹

¹ Kanda University of International Studies

In the Japanese education system, learners of English commonly struggle with certain areas such as writing and speaking, and the course evaluations requiring these skills. Furthermore, the desire for greater feedback from teachers is often brought up in class surveys. There are several factors contributing to this, such as fear of mistakes, reluctance to speak, instruction focusing heavily on exam preparation, and time constraints for teachers to assess individual students'skills with large amounts of personalized feedback.

This poster presentation examines how technology was used to offer additional opportunities for classes of up to 18 EFL students, on a Global Issues course in a Japanese university, to build on their English outside of the classroom and receive additional feedback.

This presentation explains which different forms of software were used and how the feedback assisted with in-class topics, course assessments, and an end-of-course presentation. For each task, students were given opportunities to practice, re-record/write, submit, and review their work.

The technology consisted of using an LMS, AI tools for feedback on written and speaking tasks, Flip for spoken assessment and peer feedback, a graded news website, and presentation software.

The presenter will also explain how the different forms of technology were implemented, and how these approaches were received by the students. Additionally, any limitations and challenges of these approaches noted by the teacher and students will be addressed.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

Online, Speaking, AI, Feedback

DW 304: AI for Learning / 165

Utilizing an AI-CEFR Checker: What is the Efficacy for Utilizing CEFR Results for first year University Students?

Author: Simon Townsend^{None}

Co-author: Andrew Tappenden¹

¹ Iwate University

In recent years it has been a daunting task for teachers and educators alike to grasp the concept of AI in higher education. In our case we felt challenged about whether or not we should implement AI into our language learning program with so many unknowns. We soon realized a lack of informative classroom research into practices for adopting AI as an effective learning tool in the language classroom existed. We proceeded with caution and after our initial trials we decided on a free version of Cathoven, an AI application with various teaching and learning tools, and set up a pilot study based on using the CEFR Checker. Primarily we focused on supporting first year language learners using a tool called a CEFR Checker, in two capacities. In the first communication class we implemented and investigated how to use the text analyzer tool with students, in activities whereby students set up private accounts and analyzed their own written text and used vocabulary, verb forms, and sentence structure feedback results to self-evaluate their level of language and performance. Findings showed students gained insight into their own written English production, and that students were motivated and used feedback differently to improve their language for overall development. Students were then given a survey regarding the utilization of the text analyzer tool to inform on their experiences and opinions and other ideas. In the second communication class we applied the text analyzer tool to transcripts of video recordings at the end of the semester for the purpose of examining students' results to explore possible methods for conducting either formative or summative assessment. Findings showed future potential for using this particular AI-CEFR Checker for student grading, as well as designing authentic course materials and other resources for activities for specific level language objectives.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

AI, CEFR, self-checking

DN 404 / 166

Teacher Becomes Student: User Experience of an LMS During an Online Degree

What happens when an experienced educational technology teacher who has run Professional Development workshops becomes a student again and goes through the identical learning experiences that he puts his own students through? That's what happened to me when I enrolled in a two-year Master of Creative Writing degree at Macquarie University, in Australia. Suddenly, I was the student on the other end trying to navigate the online Learner Management System utilised by MQU, and while I was familiar with many things such as the user-interface, there were many instances that left me frustrated and questioning my own professional practices. Some examples were simple things such as where global course Announcements were made, while others were more complex like where multimedia materials were housed and how they were accessed by students. While taking this course online, I encountered many frustrations that are probably very similar to some of those that our own students might face.

In this presentation, I want to reflect on how we, as educators using educational technology, can improve the way we set up and implement our courses. By doing so, we can begin to improve and

enhance the user-experience of our students and help them overcome preventable technological challenges they might face, particularly using software such as Learner Management Systems that are likely in a second language.

Educational technology is a ubiquitous part of the learner experience now, so it's vital that we understand how to make the transition from classroom to computer as smooth as possible, particularly in a Japanese context, where many students will encounter technologies such as LMSs for the first time when they begin university.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

LMS, professional development, teacher education, best practice

DN 403: AI for Teaching / 167

Using AI to Automate Corrective Written Feedback in the Learner's L1

Authors: Rob Hirschel¹; Christopher Tempest¹

¹ Sojo University

Many EFL and ESL teachers do not provide corrective feedback on L2 writing. Reasons include but are not limited to: 1. considerable time required; 2. unhelpful but necessary delay in returning corrective feedback; 3. concerns about comprehensibility of the feedback in the L2; and 4. concerns that students may simply disregard feedback. In recent years, automated corrective written feedback has become available in the form of commercial programs such as Grammarly and ProWritingAid. These programs potentially solve issues of long hours spent marking papers and the delay between students writing and receiving feedback. However, additional problems such as use of machine translation and copy-paste become an issue when moving from paper format to digital. And, crucially, programs such as the aforementioned usually offer feedback in the students'L2, feedback that may not be comprehensible to all students.

With the advent of ChatGPT and other AI programs using large language models, it is now possible to provide automated written corrective feedback in the students'L1. This presentation showcases results of an exploratory study using a ChatGPT-powered plugin currently in development for the popular Moodle LMS. The classroom intervention on which this study is based had four main steps: a) individual or collective brainstorming and online search for potentially useful vocabulary (3 minutes); b) subsequent free-writing activity in an online browser with copy and paste functions disabled (10 minutes); c) reading the ChatGPT feedback in L1 Japanese (2 minutes); d) completing paper grammar logs to process feedback (5 minutes).

Data has been compiled from students'written submissions as well as the ChatGPT-generated feedback, students'grammar logs, and survey instruments administered to students and teachers. The presenters aim to discuss concerns about accuracy and comprehensibility of the feedback in the L1, ease of use, what prompts work best, and student and teacher perspectives.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

AI, ChatGPT, corrective feedback, writing

DW 305: AI for Teaching / 168

Efficiency and Effectiveness in Online Learning: The DripRelease Plugin

Author: Christopher Tempest¹

Co-author: Rob Hirschel¹

¹ Sojo University

This presentation aims to summarize and highlight research findings from an online homework course using the Moodle learning management system. Students were tasked to complete 50 homework activities from a pool of 64 over a semester. Research data compares the performance and completion rates of students assigned 8 activities biweekly against those with unrestricted access to all 64 quizzes throughout the semester. Initial findings suggest that the biweekly group engaged with activities more consistently and frequently over the semester when compared to the unrestricted group. The implication of these findings for online learning and student engagement will be summarized and discussed.

The presentation also addresses the considerable time and effort required for creating and editing settings for such a large number of activities. To remedy this, the researchers secured a Kaken fund to develop the Moodle plugin DripRelease. This freely available plugin enables users to streamline the assignment of a desired number of activities to students over a desired timeframe (e.g. 8 activities every two weeks over the course of a semester). Through a single interface, users can efficiently bulk assign the frequency of activities, availability, group access, and clearance of all settings on a large number of activities in only a few clicks, thus offering significant time-saving benefits for educators. The presentation will include a live demonstration of the main features of the plugin, an update on the current status of the project, and an opportunity for audience members to have some hands-on experience. It is hoped that the plugin can be applied beyond its initial research context and aid in student engagement in wider areas. Audience feedback and suggestions will be most welcome.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

Moodle, Engagement, Technology

Posters Session / 169

Creating Your Own Ollama AI Server: Empowering Language Teachers with Open Source

Author: Adam Jenkins¹

Co-author: Luc Gougeon²

² Sojo University

Artificial Intelligence and large language models are most frequently associated with Open AI, Google Bard, or Microsoft CoPilot (Bing). Most of these AIs are paid services; however, building and running your own AI is surprisingly simple. Moreover, there is no need for expensive server hardware; it is possible to run your own private AI within your laptop or even on a Raspberry Pi. Running your own private AI comes with many advantages. For example, you can choose exactly which model(s) to make available to users and how much computing power to allocate to it; being selfhosted and owned, you retain control of your data and are not giving it away to corporations; you

¹ Shizuoka Institute of Science and Technology

retain complete freedom to use the software and your hardware in any way you choose. This poster will present Ollama, a simple, free, open-source platform for launching and running AI models. Installing on your devices is as simple as running a single command or launching a docker container. There are several open-source models available that have been trained for a variety of different purposes. Adding a web user interface can also be done, connecting to the Ollama API for your own private "ChatGPT" without needing so much as an external internet connection. Participants will also be able to try out the AI as we will bring one along with us to demonstrate.

Keywords:

AI, open-source, large language model

DN 402 / 170

Creating Your Own Ollama AI Server and other self-hosted opensource AI solutions workshop

Author: Luc Gougeon¹

Co-author: Adam Jenkins²

¹ Sojo University

² Shizuoka Institute of Science and Technology

Instead of using proprietary AI offerings, it is possible to run your own private AI within your own laptop or even on a Raspberry Pi. In this hands-on workshop, we will present Ollama, a simple, free and open-source platform for launching and running AI models. Participants will be guided through installing Ollama on their own devices, which is as simple as running a single command or launching a docker container. Next, participants will download and run one of a number of opensource models available that have been trained for a variety of different purposes. Adding a web user interface can also be done, connecting to the Ollama API for your own private "ChatGPT" without needing so much as an external internet connection. Ollama is constantly evolving, we will do our best to map out the different offerings to help you find a usage in your daily teaching practice or research project. Additionally, we will briefly discuss alternatives to Ollama by showing how to use Hugging Face. Participants will leave this workshop with their own completely private Artificial Intelligence.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

AI, self-hosted, open-source

DN 413: AI for Learning / 171

Chatting with Generative AI Replika: Effects on Writing

Author: Angelina Kovalyova¹

¹ Sophia University

Generative AI has recently saturated various language learning platforms and applications, such as Duolingo, English Central, Elsa. Integration of features powered by generative AI conveys po-

tential advantage for language learners, suggesting individualized feedback and human-like interaction. However, the exact benefits of generative AI features for language learners are yet to be confirmed.

The following study examines the use of a generative AI chatbot, Replika, in text-based English language conversation practice, and analyzes whether teacher's corrective feedback for said conversations with the chatbot affects writing skill of English language learners (ELL). The participants are comprised of 34 University-level Japanese ELL, with the experimental group (n = 17) having conversations with the chatbot Replika and receiving corrective feedback from the teacher, and control group (n = 17) practicing English conversation with the chatbot Replika only. Writing skill is evaluated through select CAF indices (average sentence length, measures of lexical diversity voc-D and MTLD, spelling errors per 100 words, number of tokens), which are measured in pre- and post-test writing tasks with Text Inspector, a tool for text analysis. Participants were also asked to provide feedback and impressions at the end of the experiment.

These results show a significant improvement in all six CAF indices regardless of corrective feedback from the teacher. However, teacher's feedback seems to be particularly effective in the development of lexical diversity measured by indices voc-D and MTLD. The results suggest that text-based conversations with generative AI chatbot, Replika, potentially allow adult ELL to improve some aspects of their writing (number of words in a sentence, diversity of vocabulary, spelling errors), even without corrective feedback from the teacher. However, lexical diversity is improved more in the presence of corrective feedback. The study offers a case in favor of the use of generative AI for writing.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

generative AI, CAF, writing

DN 411: Mixed Sessions / 172

Indico for Vetting Management of EFL Events: Set Your Team Up for Success

Authors: Geoff Carr¹; Robert Remmerswaal²

¹ Asahikawa City University, JALTCALL, PSG, TASC

² Prefectural University of Kumamoto

Targeted at EFL professionals tasked with conference management, this interactive presentation outlines a streamlined, tested approach to deploying and successfully managing a call for papers on the Indico conference management platform. From initial setup to the successful execution of each stage of a CfP, participants will learn how to leverage Indico's comprehensive suite of tools. The session will cover key features such as event creation, abstract submission guidelines, review process configuration, and communication with participants. Attendees will leave with actionable insights and best practices for using Indico to enhance the educational impact and reach of their EFL conferences, making the most of this powerful platform to foster academic excellence and collaboration.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

Academic conference management, Indico platform, Abstract submission process, Review workflow, Call for Papers (CfP) management

DN 404: Innovative Teaching Using Technology / 173

Creating a GenAI Literacy module for university students in Hong Kong

Author: Thomas Chan¹

¹ HKUST

The introduction of generative AI tools such as ChatGPT & Bing Chat has had a massive impact on education; especially in the field of language teaching & learning. GenAI tools can produce complete written texts which could potentially then be used to replace students'own writing. This has led to a level of uncertainty of the best way forward; what exactly is the best way forward in light of these tools being available.

This presentation will share the experiences of a Hong Kong language center. In this context, the decision was made that GenAI tools would be embraced as a tool for teaching and learning. The creation of a self-directed GenAI Literacy module was made in light of these decisions to respond to three things

1) Preparing students with the basic knowledge and understanding of how to use these tools

2) Provide students with information about the risks and limitations of using these tools along with ethical usage

3) Ensuring equity and fairness amongst students i.e a level playing field

The presentation will describe the rationale, process, challenges and feedback from students/teachers about the module and hopes to show that even if GenAI tools are incorporated as part of a classroom that practical considerations need to be made in order for students to gain the most out of these tools.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

A.I usage, A.I teaching, A.I learning

DN 404: Innovative Teaching Using Technology / 174

Using Gaze and AI Technology to Assess Online Presence

Author: Todd Cooper^{None}

Co-authors: Akira Tsukada ¹; Miho Takano ²; Ren Nou ¹

¹ Toyama Institute of Technology

² University of Toyama

When communicating in a second language, communicative competence, as defined by Canale and Swain (1980), is crucial. Having the appropriate vocabulary is merely a component of our whole conversation. Current research has suggested that when effectively communicating, the ratio of verbal communication to nonverbal is about 50-50 (Tiferes et al., 2019). Additionally, we must be cognizant of our facial expressions, which can enhance our nonverbal communication competence, particularly in online presentations and interviews (author et al., retracted, 2021). We describe the outcomes of two experiments in this study. Initially, the online mock job interviews of the pupils were recorded in both English and Japanese. Two human judges and an AI emotion analyzer assessed these facial expressions. In the second experiment, we analyzed students' interactions with a simulated online interview using gaze-tracking equipment (author et al., retracted, 2022). Using a participatory action research-based approach, we assess the responses provided in L1 and L2 for

conventional job interview inquiries, reassess our procedures, and enhance our methodologies. Our research endeavors to assist students in achieving success during job interviews, irrespective of the language or cultural barriers.

Keywords:

AI, gaze, online presence, interviews

Posters Session / 175

Meeting Eye-to-Eye on Online Video Conferencing Platforms

Author: Ren Nou¹

Co-authors: Akira Tsukada 1; Miho Takano 2; Todd Cooper

¹ Toyama Institute of Technology

² University of Toyama

This poster presentation proposal explores the role of facial expressions in online classes and interviews and introduces the use of a specialized prompter as a potential tool for improvement. First, the study emphasizes the significance of facial expressions in online communication between teachers and students and their impact on communication between potential interviewers and interviewees (author et al., retracted, 2022). The second phase of the presentation will show the various hacks we have tried to engage in "eye-to-eye" communication via online conferencing tools such as Zoom and MSFT Teams (author et al., retracted, 2023). Finally, we will compare images captured with the specialized prompter and those taken using a computer camera. Those images will be analyzed using both AI and gaze technology. Our comparison study aims to find any differences in facial expressions that can be seen or detected. This research will provide real-world evidence for the possible benefits of using a prompter to improve interviewee presentations.

Keywords:

AI, gaze, online presence, interviews

DW 306: Mixed Sessions / 176

Toward Better Evaluation Criteria For Student Participation Grades

Author: George MacLean¹

¹ University of the Ryukyus

In many tertiary educational settings, participation can comprise a significant part of a student's overall grade for some courses. Transparently documenting this important element can be challenging (Ihsan, 2018, Rasooli et al., 2018; Chang, 2013). For example, many schools do not accept the overt use of easily quantified numbers derived from attendance as a factor when calculating participation grades.

This practically-oriented presentation will discuss my attempts to devise systematic, fair and easily explicable protocols for calculating student participation grades. It is predicated on the use of several tools and techniques that will be discussed in the presentation, notably (a) using spreadsheets and having an easily updated seating plan, (b) regularly calculating student grades, and (c) recording incomplete or late assignments. Together, these components make up the ABC Grade that I use instead of "Participation". During the presentation, I will demonstrate how to explain ABC Grades

in a syllabus, and how to calculate them, as well as how to explain them to students. Participants in this session should leave with a better idea of how to calculate participation grades in their own settings using spreadsheets and the protocols explained. Ongoing questions, lively participation, and shared experiences from participants are most welcome, albeit within the limited time available.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

Assessment, Feedback, Spreadsheets, Cloud Computing

Posters Session / 177

Using an AI-based dubbing application to train English-speaking skills

Author: Gloria Yi-Ming Kao¹

¹ Graduate Institute of Digital Learning and Education, National Taiwan University of Science and Technology

Compared to the outdated method of rote memorizing, the opportunities for learning English have increased with the advent of artificial intelligence technology. This study used Lingodub, an AIbased English learning application that allows students to engage with different types of English content. By offering a wide range of themes and characters for dubbing, students can practice English by dubbing scenes from various settings, or they can improve their conversational English by dubbing dialogues from movies or TV shows. The variety of themes and characters not only keeps students engaged and motivated but also exposes them to different vocabulary, grammar structures, and cultural contexts, enhancing their overall English-speaking abilities. Students can practice pronouncing new words by listening to demo recordings and trying to mimic them to enhance their English-speaking skills. The AI technology can analyze students' recordings and compare their pronunciation to a standard pronunciation model. It can identify areas where the student's pronunciation is unclear or inaccurate and provide feedback and suggestions for improvement. This application produces a more immersive and interactive learning environment by allowing students to pick interesting dubbing themes and personalities. In this way, students' curiosity and attention were increased, and their motivation to learn English-speaking skills was enhanced. However, students who do not frequently use recording devices may not be accustomed to hearing their recorded voices. In this case, teachers or peers can help students by listening to the recorded content and providing them with oral reading guidance or comments, thereby lessening the circumstances in which students are not used to hearing their own voices during the learning process. This can help students express emotions better when dubbing, which in turn increases their willingness to study English-speaking skills.

Keywords:

AI application, English speaking skills, language learning

DN 405: AI & Ethics, Access, Equality, Diversity, and Inclusion / 178

Do generative Artificial Intelligence tools assist or prevent learners' development in English as a second learning environment?

Co-author: Hiroyuki Ida²

¹ Open University UK

² Josai University

Generative Artificial Intelligence (GenAI) tools, such as ChatGPT, are increasingly pervasive in society and helpful aid for education, but they also have problems. Although AI tools may help students gather information and generate ideas, there is a concern about whether GenAI may deprive them of opportunities to research widely and think critically independently. This study discusses the students' perception of using GenAI tools in assignments based on the questionnaire results from the academic English course at an online university. Twelve participants, three females and nine males from different regions, participated in the online questionnaire. The results show that about half of them answered that they should not use ChatGPT in writing assignments, but the rest answered that they could use it when necessary. About 75 percent responded that writing with the ChatGPT is equally unfavorable as plagiarism, and the teacher should detect the students' wrong use of Chat-GPT. The free comment section reveals that many are concerned that repeated use of ChatGPT may lead them to its habitual use and failure in the course. Prominently, while teachers often view the issue of AI misuse as an academic ethics problem, we found that many students were concerned that the regular use of such tools would prevent them from acquiring knowledge, improving their writing skills, and achieving the results of their efforts. As the number of subjects was small and the questionnaire was open-ended, relatively diligent students may have answered the questionnaire, and those who wanted to misuse GenAI may have not. Therefore, the results cannot be generalized. However, this case study has given us some hints on solving the disadvantageous aspects of AI in education, not only from a technical but also a cognitive point of view.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

AI, ChatGPT, learner development, L2 writing,

DN 406: Research and Development / 179

Exploring Teachers' Perceptions towards Computer-Assisted Language Learning in Rural Nepal

Author: Mani Ram Sharma Ram¹

Co-author: Ramesh Kumar Rai²

¹ Mahendra Ratna Campus

² Martyr Ramnath Multiple (MRM) Campus

In the context of the global digital revolution and its impact on education, this research delves into the perspectives of teachers regarding the integration of Computer-Assisted Language Learning (CALL) in the rural primary school settings of Nepal. The study aims to understand how English language teachers perceive the role of technology in language instruction and to identify the challenges and opportunities associated with the implementation of CALL in resource-constrained, rural environments. Employing a qualitative research design, this investigation gathers data through indepth interviews and focus group discussions with primary school teachers actively engaged in using computer-assisted language learning tools. The participants are selected from diverse rural regions of Nepal, providing a nuanced understanding of the varied contexts in which these technologies are introduced.

Preliminary analysis reveals multifaceted insights into teachers' attitudes, beliefs, and experiences with CALL. Themes emerging from the data include perceived benefits such as increased student engagement, enhanced language proficiency, and exposure to a broader range of learning resources. However, challenges such as limited access to technology, lack of training, and concerns about cultural appropriateness are also identified. The findings of this study aim to contribute valuable perspectives to educational policymakers, school administrators, and teacher training programs, aiding

in the development of strategies to effectively integrate computer-assisted language learning in rural Nepal. By comprehensively understanding teachers' viewpoints, the research endeavors to inform future initiatives that harness the potential of technology to bridge educational gaps and empower students in remote, resource-limited settings.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

Keywords: Computer-Assisted Language Learning (CALL) , rural environments, understanding, policy-makers, resource-limited

DW 306: Mixed Sessions / 181

Exploring the Intersection of AI and Language Learning: A Study of Japanese and International Students' Perspectives

Author: Jeremy White¹

¹ Ritsumeikan University

The integration of Artificial Intelligence (AI) in Computer-Assisted Language Learning (CALL) has transformed language education by personalizing learning experiences, providing instant feedback, and offering immersive practice opportunities. This presentation explores AI's pivotal role in reshaping traditional pedagogies and its implications for the future of language education. AI in CALL facilitates authentic language acquisition through intelligent algorithms and natural language processing, making quality education more accessible and inclusive. The presentation showcases how AI technologies, such as machine learning and speech recognition, can revolutionize language learning practices, enhance proficiency and fostering learner autonomy. Additionally, the presentation unveils findings from a study of 107 Japanese and international university students39; attitudes towards AI integration in English language learning. Students' expressed enthusiasm for AI-driven tools to improve their language skills, indicating receptiveness to future integration of AI into curricula. Additionally, the presentation demonstrates an original AI website developed by the researchers to enhance spoken language skills, highlighting its potential for learners of all levels and locations. Positive feedback from participants in the study underscores the viability of AI applications in language education. Participants in this presentation will have the opportunity to use the application and give their feedback on it's usefulness in English language education. Finally, the presentation discusses the future implications of AI in language education, emphasizing its role in redefining classroom dynamics and pedagogical practices. By harnessing AI, educators can create adaptive learning environments that foster linguistic competence and cross-cultural understanding, promoting inclusivity and efficiency in nurturing global competencies. This presentation advocates for a paradigm shift towards AI-driven pedagogies, empowering learners, and educators in their pursuit of linguistic proficiency and cross-cultural communication.

Is this a sponsored session?:

No

Keywords:

AI, CALL, classroom pedagogy, learning experience

DN 410: Mixed Sessions / 182

H5P Activities Speaking Practice for Moodle and WordPress

Author: Bill White¹

¹ Kindai Unversity

This presentation will delve into how two tools, the H5P core module for Moodle and LUMI Application (a separate H5P application, which can be used for Moodle and WordPress), which help create interactive activities, with a primary focus on formative assessment. The speaker has personally utilized these tools for a period of two years and will openly discuss his experiences, highlighting both the successes and challenges encountered while implementing various activities. By sharing firsthand knowledge, the speaker aims to provide you with a better understanding of these platforms —what they excel at and where they may have limitations.

During the presentation, the speaker will particularly emphasize speaking activities. Although setting them up can be a bit tricky, as they are not always predictable, the speaker will guide you through the ups and downs of the process, offering practical tips to help you navigate it more effectively.

By the end of the session, you will have gained valuable insights that can enhance your familiarity with the H5P module and LUMI Application. Understanding the strengths and weaknesses of these tools will empower you to make more informed decisions and leverage their potential to create engaging and interactive activities, especially for formative assessment purposes.

Is this a sponsored session?:

No

Keywords:

Oral Communication, Moodle, Formative Assessment

DW 302: Mixed Sessions / 183

Unveiling Gender Bias in AI Translation: A Corpus-assisted Analysis of Marriage-related Text in The Second Sex

Author: Kacey Jianwen LIU¹

Co-author: Hao YIN¹

¹ Hong Kong Shue Yan University

In the realm of artificial intelligence (AI) translation, concerns regarding gender bias have gained prominence, warranting thorough investigation. This research endeavors to scrutinize the translations of marriage-related texts in Al's English-Chinese translation through the lens of gender. Drawing inspiration from Simone de Beauvoir's seminal work The Second Sex, which delves into the intricacies of gender dynamics, this study aims to compare its translations produced by AI with those crafted by female and male translators. The original book, Le Deuxième Sexe, was first translated from French into English by Howard M. Parshley in 1953, which served as the sole source text for Chinese translators in 20th century. The English version has been translated into Chinese by the female translator Yang Meihui and published in 1973, and later by the male translator Tao Tiezhu and published in 1998. Employing a corpus linguistics approach, this research will meticulously extract and compare texts pertaining to marriage in ChatGPT-generated translations and male and female translations of The Second Sex. By systematically comparing the translations, we aim to uncover potential instances of gender bias inherent in AI translation systems. Through this comparative analysis, we seek to elucidate whether AI translations mirror or diverge from the gendered nuances present in human-authored translations, particularly in the context of marriage-related discourse. This study not only contributes to the burgeoning discourse on gender bias in AI but also

offers insights into the implications of automated translation systems on gender representation and perception.

Keywords: AI translation, gender bias, marriage-related text, The Second Sex

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

AI translation, gender bias, marriage-related text, The Second Sex

DN 402: AI in Learning / 184

LD SIG Forum AI: Benefits, Challenges, and Issues for Learner Development.

Authors: Blair Barr^{None}; James Underwood^{None}; Mart Christine Johnston¹

¹ Tamagawa University

This forum will examine how advancements in artificial intelligence and new technologies can aid or impede learner development. The first presenter will explore how Japanese university students can improve their writing skills by using AI (such as ChatGPT) with a single prompt. The students in the study wrote a series of passages on pen and paper, in class over a number of weeks. They then corrected their spelling and grammar using a simple AI prompt before making notes of their most obvious/common errors. The second presenter will focus on how he has evolved the grading schemes of writing assignments to keep students focused on their own abilities to produce English in presentations. The third presenter will examine how guidelines relating to the use of AI can be negotiated between students and teachers to ensure that AI tools promote, rather than detract from, language learning and enable learners to foster a sense of independence and autonomy. With these guidelines, it is hoped his students will take an informed approach to using AI tools and use them effectively to reach the goals described in their learning plans. At the end of these presentations, the audience will be invited to reflect on and share their perspectives on using AI tools to support language learning with a focus on learner development.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

Keynote Speaker / 185

Revolutionizing Language Learning: The Impact and Evolution of Large Language Models

Large Language Models (LLMs) such as ChatGPT and its siblings have not only marked a sea change in AI research and development, but also had a major ripple effect on fields that may have used AI minimally. In this presentation, I will first provide a brief history of Natural Language Processing, the field that has developed LLMs, and then delve into the foundational aspects of LLMs, providing an overview of their basic mechanisms, functionalities, and limitations. Next, I will survey how this technology is impacting, and in some cases revolutionizing, language learning applications. Finally, I will conclude with thoughts on what we may expect as these technologies evolve. [virtual]

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

Computational Linguistics, Artificial Intelligence, Machine Learning, Natural Language Processing

Keynote Speaker / 186

(Saturday Keynote) AI-Enhanced Language Learning: Cultivating New Perspectives

Author: Takako Aikawa¹

¹ Massachusetts Institute of Technology

This talk explores the potential of using generative AI for language education, emphasizing the evolving roles and responsibilities of language teachers. It encompasses several key areas of research. The initial focus is on developing strategies for prompt engineering that facilitate the creation of language teaching and learning materials. I will showcase various prompts for content generation that align with individual learners'needs, interests, and proficiency levels. Second, the pedagogical efficacy of AI-driven language pedagogy will be investigated. This involves understanding the teacher's evolving role and how language teachers can best utilize AI as a co-teaching tool. I will discuss the importance of harnessing teachers' prompt writing skills and AI literacy. I will also share practical use case scenarios of generative AI based on my own teaching experiences. Last, I will address some critical issues that arise from the use of generative AI for language instruction. I will raise questions such as: What is the role of language teachers in the age of AI? How should the language curriculum be adapted to incorporate generative AI? What are the ethical and pedagogical implications of using generative AI for language learning? I will provide anecdotal answers to such questions. I conclude my talk by arguing that we need to cultivate "perspective shifts" that enable generative AI to optimize our future language education. The imperative now is not to resist but to adapt.

Dr. Takako Aikawa (Boston, USA, Massachusetts Institute of Technology, Global Languages, Senior Lecturer in Japanese)

Before joining MIT's Global Languages in 2013, Takako Aikawa honed her expertise in machine translation and natural language processing at Microsoft Research. At MIT, she is responsible for directing the Japanese language program while utilizing technology for language learning.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

DN 407: Professional Development and Teacher Training / 187

ICLE SIG - (Can) (Will) AI be used for teaching Intercultural Communicative Skills in Foreign Language Education?

Author: Javier Salazar¹

¹ University of Tsukuba

JALT Intercultural Communication in Language Education (ICLE) SIG Presentation

The advent of widely accessible generative AI tools such as ChatGPT has taken foreign language education by storm; fueling a raging debate regarding the possibilities, limitations and even the

adequacy of using AI for language learning. Under this context, it could be said that there is one particular area that epitomizes AI's inherent inadequacies: the intercultural experience of learning a language. Due to the fact that language and culture are part of an indivisible unit (the Sapir-Whorf hypothesis), becoming proficient in a foreign language requires much more than just learning grammar, spelling, vocabulary, pronunciation, etc; it also requires a deep understanding of the cultural underpinnings of it. Hence, common sense dictates that AI is hardly an adequate tool for this purpose ... or is it? In this presentation, I will argue that the answer to the question of whether AI can be used for teaching cross-cultural communicative skills largely depends on the position a given language teacher assumes regarding defining (a) what is intercultural communication (IC) in the first place, and (b) what is the role of IC in foreign language education in the second. In this sense, the presentation will be structured in two major parts. Firstly, leading theoretical approaches on IC (in particular, Bennett's DMIS, Byram's MICC, Moran's Cultural Knowings Framework, Van Dyne' s Four Factor CQ Model, and Shaule's DMLL) will be analyzed in terms of how they could potentially allocate (or even preclude) a role for AI in language learning. Secondly, existing examples of contemporary AI tool usage in IC education settings will be expounded as a means to exemplify the present possibilities and limitations of AI in IC. Last but not least, the presentation will turn its eye to the possible future developments in AI technology that could upend our current answers to the question that guides this presentation.

Is this a sponsored session?:

No

Keywords:

AI, Chat GPT, Intercultural Communication

DN 413: AI for Learning / 188

ER SIG - Extensive reading and AI: this could be great

Author: Mark Brierley^{None}

Extensive reading (ER) means reading a lot of texts that are interesting and easy to understand. Artificial Intelligence (AI) is an ambiguous term but often refers to machine learning techniques and large language models (LLMs), where recent developments create a possibility for the automatic production of texts ideally suited to a language learner for ER. In addition, we may learn useful lessons about the language learning process by considering the way machines have become proficient over the past few months. What can large language models teach us about learning languages? How can learners use this technology? And how does this industrial revolution technology change motivations and requirements for language learning and education in general?

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

DN 409: Virtual Reality / 189

MAVR SIG - Immersive Learning Showcase

Author: Roberto Figueroa¹

Co-authors: Florinda Palma Gil²; Florinda Palma-Gil²; Mehrasa Alizadeh³; Shari Eunice San Pablo⁴

¹ University of the Philippines

² Tokyo University of Foreign Studies

³ Otemon Gakuin University

⁴ University of the Philippines Open University

The MAVR Immersive Learning Showcase at the JALT CALL Conference 2024, taking place at Meijo University Dome Mae Campus, Nagoya from May 17th to 19th, represents a critical junction of pioneering insights and breakthroughs in mixed, augmented, and virtual realities, specifically tailored for language learning.

This event mirrors the MAVR Special Interest Group's commitment to advancing educational technologies. It underscores recent progress and strategic pathways for embedding immersive experiences alongside AI-driven approaches in language learning, aligning with JALT CALL's theme of exploring the potential of AI in enhancing language education methodologies.

From the State of MAVR Address by Eric Hawkinson, extending through interactive workshops and research reports by Shari Eunice San Pablo, Roberto Figueroa Jr., Florinda Amparo Palma-Gil, and Mehrasa Alizadeh, the forum highlights the critical roles of diversity, inclusion, and collaborative exploration in crafting immersive learning environments, with discussions related to artificial intelligence. This inclusion of AI enriches the discourse, underscoring its potential to revolutionize immersive learning by enhancing personalized learning experiences, automating feedback, and facilitating deeper engagement with language content.

The roundtable discussion broadens this conversation further, encouraging all attendees to share insights and ideas, contributing to a shared vision for future research and practical applications in the field that include AI as a pivotal element.

This event serves as a powerful illustration of MAVR's dedication to advancing educational practices through technological innovation, including AI, thereby nurturing a community of collaboration, innovation, and inquiry.

Presentation 1: State of MAVR Address 2024

Eric Hawkinson, MAVR President, Kyoto University of Foreign Studies

The 2024 State of MAVR Address provides a comprehensive overview of the Mixed, Augmented, and Virtual Realities (MAVR) Special Interest Group's recent advancements, key achievements, and strategic direction within the domain of technology-enhanced language learning. It emphasizes the organization's adherence to principles of diversity, inclusion, and respectful engagement, aligning with the JALT Code of Conduct. The address delineates MAVR's contributions to fostering immersive learning experiences through augmented and virtual realities. It also outlines the potential of AI's convergence to these frontier technologies. Furthermore, it outlines ongoing initiatives to support and expand language education, including the solicitation of contributions to the MAVR Journal and the facilitation of the "MAVR in the Metaverse" event series. This discourse serves to articulate MAVR's continued commitment to innovating at the nexus of educational technology and language instruction, while setting a forward-looking agenda for research and community engagement.

Presentation 2: Lessons and Exhibits in the Metaverse

Mehrasa Alizadeh, Shari Eunice San Pablo, and Roberto Figueroa Jr. will teach participants how to use FRAME (https://framevr.io/) to create VR-based language learning lessons and exhibits. The presenters will describe different cases on how the metaverse was used including how they delivered online EFL flipped lessons or facilitated global exchanges through virtual exhibits using FRAME. Web-based VR platform FRAME lets people access the space using their computer or phone without headgear. The platform can host varied numbers of students based on the subscription plan in desert islands, conference rooms, and exotic gardens. Students build avatars and can communicate in groups or use private voice zones for smaller groups or pair work after entering the space.

Presentation 3: Virtualizing Campus Tours and Developing VR Tours for Language Education in Blended Learning Contexts. Roberto Figueroa Jr. and Florinda Palma Gil will teach participants how to use various VR Tour platforms like Kuula, H5P, and 3D Vista. They will also share how they were able to use these VR tours for teaching Filipino Language Education in online and blended contexts as well as for promoting their university through virtual campus tours.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

Keynote Speaker / 190

AI-Enhanced Language Learning: Cultivating New Perspectives

This talk explores the potential of using generative AI for language education, emphasizing the evolving roles and responsibilities of language teachers. It encompasses several key areas of research. The initial focus is on developing strategies for prompt engineering that facilitate the creation of language teaching and learning materials. I will showcase various prompts for content generation that align with individual learners'needs, interests, and proficiency levels. Second, the pedagogical efficacy of AI-driven language pedagogy will be investigated. This involves understanding the teacher's evolving role and how language teachers can best utilize AI as a co-teaching tool. I will discuss the importance of harnessing teachers' prompt writing skills and AI literacy. I will also share practical use case scenarios of generative AI based on my own teaching experiences. Last, I will address some critical issues that arise from the use of generative AI for language instruction. I will raise questions such as: What is the role of language teachers in the age of AI? How should the language curriculum be adapted to incorporate generative AI? What are the ethical and pedagogical implications of using generative AI for language learning? I will provide anecdotal answers to such questions. I conclude my talk by arguing that we need to cultivate "perspective shifts" that enable generative AI to optimize our future language education. The imperative now is not to resist but to adapt.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

191

Workshop A1: A Technical Primer on AI and Intelligent Language Models

Artificial intelligence and machine learning have been around for a long time, so what is behind the enormous amount of attention and capital now being directed towards large language models like OpenAI's GPT-4 and Google Gemini? This workshop will present some of the historical and technical background on these remarkable systems, including why neural networks were essentially ignored for decades by most AI researchers, how they finally started producing good results, and what discoveries have led to the most recent improvements. We will then discuss some of the surprising attributes of these systems, including the fact that the models do not contain copies of their training data and that designers themselves have no way of knowing what the models have learned. Finally, we will discuss what may lie ahead, including why many researchers believe we may now be on the path to artificial general intelligence and eventually to superintelligent machines. Practical elements of the workshop will include an introduction to what models are available for use now, what they are capable of, and tips for prompting these models to produce desirable output. Participants are encouraged to bring a digital device.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

Workshop A2: Voices of the Future: Enhancing Language Learning with Advanced Text to Speech Technology

In the rapidly evolving domain of language education, Text to Speech (TTS) technology has become a transformative tool. Today's TTS systems offer near-native naturalness in voice quality, thanks to advancements in artificial intelligence. These improvements have not only enhanced the clarity and fluency of generated speech but also its authenticity, making TTS an invaluable asset in language learning contexts. Furthermore, the integration of new Speech Synthesis Markup Language (SSML) tags has expanded the functionality of TTS technologies. These tags allow for the manipulation of speech nuances, enabling the creation of diverse linguistic characters and incorporating multiple languages that were previously inaccessible. This presentation will demonstrate how teachers can leverage these tools effectively, with practical demonstrations of TTS in both English and Japanese. It will also explore the author's integration of TTS into other learning tools, such as Extensive Reading and Japanese reading fluency. Attendees will gain insights into creating more engaging and effective language learning experiences this powerful tool.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

Posters Session / 193

AI-Enhanced self-oriented English learning for diverse skill development in Japan

Authors: Juuso Eronen¹; Saeun Lee¹

¹ Prefectural University of Kumamoto

The recent introduction of advanced generative AI has had a noticeable impact on many fields, including higher education language learning. This offers new opportunities, including personalized learning experiences tailored to individual students'needs, around-the-clock accessibility, immediate feedback mechanisms, and adaptive content delivery to enhance learning outcomes. However, in Japan's predominantly test-oriented and teacher-centered context of English education, students have limited opportunities to leverage AI technology to develop diverse skills necessary for future careers. The learning is often passive and focused on memorization, understanding, and testing, while skills like analysis, evaluation, and creativity are also crucial. Therefore, we propose an AIenhanced language teaching method that offers avenues for developing higher-order thinking skills (HOTS) like analysis, evaluation, and creation in English, along with lower-order thinking skills (LOTS), as delineated by the revised Bloom's taxonomy (2001) for educational goals. While improving LOTS is easier in regular classes through passive learning, learning HOTS needs deeper engagement and critical thinking. For example, developing HOTS necessitates activities like synthesizing information and presenting appropriate solutions. Through AI-integrated learning, students could enhance their ability to an-alyze and evaluate the outcomes generated by AI, create and expand their knowledge, and develop language competency. The proposed method also leads to tailored learning at students'English levels and personal interests, which further boosts learning. After attaining a certain level of HOTS and confidence, students can apply the learning outcomes to academic and career-based settings. While AI-integrated language teaching raises concerns about limited human interaction, privacy issues, algorithm bias, and accessibility challenges, it offers benefits within the context of Japanese higher education. By providing a safe and non-judgmental environment, AIpowered language learning helps mitigate communication barriers and foster student confidence, overcoming hierarchical constraints from English classrooms. Ultimately, this aids the digitalization of the Japanese education system and creating global human resources.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Posters Session / 194

Iconicity in Virtual Reality for Language Learning Survey

Author: Robert Olexa¹

¹ National Institute of Technology, Hakodate College

In this poster session, a wide variety of commercial apps used for language learning will be demonstrated, including Immerse-me, Body Swaps, Mondly, Noun-Town, and VR-Chat. Participants will also be able to demo and try the apps. After trying out the apps attendees will be asked to fill out a survey regarding their virtual world experience with variables focusing on iconicity, approach to language learning, and immersion in the app. Iconicity is "a quality of resemblance between the form and meaning of a symbol." In the context of VR, iconicity refers to how closely the graphical representations resemble their real- world counterparts. The concept is central to the experience of VR as users are either interacting with the graphical representations in the app itself or communicating with other users on top of the graphical design. While the uses of VR are evident for scale-based fields such as architecture and telemedicine, the uses of language learning are less evident. In language learning VR apps, the design of virtual worlds and graphical representations often have varying degrees of iconicity, ranging from realistic to symbolic depictions of real-world objects, which may impact the learning experience differently compared to VR apps in other fields. Research has shown that the real-world spatial environment affects language acquisition and perception (Fort Schwarz, 2022). Therefore, it is crucial to understand how the design of the virtual environment may affect language learning and student acquisition when we use VR for language learning. The survey results will help inform teachers, XR designers, and students by providing insights into how the typological differences between virtual reality apps may impact language learning outcomes and user experiences.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

DN 409: Virtual Reality / 195

Pose detection using an AI-based web application offers a novel approach to observing gesture use in second language learning.

Authors: Kazumasa Yamada¹; Robert Olexa¹

¹ National Institute of Technology, Hakodate College

Traditional classroom-based language teaching often lacks context and natural elements crucial for effective language acquisition. Although research has shown the importance of turn-taking, disfluency, embodiment, and gesture use in natural conversation, gathering quantitative data to identify patterns has been challenging for language teachers. Previous research relied on annotating video stills, which is informative but not quantitative, making it difficult to understand significant differences in gestures over temporal units of conversation. Recent AI advances have led to tools that allow teachers to document and analyze situated language use. This presentation introduces a web application developed by researchers in the Yamada Lab at the National Institute of Technology, Hakodate College, enabling amateur researchers to apply pose detection to their research. The application outputs a CSV file for statistical analysis, adding rigor and identifying typological differences

in gesture use. The presentation will demo a case study observing iconic gestures in online VR language exchanges and provide participants with hands-on experience using a Quest 3 headset and the pose-detection app developed by Yamada-Lab. By raising awareness of authentic gesture use and embodiment in speech, we can develop more effective language materials that improve students' communication skills and help to move language teaching forward.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

DN 405: AI & Ethics, Access, Equality, Diversity, and Inclusion / 196

KOTESOL - Enhancing Academic Writing with AI: Student Experiences with ChatGPT Integration

Author: Victor Reeser¹

¹ KOTESOL

This qualitative study examines the effectiveness of integrating ChatGPT, a large language modelbased chatbot, into a first-year college academic writing class with five student participants. The students attended a lecture on ChatGPT usage and read an article on crafting effective prompts. Their reflections on using ChatGPT offer insights into its impact on their writing process and outcomes. These reflections highlight ChatGPT's ability to enhance essay writing by improving clarity, consistency, and professionalism. Students noted the chatbot's effectiveness in providing specific feedback on grammar, syntax, and content organization. They appreciated ChatGPT's role in generating topic ideas, refining thesis statements, and proposing relevant examples. The findings suggest that ChatGPT contributes to skill development, particularly in incorporating sources, simplifying language, and strengthening arguments. Ultimately, students expressed their willingness to continue using AI tools for future writing tasks recognizing their effectiveness in enhancing writing quality.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

edtech, AI, academic writing, ChatGPT, corrective feedback

DN 405: AI & Ethics, Access, Equality, Diversity, and Inclusion / 197

English Central - Using GenAI Tutors to Improve Speaking Outcomes for Students (MiMi Demo)

This presentation covers the technology and pedagogy behind MiMi, an AI-powered speaking assistant based on generative AI, speech recognition, and text-to-speech technologies. It will review the accuracy and efficacy of GenAI Assistants, including the pedagogy that underpins them, their impact on student motivation, and how they can be used to assess students'language ability. The presentation will also include a review of data from deployments of EnglishCentral's MiMi AI Tutor in over 20 universities with over 700 students in Japan this past fall. This data will encompass information on student motivation and how students' results align with CEFR-based 'CAN-DO' metrics.

Alan Schwartz is CEO & Founder of EnglishCentral. He started his career in Edtech as an English teacher in China over 25 years ago. After that, he spent over a decade in the AI tech industry,

including as head of Nuance's Mobile & Consumer division where he worked with Sony to develop one of the first mobile games using speech technology called Talkman. In 2009, with support from Google Ventures, he founded EnglishCentral, which has become one of the leading conversational platforms for learning English online.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

DN 410: Mixed Sessions / 198

Critical Thinking in the Digital Age: CT through LMS-based classes

Author: James Dunn^{None}

During the years of 2020 to 2023, many teachers were forced into online-only classes which created both a burden to teachers and opportunities to expand our teaching repertoire to integrate more online resources and activities. This presentation will present a number of online methods and techniques to help students learn about, obtain, and engage in critical thinking. From detailed critiquing and research-based activities to easy introductory activities for critical thinking, this presentation will share methodology that has been used in the presenter's classes across all levels of language learners. Deconstruction and supplementation of textbook-based activities will also be detailed. Participants will come away with ideas and handouts that can be used in their classroom and to help as a starting point to develop their own activities. The presenter will also discuss ideas for specific use cases from attendees during the question-and-answer section of the presentation.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

DN 408 / 200

Fantastic world of research and where to publish (and not get rejected)

Author: Nobue Tanaka-Ellis^{None}

Second and foreign language educators strive for better methods, conditions, and technology to teach the target language (TL). Due to the day-to-day endeavour, we are rewarded by witnessing learners'successful TL acquisition. Sharing our research outcomes, therefore, is critical to generating new public knowledge. Since educators are often required to publish to improve career prospects and raise visibility as scholars, choosing the right journal for those purposes is vital. The JALT CALL Journal, a Scopus Q1 journal, has been evolving with Computer-Assisted Language Learning as a research field and will celebrate its 20th anniversary next year. In this session, as the Editor-in-Chief of the JALT CALL Journal, the presenter will explain the factors that need to be considered before preparing a manuscript, the necessary components in an academic paper, and what is looked at during the initial editorial decision. Unfortunately, it is not uncommon to see, even after successful research completion, researchers struggle to publish in academic journals by facing a series of desk rejections without knowing why. This session, therefore, aims to discuss some of the issues concerning our review process and to demystify the world of academic publishing to reduce the risk of rejection.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Yes

Keywords:

DN 411: Mixed Sessions / 203

US Embassy - Leveraging AI: Empowering Educators in Creating Presentations & Images

Author: Claire Lee¹

¹ US Department of State

As the landscape of generative AI continues to evolve, educators have been exploring its potential applications in teaching, especially its ability to generate presentations and visual aids for teaching. This workshop offers participants a unique opportunity to delve into the practical aspects of leveraging various AI platforms and tools to generate images and presentations. Through hands-on demonstrations and guided instruction, attendees will gain insights into harnessing the power of AI to develop visually engaging materials conducive to effective teaching.

Is this a sponsored session?:

No

Keywords:

DN 403 / 204

English Central - Introducing a Free, Computer Adaptive, CEFRbased, Vocabulary Level Test

The Open Vocabulary Level Test ("OpenVLT") is a computer adaptive, vocabulary level test that generates an English level score based on the CEFR, an internationally recognized standard for English assessment. The test is made available at no cost on EnglishCentral and other sites, including Moodle. The OpenVLT allows teachers, e-learning solution providers and researchers to share an open source, royalty-free, widely-available vocabulary level test that can accurately determine students'English level. The OpenVLT – and associated test items, source code and a detailed spec – are freely available in a repository maintained by the Center For Open Science (OSF), whose mission is to increase openness, integrity, and reproducibility of research.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

DN 408: Mixed Topics / 205

Kinseido - In Focus: A 4-Skills Vocabulary & Critical Thinking Course

This session introduces a new 4-level, 4-skills EFL course that develops students'critical thinking skills while systematically improving their knowledge of essential high-frequency words with both in-text and online learning tools. Utilizing two keyword lists from the New General Service List Project (www.newgeneralservicelist.com), Levels 1, 2, and 3 help students master essential general English vocabulary in the NGSL (New General Service List), while Level 4 focuses on teaching academic vocabulary in the NAW (New Academic Word List). Each word list in the NGSL Project is corpus-based and pedagogically driven, providing the highest coverage in the world for that genere for second-language learners of English. The In Focus series of student books utilizes various techniques to develop students'critical thinking skills, including exposure to multiple points of view, specific skill development activities, and the use of authentic "political cartoons."Participants will get a chance to see and use activities from the book as well as the many and varied online learning tools we have developed.

DN 409: Virtual Reality / 207

Deciphering Task-Specific Language in TBLT: A Register Analysis Approach to Enhancing Task Design and Assessment

This study sought to inform the notion of "task"in Task-Based Language Teaching and Task-Based Language Assessment by describing, comparing, and contrasting the specific language used in different task types through a methodology used in Corpus Linguistics. Previous studies of tasks in TBLT have used the Complexity, Accuracy, and Fluency (CAF) framework to analyze tasks. While this framework has been helpful in finding out the relationship between various factors in the performance of a task, it has been criticized for not providing much information on the specific language used during these tasks by Crawford and Zhang (2021), who have proposed using a Register Analysis (Biber et al., 1999) methodology to break down specific linguistic structures and functions associated with a particular task. This paper performed such a study on description, negotiation, and narration tasks in the ACTFL test, as found in the NICT-JLE Corpus. It was found that each task type has specific grammatical structures characteristic of it and that these grammatical structures were directly connected to the communicative goal of the task. For example, description tasks contain more prepositional phrases (e.g., in the box) than narration tasks, since prepositional phrases are needed for the communicative goal of describing scenes and situations. In contrast, negotiation tasks contain more verb phrases with personal pronouns (e.g. I would like, I want to etc). Such linguistic descriptions of tasks can help educators investigate, analyze, and evaluate student performance on tasks and give insights into task design and implementation. Such analysis, for example, could give insight into the type of language needed to complete a task or the kind of language students will likely use in order to complete a task.

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

DN 412: AI for Teaching / 208

Will AI Replace You? Insights From the Engineers Building AI Tutors.

Authors: Jay Deshpande¹; Patrick Deshpande¹

¹ ImmersiveAI

Do students even need real teachers anymore? That is a question floating around Silicon Valley in light of recent advancements in AI. Are they caught up in the hype, or is there a foreseeable path to AI teachers?

The present state of LLMs leaves a lot to be desired for advanced applications designed to embody intelligent language teachers. We cannot simply prompt our way to a solution with existing models. A broad-spectrum approach combining technology across machine learning disciplines is imperative in building rich experiences for students. Essential for this mission is an ocean of quality data - LLMs for language learning require specific data that captures the language learning experience.

ImmersiveAI is a startup attempting to develop an AI language tutor. In doing so, our company is pushing the limits of AI and assessing the learning outcomes for 20,000 language learners. ImmersiveAI has developed key insights into exactly how AI needs to improve before it can replace a tutor and where it already excels. Currently, AI enables the mass proliferation of learning techniques centered around comprehensible input and conversational interaction, as demonstrated in our application, Crosstalk. Advanced text-to-speech and prompt-imbued personalities keep students engaged, whereas earlier chatbots felt like talking to a dull robot.

Personalized level-matching tailors the learning experience to each student, thereby facilitating greater understanding. Contextual awareness enables improved error correction and translation. Even though intelligence capable of replacing human tutors does not yet exist, student outcomes at this early stage are promising.

Language learning is transformative for the individual and society at large. Very few students have access to a private tutor, and many students rarely have the opportunity to practice with anyone at all. If everyone had a private language tutor in their pocket available 24/7/365, what would the world look like? How do we get there?

Is this a sponsored session?:

Keywords:

ML Engineering, Immersion, Comprehensible Input

DN 403: AI for Teaching / 209

AI in the Streets, Devil in the Sheets

Author: Brent Warner¹

¹ JALT CALL

While the AI revolution has opened up a lot of conversations around chatbots and image generation, many teachers haven't considered the ways that AI can be used in spreadsheets to simplify tracking of student information, easily import content into apps like Kahoot, and most importantly, differentiate instruction for each of your students depending on their level, skillset, and interests.

This session focuses on devilishly simple approaches to save you time and money, and turn you

By the end of this session, attendees will know how to use AI to build custom spreads

Is this a sponsored session?:

No

Keywords: